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January 19, 2007 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Governing Council, and Citizens of the 
City Of Laredo. 
 
We are pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the 
City of Laredo, Texas for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2006.  
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and 
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City.  To the 
best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material 
aspects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial 
position and results of operations of the various funds of the City.  All disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial 
activities have been included. 
 
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of 
the City of Laredo.  Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for 
the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report.  
To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of 
the City of Laredo has established a comprehensive internal control framework 
that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or 
misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the 
City of Laredo’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  Because the cost 
of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Laredo’s 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide 
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be 
free from material misstatement.  As management, we assert that, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all 
material respects. 
 
The City of Laredo’s financial statements have been audited by Garza, Martinez 
& Co., L.L.P., a firm of licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the 
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements of the City of Laredo for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, 
are free of material misstatement.  The independent audit involved examining, on 

 I



a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.  The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that 
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of 
Laredo’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 are 
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent auditor’s report is 
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 
 
The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Laredo was part 
of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special 
needs of federal and state grantor agencies.  The standards governing Single 
Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair 
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s 
internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis 
on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal 
awards.  These reports are available in the Single Audit Section of this report.  
 
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and 
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is 
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  The 
City of Laredo’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the 
independent auditors. 
 
Profile of the Government 

The City of Laredo incorporated in 1755.  It is located on the north bank of the 
historical Rio Grande River.  Laredo is unique because it is the only City to 
operate international bridges between two Mexican states.  The City presently 
maintains four border crossings, three with Nuevo Laredo, Mexico and one with 
Colombia, Mexico.  Laredo is at the center of the primary trade route.  It is the 
only border city strategically positioned at the convergence of all land 
transportation systems between Canada, the United States and Mexico. The City 
of Laredo is the largest city in the County of Webb; it is one of the fastest growing 
cities in the State of Texas and ninth fastest growing city in the United States as 
per the 2000 Census with a current estimated population of 215,375.  

The City of Laredo is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal 
properties located within its boundaries.  It also is empowered by state statue to 
extend its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when 
deemed appropriate by the City Council. 
 
The City of Laredo has operated under the council-manager form of government.  
The policy-making and legislative authority are vested to the City Council 
consisting of the Mayor and eight Council members.  The governing council is 
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responsible, among other things for passing ordinances, adopting budgets, 
appointing committees, and the hiring of the City Manager.  The City Manager is 
responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, for 
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for appointing the 
heads of the various departments.  The council is elected on a non-partisan 
basis.  Council members may serve up to two (2) four (4) year terms.  The mayor 
is elected to serve a four-year term with a limit of two (2) terms.  All council 
members are elected by district.  The mayor is elected at large.  
 
The City of Laredo provides a full range of municipal services including police 
and fire protection, parks, recreational and cultural activities, libraries, recycling 
services, a civic center, public health and social services, municipal housing, 
public improvements, public bus transportation, water and wastewater services, 
sanitation services, four international bridges, an international airport, planning 
and zoning, and general administrative services.  As such, these activities are 
reflected in the financial statements along with the capital project funds, debt 
service fund, internal service funds, and fiduciary funds.  These financial 
statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles for local governments as prescribed by the Government Accounting 
Standards Boards (GASB). 
 
The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Laredo’s financial 
planning and control.  The City Manager presents a proposed balanced budget to 
the City Council for review though council workshops.  The council is required to 
hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget by no 
later than September 30th, the close of the City of Laredo’s fiscal year.  The 
appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g., public safety), and 
department (e.g. police).  Department Directors may make transfers of 
appropriations within a department through an insufficient appropriation notice 
that is reviewed by the Budget, Finance and City Manager’s Office depending on 
the dollar value.  Transfers of appropriations between funds require the special 
approval of the City Council.  Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this 
report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual 
budget has been adopted.  For the general fund, this comparison is presented as 
part of the basic financial statements for the governmental funds.  
 
For governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual 
budgets, this comparison is presented in the governmental fund subsection of 
this report.  Also included in the governmental fund subsection are project-length 
budget-to-actual comparisons for each governmental fund for which a project-
length budget has been adopted (i.e., the special revenue fund and the capital 
projects fund). 
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood 
when it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment 
within which the City of Laredo operates. 
 
Local economy.  The City of Laredo currently has enjoyed a favorable economic 
environment and local indicators point to continued growth.   The region has a 
varied retail, international trade, manufacturing and transportation base that adds 
to the relative stability of the unemployment rate.  The increase in demand for 
transportation services, trucking and warehousing as well as business services 
and construction is due to the increase in trade between the United States and 
Mexico.  Laredo is the largest inland port in the Country.  As of September 30, 
2006, the unemployment rate continues to decrease as compared to prior year 
from 5.00 percent to 4.60 percent.  There was an increase in residential 
construction by 434 homes; from 1,847 to 2,281 or 23.50 percent as compared to 
prior year and valuations on those homes grew to $221,625,892 an increase of 
11.72 percent over the previous year.   On commercial construction, there was a 
36.30 percent decrease from 1,132 to 721 building permits with valuations of 
$166,713,553 or a decrease of 6.34 percent as compared to prior year.    
 
The City has three major hospitals with a combined licensed bed capacity of 630 
beds.  All three hospitals are state of the art facilities with ancillary and support 
services.  A fourth hospital specializing in long-term acute care patients opened 
in May 2006 with approximately 60 beds.  
 
In the current year, nationally known companies decided to make their home in 
Laredo and they range from restaurants such as Uno Chicago Grill Restaurant, 
retail stores among which we find Circuit City, Petco and Petland and hotels such 
as Springhill Suites and Staybridge Suites.  Chase Bank has also established 
their presence in Laredo along with plans to open other branches within the City.  
There are also numerous local and state businesses making their home in 
Laredo in the areas of banking, restaurants, retail stores and transportation 
businesses.   Businesses opening in Laredo are providing value added jobs to 
the City as well as diversifying our economy.   
 
The City is the home to the “Laredo Bucks” of the Central Hockey League and 
the Miss Texas USA Pageant which reside at the Laredo Entertainment Center.  
The Laredo Entertainment Center hosts many family oriented events which 
include indoor football, exhibition basketball games, rodeos, motor cross racing, 
wrestling, and major concert performers.   
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MAJOR INITIATIVES 
 
F or the Year 2005-2006 
 
The City Staff, following the directives of the City Council and the City Manager, 
have addressed and completed a large number of projects during the year.  
These projects reflect the City’s commitment to building a better Laredo and 
provide its citizen with a better quality of life, economic prosperity and safety.  
 
• Parks and recreation improvement projects were completed during the fiscal 

year in the amount of $700,162.  The projects include Lyon Street Park, 
Lafayette Park Improvements and Santa Rita Park Improvements.    

 
• Various building, street and sidewalk improvements were completed during 

the fiscal year at a cost of $4,338,391.  The major projects completed were 
Building Renovations in the amount of $3,061,387, Landfill Parking lot at a 
cost of $752,248 and Sidewalk projects at a cost of $421,703.  

 
• Bridge I modifications and improvements project knows as “El Portal” was 

substantially completed and opened in January 2007.  The $22 million project 
is expected to be an economic catalyst for retail sales and tourism and at the 
same time assist with the revitalization of the downtown area.  The project 
consists of site and building demolition, a new bridge administration building, 
pedestrian bridge crossing, park pavilion building, outbound inspection 
station, and a market center building.  Site improvements include utility 
improvements, outdoor lighting, sidewalks, ramp, plaza, road improvements 
and landscape / irrigation improvements.  The project is located in the 
downtown area along the Gateway to Americas International Bridge.   

 
• Various project improvements were completed at the Laredo International 

Airport in the amount of $12 million including the reconstruction of runways 
along with and Engineered Materials Arresting System (EMAS) project.  
Projects were funded with Federal Aviation Administration Grants and the 
Laredo International Airport Fund. 

 
• Drainage and Utilities System improvements were completed in the amount of 

$2,335,836.  The Utilities system continues to expand due to the growth of 
the City and the system must be kept in order to meet the increase demand 
for services.   
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F
 

uture Major Initiatives 
 
Future projects that will be undertaken during the next fiscal year include: 
  
• Development of 88 acres of land across from the Laredo International Airport 

terminal on Loop 20 that will offer retail shops has began.  Completion of the 
project is expected in 2008.  

 
• Continuation of extensive park development, where the city addresses the 

quality of life issues.  The projects funded in the amount of $5,700,000 
include East Side Sports Complex, Eastwood Park, El Eden Recreation 
Center Phase II, Slaughter Park Phase II and a Baseball / Softball Sport 
Complex at TAMIU.   

 
• The City’s share of the West Laredo Corridor Project will be funded in the 

amount of $2,124,000.  West Laredo Corridor project will provide needed 
access and alleviate traffic congestion in the west side of Laredo.  This is a 
project that is been coordinated by the Texas Department of Transportation.   

 
• In the area of Public Safety, projects in the amount of $2,290,000 will be 

funded for a Police Substation, Fire / Law Enforcement Training Center and 
Fire Department headquarters building.  An additional $2,443,000 will be 
used to expand the Health Department Complex and a Branch Library. 

 
• Street and Drainage Improvements projects in the amount of $ 4,209,000 will 

fund the Del Mar Avenue widening project, River Road construction, 
Extension of Springfield Avenue and Laredo Street and Dellwood Subdivision 
Drainage Improvements.   

 
Cash management policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle during the 
year was invested in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and its agencies and 
instrumentalities and the Local Government Investment pools.  The maturities of 
the investments range from daily to two years with an average day to maturity of 
237 days.  The average yield on investments was 4.40 percent for the year.   
 
Risk management.  In January 1990, the City established a partial self-
insurance plan to provide medical coverage for its employees.  On October 1, 
1996, the City converted its Worker's Compensation Plan to a self-funded plan.  
Claims in excess of the self-insured retention amounts are covered through third 
party limited-coverage insurance policies.  The City has accruals for claims that 
have been incurred but not yet disbursed.  The total net assets as of September 
30, 2006, for the Health & Benefits Fund were $ 365,157.  The amount reflects 
an increase of $388,084 in Net Assets.  The total net assets for Risk 
Management were $1,492,037, an increase of $287,910 from the previous year.  
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Pension and other postemployment benefits. The City of Laredo sponsors a 
non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined single-employer (TMRS) defined 
benefit pension plan for its employees.  Each year, an independent actuary 
engaged by the pension plan calculates the amount of the annual contribution 
that the City of Laredo must make to the pension plan to ensure that the plan will 
be able to fully meet its obligations to retired employees on a timely basis.  As a 
matter of policy, the City of Laredo fully funds each year’s annual required 
contribution to the pension plan as determined by the actuary.  As a result of the 
City of Laredo’s conservative funding policy, the City of Laredo has partially 
funded 59.30 percent as of December 30, 2005.  The remaining un-funded 
amount is being systematically funded over 25 years as part of the annual 
required contribution calculated by the actuary. 
 
The City of Laredo also provides post-retirement health and dental care benefits 
for certain retirees and their dependents.  As of the end of the current fiscal year, 
there were 96 retired employees receiving these benefits, which are financed on 
a pay-as-you-go-basis.  GAAP currently does not require governments to report 
a liability in the financial statements in connection with an employer’s obligation 
to provide these benefits. 
 
Additional information on the City of Laredo’s pension arrangements and post-
employment benefits can be found in Note # 9 and 10 in the notes to the financial 
statements. 
 
Awards and Acknowledgements 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Laredo for its 
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2005.  This was the eighteenth consecutive year that the 
government has received this prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily readable and 
efficiently organized CAFR.  This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal 
requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe 
that our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its 
eligibility for another certificate.   
 
In addition, the government also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget 
Presentation Award for its fifteenth consecutive year.  In order to qualify for the 
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the government’s budget document 
was judged to be proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, 
a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device. 
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The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient 
and dedicated services of the entire staff of the finance department. We would 
like to express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted 
and contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit must also be given to the 
Mayor and the City Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest 
standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Laredo's finances. 

Respectfully submitted, 

&o-L Ow&- C a d  
Rosario ~amarilfo-cabello, 
Finance Director 
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Certificate of 
Achievement 
for Excellence 

in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

City of Laredo 
Texas 

For its Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 

September 30,2005 

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers 

Association of the United States and Canada to 
government units and public employee retirement 
systems whose comprehensive annual financial 

reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest 
standards in government accounting 

and financial reporting. 

President 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Laredo, Texas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Laredo, Texas, as of and for the year 
ended September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City of Laredo, Texas', management. Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; the provisions of Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and the provisions of the State of 
Texas Uniform Grant and Contract Management Standards (UGCMS). Those 
standards, OMB Circular A-133 and UGCMS, require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 
for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Laredo, Texas, as of September 30, 2006, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof 
and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Major 

MEMBER: AMERICAN INSTTTUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND TEXAS SOCIER OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Special Revenue Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards and UGCMS, we have also 
issued our report dated January 19, 2007 on our consideration of the City of 
Laredo, Texas', internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
UGCMS and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the other required 
supplementary information listed on the table of contents, are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We 
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the 
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information 
and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the City of Laredo, Texas' basic financial 
statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements, schedules listed in the table of contents and statistical 
section are also presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and UGCMS, and is also not a 
required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Laredo, Texas. The 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, schedules listed in 
the table of contents as well as the schedule of expenditures of federal and state 
awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The 
introductory section and statistical sections have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

January 19,2007 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

The City of Laredo’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader 
in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the City’s financial 
activity, (c) identify changes in the City’s financial position (its ability to address the next and 
subsequent years’ challenges), (d) identify any material deviations from the financial plan (the 
approved budget), and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns.  
 
This section of the City of Laredo’s annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis 
of the City’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended September 30, 2006.  We 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

• The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of this fiscal year by $596 
million (net assets).  Of this amount, $99 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to 
meet the Government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.   

• The City’s governmental net assets increased by $26 million while the business-type 
activities net assets increased by $14 million resulting in a $40 million increase in total 
net assets for the current fiscal year. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s Governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $85 million; an increase of $16.5 million from prior 
year.  At the City’s discretion, $67 million of these fund balances are unreserved, $6.5 
million are designated for debt service, and the remaining amount of $60.5 are available 
for spending.  These amounts are reported prior to GASB 34 conversion. 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance for the general fund was $21.1 million, 
or 20.7 percent of the total general fund expenditures.   

• The City’s bonded debt has a net increase of $7.7 million from prior year’s balance of 
$317 million.  During the current fiscal year, the City issued $17.3 million in certificate 
of obligation bonds and $8.9 million in revenue bonds.  The City also refunded $17.9 
million in General Obligation bonds.  

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This annual report consists of four parts-management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the 
basic financial statements, required supplemental information, and an option section that presents 
combining statements for non-major Governmental funds and internal service funds.  The basic 
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City. 
 

 The first two statements are Government-wide financial statements that provide both 
long-term and short-term information about the City’s overall financial status. 

 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of 
the City Government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the 
Governmental-wide statements. 

 The Governmental funds statements tell how General Government services like public 
safety were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. 

 Proprietary fund statements offer short-and long-term financial information about the 
activities the Government operates like a business, such as the Bridge, Transit and Water 
and Sewer funds. 
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 Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships as an 
example, the retirement plan for the City’s employees in which the City acts solely as a 
trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources above belong.  

 
                   Fund Statements  
 Government –Wide 

Statements 
Governmental         
Funds 

Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds 

SCOPE Entire City 
Government 
(except fiduciary 
funds) and the 
City’s component 
units 

The activities of 
the City that are 
not proprietary, 
such as police, fire, 
and parks 

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses: 
Bridge, Water, 
Sewer 

Instances in which 
the City is the 
trustee or agent for 
someone else’s 
resources i.e.: the 
retirement plan for 
City employees 

Required Financial 
Statements 

• Statement of 
net assets 

• Statement of 
activities 

• Balance sheet  
• Statement of 

Revenues and 
Expenditures, 
and changes in 
fund balances 

• Statement of 
net assets 

• Statement of 
Revenues 
expenses, and 
changes in net 
assets 

• Statement of 
Cash Flows 

• Statement of 
fiduciary net 
assets 

• Statement of 
changes in 
fiduciary net 
assets 

Accounting basis and 
measurement focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus 

Modified accrual 
accounting and 
current financial 
resources focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus 

Accrual accounting 
and economic 
resources focus 

Type of asset/liability 
information 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and 
capital, and short-
term and long-term 

Only assets 
expected to be used 
up and liabilities 
that come due 
during the year or 
soon thereafter; no 
capital assets 
included 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and capital 
and short-term and 
long-term 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
short-term and long-
term the City’s 
funds do not 
currently contain 
capital assets, 
although they can.  

Type of inflow/outflow 
information 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year, 
regardless of when 
cash is received or 
paid. 

Revenues for 
which cash is 
received during or 
soon after the year; 
expenditures when 
goods and services 
have been received 
and payment is due 
during the year or 
soon thereafter 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year; 
regardless of when 
cash is received or 
paid 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
the year, 
regardless when 
cash is received or 
paid 

 
 
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial 
statements and provide more detailed data.  The statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial 
statements.  Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate 
to one another.  In addition these required elements, we have included a section with combining 
statements that provide details about our non-major Governmental funds and internal service 
funds, each of which are added together and presented in single columns in the basic financial 
statements. 
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Figure A-1 
 

Required Components of the  
City of Laredo’s Basic Financial Report 

Management's Basic Required
Discussion Financial Supplemental

And Statements Information
Analysis

Government- Fund Notes 
Wide Financial To the

Financial Summaries Financial
Statements Statements

Summary Detail
 
 
Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the 
portion of the City Government they cover and the types of information they contain.  The 
remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the 
structure and contents of each of the financial statements. 
 
Government-wide Statements 
 
The Government-wide statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
City of Laredo’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  
 
The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets.  Overtime, increases and decreases in net 
assets may serve as a useful indicator of the City’s financial health or position. 

• Increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are indicators of whether its financial 
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

• To assess the overall health of the City consideration to non-financial factors such as 
changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City’s roads. 
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The Government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three activities: 
• Government activities-Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as the 

police, fire, parks, public works, health, library departments, and general administration.  
Sales taxes and property taxes, charges for services, and the state and federal grants 
finance most of these activities.   

• Business-type activities – The City charges fees to customers to help it cover its cost of 
certain services it provides.  The City’s Municipal Court operations and a portion of the 
Bridge revenues are included here. 

• Discretely Presented Component units – The City includes five other entities in its report.  
These entities are: Laredo Municipal Housing Corp., Laredo Municipal Transit System, 
Laredo Convention and Visitors’ Bureau, Laredo Firefighters’ Retirement System, and 
the Laredo Water Corporation.  Although legally separate, these “component units” are 
important because the City is financially accountable for them. 

 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most 
significant funds – not the City as a whole.  Funds are grouping or related accounts that the City 
uses to keep track of the specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. 
 

• Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants. 
• The City Council has established other funds to account for particular purposes or 

projects and or to show that it is properly using certain revenue sources. 
 
The City has three kinds of funds: 

• Governmental funds – Most of the City’s basic services are included in Governmental 
funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be 
converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available 
for spending.  Consequently, the Governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-
term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources 
that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs.  Because this 
information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the Government-wide 
statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the Governmental funds 
statements, or on the subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or differences) 
between them. 

• Proprietary funds – Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally 
reported in proprietary funds.  Proprietary funds, like the Government-wide statements, 
provide both long- and short-term financial information. 

• Fiduciary funds – The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employee’s pension plans.  
It is also responsible for other assets that – because of a trust arrangement can be used 
only for the trust beneficiaries.  The city is responsible for ensuring that the assets 
reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.  All of the City’s fiduciary 
activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of 
changes in fiduciary net assets.  We exclude these activities from the City’s Government-
wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance operations. 

 
Notes to the financial statements.  The Notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the Government-wide and fund financial statements.  

he notes to the financial statements follow the basic financial statements. T
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
  
Net Assets.  The City’s combined net assets totaled $596 million as of September 30, 2006.  
Analyzing the net assets and net expenses of the governmental and business-type activities 
separately, the business type activities net assets are $293 million and the government type 
activities are $303 million.  This analysis focuses on the net assets (Table A-1) and changes in 
general revenues (Table A-2) and significant expenses of the City’s governmental and business-
type activities. 
 
The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
building, equipment, improvements, construction in progress and infrastructure), less any debt 
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The City uses these capital assets to provide 
service to citizens; consequently these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the 
City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
Table A-1                                               City of Laredo’s Net Assets 

September 30, 2005 and 2006 
 

                   Governmental                             Business-Type 
                      Activities                           Activities                          Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Current and other assets 129,573,460$     117,091,934$   125,763,841$   127,142,082$   255,337,301$    244,234,016$    
Capital assets 398,364,860       371,595,625     314,464,636     291,577,561     712,829,496      663,173,186      
Unamortized Bond Costs 2,080,283           1,753,373         2,621,128         2,559,268         4,701,411         4,312,641         
  Total assets 530,018,603       490,440,932     442,849,605     421,278,911     972,868,208      911,719,843      

Current liabilities 31,967,135         36,567,851       20,599,346       18,715,168       52,566,481        55,283,019        
Non-current liabilities 195,178,787       177,309,869     128,663,632     122,826,513     323,842,419      300,136,382      
  Total liabilities 227,145,922       213,877,720     149,262,978     141,541,681     376,408,900      355,419,401      

Net Assets:
  Invested in capital assets,
     net of related debt 215,439,510       198,694,918     228,622,897     234,602,168     444,062,407      433,297,086      
  Restricted 42,590,216         34,889,245       10,970,742       11,147,151       53,560,958        46,036,396        
  Unrestricted 44,842,955         42,979,049       53,992,988       33,987,911       98,835,943        76,966,960        
      Total net assets 302,872,681$     276,563,212$   293,586,627$   279,737,230$   596,459,308$    556,300,442$    

 
 

 
An additional portion of the City’s net assets (53,560,958 or 9%) represents resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The City of Laredo has sufficient funds 
to meet requirements for cash outlays in the next fiscal year and has the financial capacity to 
meet its long-term obligations in the years to come.  The City’s policy has been to make 
reasonable and continuous efforts to fund all long-term liabilities. 
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Analysis of the City’s Operations 
 
The following table provides a summary of the City’s operations for the year ended September 
30, 2006.  Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $26 million, while Business-
Type activities increased by $14 million, overall the City’s Net Assets increased by $40 million.  
The City’s total revenues increased by 10 percent to $313 million in Fiscal Year 2006 (See Table 
A-2).  The largest revenue category was charges for services, which is composed for the most 
part of Administrative Fees from all departments.      
 
Total operating cost of all programs decreased by $12 million from prior year to $269 million. 
The most significant governmental expense for the City was in providing public safety, which 
incurred $82 million, a growth of $5 million over prior year.  These expenses were offset by 
revenues collected by a variety of sources such as property taxes and fines and forfeitures.  The 
most significant portion of the police activity is the cost of personnel, which is approximately $ 
31 million and the fire department with $ 28 million (both areas including benefits).   
    
Table A-2 
 
 

City of Laredo’s Changes in Net Assets 
September 30, 2005 and 2006 

 

                      Governmental                             Business-Type 
                         Activities                           Activities                          Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenues:
  Program revenues:
    Charges for services 57,884,577$       52,401,380$     104,764,392$   92,223,680$     162,648,969$    144,625,060$    
    Operating grants and -                    
       contributions 11,946,958         14,751,179       4,564,435         7,244,365         16,511,393        21,995,544        
    Capital grants and
       contributions 16,859,762         14,271,496       13,062,195       7,463,200         29,921,957        21,734,696        
General revenues:
  Sales tax 30,151,183         26,628,764       5,658,730         5,026,869         35,809,913        31,655,633        
  Property taxes 49,472,071         45,019,642       -                   -                    49,472,071        45,019,642        
  Other taxes 9,967,953           9,195,500         9,967,953         9,195,500         
Grants and contributions
  not restricted 5,235,856           4,497,007         5,235,856         4,497,007         
Other 3,378,779           6,245,582         197,293            (198,233)           3,576,072         6,047,349         
      Total revenue 184,897,139$     173,010,550$   128,247,045$   111,759,881$   313,144,184$    284,770,431$    
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                        Governmental                            Business-Type 
                           Activities                           Activities                          Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Expenses:
  General Government 17,637,852$       16,356,901$     17,637,852$      16,356,901$      
  Public Safety 81,993,355         76,682,946       81,993,355        76,682,946        
  Public Works 22,544,287         27,601,104       22,544,287        27,601,104        
  Health & Welfare 15,734,517         16,076,928       15,734,517        16,076,928        
  Culture & Recreation 14,770,220         19,304,006       14,770,220        19,304,006        
  Air Transportation 6,487,313           6,827,442         6,487,313         6,827,442         
  Interest & Other long - -                    -                    
    term debt 9,337,731           12,003,612       9,337,731         12,003,612        
  Bridge System 38,315,376       34,643,592       38,315,376        34,643,592        
  Solid Waste 13,559,190       14,685,053       13,559,190        14,685,053        
  Transit 14,075,828       13,473,604       14,075,828        13,473,604        
  Water System 20,607,390       16,888,416       20,607,390        16,888,416        
  Sewer System 12,733,207       10,903,372       12,733,207        10,903,372        
  Other Business -Types 1,001,793         15,217,862       1,001,793         15,217,862        
    Total expenses 168,505,275       174,852,939     100,292,784     105,811,899     268,798,059      280,664,838      
Inc (dec) in net assets
    before transfers 16,391,864         (1,842,389)        27,954,261       5,947,982         44,346,125        4,105,593         
Transfers 15,406,004         17,978,754       (15,406,004)      (17,978,754)      -                    -                    
Incr (Dec) in net assets 31,797,868         16,136,365       12,548,257       (12,030,772)      44,346,125        4,105,593         
Net assets, beginning 276,563,212       245,542,306     279,737,230     291,768,002     556,300,442      537,310,308      
Prior Period Adj. (5,488,399)         14,884,541       1,301,140         (4,187,259)        14,884,541        
Net assets, ending 302,872,681$     276,563,212$   293,586,627$   279,737,230$   596,459,308$    556,300,442$    

 
Graph 1 
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Graph 1 represents the cost of each of the City’s 7 largest programs as well as each of the 
programs revenue.  Net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental 
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aid) is also reflected for each program.  The net cost is the financial burden that was placed on 
the City’s taxpayers by each of these functions. 

• The cost of all Governmental activities this year was $169 million. 
• The amount that our citizens paid for these activities through City taxes and revenues 

such as interest earnings, franchise fees, and unrestricted grants was $114 million.  
• General Government (support services) comprised approximately 10.5% of total 

expenditures in Fiscal Year 2006; an increase of $1.3 million from prior year.  There 
were no significant increases in any one area, other than cost of living and merit.  

• Expenditures for Public Safety increased by $5.3 million from prior year to $82 million.  
This increase was due to increased personnel in Fire of $2.3 million and Police $1.9 
million.  

• 48.7% of all Governmental Activities expenditures were from public safety, 13.4% were 
from Public Works, and 10.5% went for general governmental activities (see Graph 3). 

• Public Works expenditures decreased by $5 million as compared to the previous year.  
The net decrease is due to the following:  an increase in operating expenditures of $3 
million and a decrease of $8 million due to GASB Statement 34 conversion.  The GASB 
34 conversion is due to a decrease in fixed assets activity as compared to the previous 
year.  The fixed asset conversion includes depreciation and capitalization of fixed assets.  

• Cultural and Recreational expenditures decreased by $4.5 million as compared to the 
previous year.  The net decrease is due to an increase in operating expenditures of $500 
thousand and a decrease of $5 million due to the GASB 34 Statement conversion.   The 
decrease is due to a decrease in fixed asset activity as compared to the previous year.   

• Business Type Activities transferred to Governmental Activities $15.4 million.  
• 29% of all Governmental Activities revenue came from charges for services, 25% from 

property taxes and 15% from sales taxes (see Graph 2). 
 
Graph 2 
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Business-type Activities 
 
Revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $128 million for the fiscal year ending 
September 30, 2006, an increase of $16.5 million from prior year.  There was an overall increase 
in Charges for Services of $12.5 million where the larger contributors to this increase were the 
Bridge System by $3.5 million, and Water & Sewer Systems by $7.7 million.  Operating Grants 
and Contributions decreased by $2.7 million largely due to the Water EPA grant.  Capital Grants 
and Contributions increased by $5.6 million over prior year due to Transit and Utility System 
increases.   
 
 Expenses for the City’s business-type activities were $100.2 million for the year, a $7.7 million 
increase from prior year.  (Refer to Table A-2).  The areas where these increases occurred are as 
follows: 

• $3.6 million increase in Bridge System; operational increases by $3.8 million and a 
decrease of $200 thousand in non-operational revenues i.e. interest expense and 
amortization of bond costs. 

• $3.7 million increase in Water Works System; operational expenses increased by $3.1 
million and an increase of $600,000 in non-operating expenses. 

• $1.8 million increase in operational expense for the Sewer System. 
• $1.4 million decrease in other business type expenses related mainly due to the Solid 

Waste Fund.  This decrease is a result of re-calculation and extended life of the Closure 
and Post Closure Costs. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, the City of Laredo uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Laredo is to provide information on near term 
inflows (current resources) outflows, and balances of available resources.  Such information is 
useful in assessing the City of Laredo’s financial requirements.  In particular, unreserved fund 
balances may serve as a useful measure of the Government’s net resources available for spending 
at the end of the fiscal year.  
 
As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$85.3 million, 24 percent increase from prior year.  Of the $85.3 million combined fund balance, 
$19 million is unreserved, $6.5 million debt service, and $34 million for capital projects, and $65 
thousand in restricted for endowment fund; the difference is invested in capital assets net of 
related debt. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Laredo.  At the end of the current 
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $19.4 million while total fund 
balance $21.1 million.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare 
both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Unreserved fund 
balance represents 19.1 percent total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance 
represents 20.7 percent of the same amount. 
 
During the current fiscal year, the City’s general fund balance increased by $6.8 million as 
compared to prior year.  Key factors in this growth are as follows: 
 

• As compared to prior year, an increase of $3.7 million in property taxes.  A growth in 
assessed valuations by 12.9% from prior year as well as the City’s high collection rate of 
96.5% has assisted the City in increasing tax revenues without having to increase the 
property tax rate.  

• An increase of $2.9 million in sales tax due to increased economic growth in the area as 
compared to prior year. 

• Compensated absences current liability, $2,709,227, was removed from the individual 
financial statements.   

• General Fund Expenditures increased by $6.7 million from prior year. Where most of the 
departments remained stable, minimal growth occurred in Public Safety by $4.8 million. 
Police Department’s expenditures increased by $2.1 million and Fire Department 
increased by $2.5 million; both areas of growth were attributed to increased personnel 
costs.  Another area of growth was general government by $1.1 million.  This growth was 
also mostly attributed to personnel growth. 

 
The Debt Service fund has a total fund balance of $6.5 million, all of which is designated for the 
payment of debt.  The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the debt service 
fund was $900 thousand dollars.   
 
 
 

 12



Proprietary funds.  The City of Laredo’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information 
found in the Government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.   
 
Unrestricted net assets of the Business – Type Activities at the end of the year totaled $53.9 
million.  The total net assets increased by $13.8 million to $294 million as compared to prior 
year.  The largest area of change is in the Waterworks System Fund due to results of operations 
produced a $7.06 million increase in net assets.  The increase can be further broken down into an 
operating income of $4.25 million and other non-operating revenues, net of expenses, of $2.81 
million.   Revenues increase due to a rate increase implemented during the current year and an 
increase in water consumption.  Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already 
been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
Overall, the City has not only maintained a 15% fund balance, but has also aggressively 
increased it to 20.7% in FY 2006.  Steadily and in spite of neighboring Mexican economic 
challenges, the City has been able to sustain and strengthen its economic condition.  Two 
examples of indicators that lead us to this position are:  property valuation growth which has 
increased from prior year by 13% as well as an increase of sales tax revenues increasing from 
prior year to 5%.  With appropriate planning and cautious financial spending, the City’s fund 
balance is $21,089,204 or 20.7% of operating expenditures as of September 30, 2006. 
 
Original Budget vs. Final Amended Budget: 
 
Revenues: 

• During the year, the General Fund budget was amended by increasing additional 
appropriations of $1.3 million.  This amended consisted of various border protection 
grants including $941 thousand for a State Homeland Security Operating Grant and $125 
thousand for a 911 Regional Communications Grant.  There were no other significant 
amendments to the original revenue budget for the year in General Fund.  

Expenditures: 
• The budget was amended to reflect additional appropriations of $1.3 million for various 

protection grants such as Homeland Security Grant and 911 Communications.  
 
Amended Budget as compared to Actual Expenditures: 
 
Revenues: 

• An overall revenue increase of $722 thousand as compared to the amended budget.  This 
slight increase had various attributes: 

o Increase in sales tax by $1,200,568. 
o Increase in franchise taxes, particularly electricity by $311,376. 

Expenses: 
• An overall decrease (savings) of expenses as compared to amended budget of $4.6 

million. 
o Police Department had savings of $1,483,780 as compared to budget. 
o Public Works had savings of $851,493 specifically in the division of “Special 

construction projects” and “Street Maintenance”. 
o Cultural & Recreational had savings of $557,872 overall. 
o All other departments of General Fund played a proactive role in limiting and 

restricting expenditures and ensuring that the City’s fund balance remain healthy. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
The City of Laredo investment in capital assets for its Governmental and Business-Type 
activities as of September 30, 2006 is $713 million (net of accumulated depreciation). The total 
increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $41.2 million net 
increase over prior year.  Additions to capital assets such as land and construction in progress the 
year totaled $18.4 million for governmental activities and $23 million for business type activities.  
Deletions of such items were immaterial for the year.  (Table A-3) Additional information about 
the City’s Capital Assets is presented in Note 8 to the financial statements. 

 
Table A-3 

City of Laredo 
(Net of Depreciation) 

                      Governmental                            Business-Type 
                         Activities                           Activities                          Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Land 52,949,887$       45,405,076$     30,723,677$     28,256,904$     83,673,564$      73,661,980$      
Buildings 100,874,890       102,662,892     43,267,062       40,340,435       144,141,952      143,003,327      
Machinery & Equipment 20,579,186         16,418,803       22,689,753       23,554,642       43,268,939        39,973,445        
Water Rights 0 0 17,045,672       14,756,178       17,045,672        14,756,178        
Improve'ts other than Bldg 204,167,475       204,621,607     156,503,614     156,997,009     360,671,089      361,618,616      
Construction in Progress 19,793,422         10,908,687       44,234,858       27,672,393       64,028,280        38,581,080        

Total 398,364,860$     380,017,065$   314,464,636$   291,577,561$   712,829,496$    671,594,626$    

 
Major capital asset events for during the current fiscal year included the following: 
  
Governmental 

• Various land acquisitions related to the Noise Abatement Project totaling $3.6 million, $1.9 
for the airport terminal noise barriers, and $500 thousand for a recreation center are among 
the larger land purchases. 

• New Airport Taxiways $5.6 million 
• Airport Arresting System $2.0 million. 
• Construction in Progress projects included various items such as the Colonias Project for $1.1 

million, South Laredo Fire Station $1.6 million and numerous drainage projects. 
Proprietary 

• Land acquisition for the future site of a Transit Fleet Facility.  The cost of the acquisition was 
$1.9 million. 

• Improvements to the Water and Waste Water Plants $2 million 
• Bridge II Widening in order to facilitate traffic flows of $800 thousand. 
• Rehabilitation of Bridge III $240 thousand 
• Construction in progress of $12 million of a $22 million project on renovations and 

improvements to International Bridge No. 1- El Portal. 
• Construction in progress of $4 million in Water and Waste Water projects including the 2.0 

MG TAMIU Tank.  
 
The Governmental activities consists of improvements to and / or construction of the City’s streets, 
parks and recreational facilities, police substations, fire protection facility, and airport improvements.  
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Contractual Obligation bonds and grant awards are the primary financing mechanism for these 
capital improvements. 
 
The Business Type activities consist of improvements to and/or construction of water and wastewater 
systems and international bridge improvements.  These projects are primarily funded by the transfer 
of enterprise revenues and the issuance of debt i.e.: Revenue Bonds. 

 
 
 
Long-term Debt 
 

The C
gener
rating
Stand  
Mood
Fitch

At year-end, the City had $318 million in outstanding bonds and other long term debt; an 
increase of $11.1 million over last year (See Table A-4).  More detailed information about the 
City’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 11 & 12 to the 
financial statements.   
 
New debt resulted mainly from a $17.32 million Combination 
Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation Series 2006, an $8.95 
million Waterworks & Sewer Systems Revenue Bond, $17.87 
million General Obligation Refunding Bond for the purpose of 
refunding outstanding obligations in order to restructure the 
City’s debt service requirement.  The issuance of long term debt 
was to finance various projects including various Police and Fire Buildin
streets, drainage improvements, various park improvements, water transm
purchases of machinery / equipment along with refunding of various issues.
 

 
Table A-4 

City of Laredo’s Outstanding Debt 
 
 

                      Governmental                            Business-Type 
                         Activities                           Activities                 

2006 2005 2006 2005 20
General obligation bonds 72,200,000$       80,040,000$     -$                     -$                      72,$      
Certificates of obligation 69,585,000         58,930,000       -                       -                        69,        
Revenue bonds 35,165,000         36,205,000       98,574,969       90,484,703       133,      
Capital lease obligations 1,683,921           1,029,869         -                   -                    1,         
Compensated Absences 15,524,866         13,909,839       736,385            653,490            16,        
Notes payable 1,020,000           1,105,000         23,783,524       24,818,425       24,        

Total 195,178,787$     191,219,708$   123,094,878$   115,956,618$   318,$    

 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
  

The City Council considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 
Fund revenues for FY 06-07 are proposed to be $119,517,677 with a
year actual revenues and expenses are proposed equally to be $119
percent increase over prior year actual expenditures.  This growth 
demands on the City to enhance services provided to the general po

 15
Bond Ratings 
ity most recent 

al obligation bond 
s are the following: 
ard & Poor’s      A+
y’s                     A2 

                           A+
gs, repairs of existing 
ission lines, various 

   

         Total
06 2005
200,000 80,040,000$      
585,000 58,930,000        
739,969 126,689,703      
683,921 1,029,869         
261,251 14,563,329        
803,524 25,923,425        

273,665 307,176,326$     

2007 budget.  General 
 7 percent over prior 
,517,677 with a 17.3 
has caused additional 
pulation.  The City’s 



unemployment rate dropped to 4.6 percent as of September 30, 2006 compared to prior year’s 
5.0 percent.  This average places it slightly below the State average of 4.8 percent.   Building 
permit revenues, sales tax revenues and bridge toll revenues are areas which we use to 
measure the local economy.  These areas are showing growth and are good indicators of a 
stronger economy. 
 
 
 The total 2007-2008 consolidated budget appropriation is $393 million.  This represents an 
increase of $28 million or 7.9 percent over the 2005-2006 Original Budget.  The property tax 
rate for 2007 is .6370 per $100 valuation; the rate has remained the same for the last four 
consecutive years.  Assessed valuations for FY 06-07 were $8.4 billion which include $314 
million of new improvements a 5% growth over prior year with an estimated levy of $41.8 
million. Of the .6370 tax rate, 81 percent or .513745 cents are utilized for General Fund 
activities, the remaining 19 percent or .1232556 cents are used for Debt Service.  The 
General Fund’s portion of property tax revenue for FY 2007 is projected to be $41 million up 
$4.7 million compared to last year.  Sales tax revenues for the General Fund for fiscal year 
2007 are budgeted to be $26.6 million, an increase of $2.8 million as compared prior year’s 
actual numbers.   
 
A 2.5 percent cost of living increase was budgeted for all of the City of Laredo’s employees 
for FY 2006-07, with the exception of Fire & Police Safety in which a contract negotiated 
amount is applied.  In addition to the cost of living increase, employees are evaluated 
annually where an average of 3 percent merit increase is budgeted.  There are a total of 2,621 
full time equivalent positions with an estimated budget of $132.5 million. 
 
The City of Laredo will continue to work on various projects such as the revitalization of our 
downtown, a riverfront development of El Portal, the creation of new park spaces, and a 
beautification project among other projects.  These significant investments will help assure 
future fiscal stability for the City and its citizens. 

 
Requests for Information 
 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and    
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s 
accountability for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to 
the Office of the Finance Director, 1110 Houston Street, City of Laredo, Texas, 78042. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATEMENTOFNETASSETS 

September 30,2006 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: (Note 4) 
Cash 
Equity in Investment Pool 

lnvestments (Note 5) 
Receivable, net of allowances: 
Accrued lnterest 
Property Taxes, Penalty and lnterest 
Hotel-Motel Tax. Penalty and lnterest 
Accounts 
Notes 
Paving Assessments 

Internal Balances 
Due From Other Governments 
Inventory, at cost 
Prepaid Items 
Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Restricted Assets: (Note 7 )  

Investments (Note 5) 
Accrued lnterest 
Accounts 
Notes 
Due From Other Governments 

Capital Assets: (Note 8)  
Nondepreciable Assets: 
Land and Improvements 
Construction in Progress 
Depreciable Assets: 
Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Infrastructure 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs 
Total Non Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities ~ c t i v i t i e s ~  Total 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATEMENTOFNETASSETS 

September 30,2006 

LIABILITIES 

~ c c r u e d ~ a ~ e s  and Employee Benefits 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Compensated Absences (Note 11) 
Contracts Payable 
Customer and Tenant Deposits 
Due To Other Governments 
Due to Developers 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable $ 4,761,766 $ 3,396,927 $ 8,158,693 
Claims and Judgments Payable 2.924.510 2,924,510 
Retainaae Pavable 703.860 1,323,301 2.027.161 

2,007.990 573.768 2.581.758 
1, 

Unearned ~evenue 
General Obligation Bonds (Note 11) 
Certificates of Obligation (Note 11) 
Revenue Bond Payable (Note 11) 
Notes Pavable (Note 11 & 12) 
Capital ~ i a s e  obligation ( ~ o t e  11) 
Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Noncurrent portion of long term liabilities: 

General Obligation Bonds (Note 11) 72,200.000 72,200,000 
Certificates of Obligation (Note 11) 69,585,000 69,585,000 
Revenue Bonds Payable (Note 11 & 12) 35.165.000 98,574,969 133,739,969 
Notes Payable (Note 1 I & 12) 1,020,000 23,783,524 24,803,524 
Capital Lease Obligations (Note 11) 1,683.921 1,683,921 
Compensated Absences (Note 11 & 12) 15324.866 736.385 16,261.251 
Landfill Closure & Postclosure Costs (Note 12) 5,568,754 5,568,754 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 195,178.787 128,663,632 323,842,419 
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 227,145,922 $ 149,262,978 $ 376,408,900 

NET ASSETS 
Investments in Capital Assets. 

net of related debt $ 215,439310 228,622.897 444,062,407 
Restricted for: 
Debt Service 6,508,489 10,970.742 17,479,231 
Capital Projects 36,016,514 36,016,514 
Canseco Endowment Fund 

Nonexpendable 15,213 15,213 
~x~endab le  

Unrestricted 
TOTAL NET ASSETS 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 





September 30,2006 

OTHER TOTAL 
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL 

GENEWL SERWCE FUNDS FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Cash and Carh Equivalents: 

Cash S 8.708 622.568 631.276 
Equily in lnvestmenl Pool 107,683 32.537 161.515 301,735 

lnvestmenls 21.447.976 6,436,616 59,392.457 87,277,049 
Receivable, nel of allowances: 

A w e d  lntereal 130,380 39.336 1,059,935 1,229,651 
Pmpew Taxes. Penalty and lnterert (Note 6) 5,323,674 991.743 6915.617 
AWUIIIS (Note 6) 
Notes (Note 6) 
Paving Assessments (Nole 6) 

Due From Other Funds 
Due Fmm Other Gavemments 
Inventaly, st corl 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 
Aeco~nls Payable 
Retainage Payable 
AWNed Wages and Employee Benefits 
Compensated Absences 
Contacls Payable 
Customer and Tenant Deposils 
Due TO Omer ~ u n d s  
Due TO Omer Governments 
Due To Developen 
Uneamed Revenue 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUNDBAUNCES 
Fund Balancs: 

Resewed. 
Resewed for Encumbrances 
Resewed for Capital AcguiriUon 
Resewed for Chiidren's Programming 
ReEerved for Endowmenl Comus , 
Resewed for Washinglon Trip 
Resewed for Peg Fees 
Resewed forlime Warner 
ReJerved for DeMSewice 

Unre~ewed Reported In: 
General Fund 
Debt Sewice Fund 
Capilal Prajects 
S p d a l  Revenue Fund 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND 
BALANCES 

moun l s  reported for governmental activities in the statement of nel assets are differen1 because: 

Gapital B B ~ S  used tngovemmental actlvlttes are oolRoaocial rrswrees and, therefwe, are not 
reponed In the funds. 

other long-term arselr are no1 available to pay far current-petiod expenditures and, therelore, 
are de'em" in ,he fllndr . . . . . . . 

nlems rewee f.nosaro .rod oy managementto cnarge mecarts ol Reel management osr  
msnsgemrnl am nca th oeneU% la no u oLa hnue The oarew ano ao i a r o t  *e smrma 
~ e r ~ ~ c e i ~ n d r  are i c ~ d e d  n i h~go~e rnmcn~a  a n  r tes nine rcawmentolnct srrelr 

Long-term liabililier, including bonds payable. are no1 due and payable in the cumnt penad and 
therefore, are no1 reported in the funds. (Note 2) 

Net assets o f  governmental aclivltier 

The notes to the financial slatementr are in inlegral part of this nalemenl. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATEMENTOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended September 30,2006 

OTHER TOTAL 
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL 

GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS 

REVENUES: 

Taxes: 
Property 
Sales 
Franchise Fees 
Bingo Tax 
Alcoholic Beverage 
Hotel Motel 

Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental Revenues 
Charges for Services 
Fines 
Fees and Collections 
Rents 
Interest and Other 
Miscellaneous 
Contributions & Donations 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
General Government 
Public Safely 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
Cultural and Recreational 
Air Transpoltation Services 
Capital Outlay 
Debt Service: 
Principal Retirement 
Interest and Fiscal Expenditures 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Transfers In 
Issuance of Debt 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 
Transfers Out 
Capital Leases 
Sale of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 
Fund Balances-Beginning 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCES-ENDING 

The notes to the financial statements are integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended September 30,2006 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the 
statement of actlv tles tne cost of tnose assets 1s al ocated over the r est matea 
usefbl ves ana repotled as oepreclatlon expense Tn s 1s the amount by wn ch 
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. (Note 2) 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets 
(1.e.. sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net assets. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.0.. bonds, leases) provides current financial 
resoJrces to govemmenta f~nds.wh.le the repayment of tne pr nclpa of long-term 
debt consumes the CJrrent financ a resoLrces of governmenta f~nds  heother 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds 
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when 
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 
Statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the 
treatment of long-term debt and related items. (Note 2) 

Accrued interest expense recorded for entity-wide statements. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet 
management, risk management, and health and benefits to individual funds. 

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with 
governmental activities. 

Change in net asseb of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITYOF LAREDO. TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDiTURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUNDBALANCES.BUDGETANDACTUAL 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

Budgeted Amounts 

Ollglnal Final Actual Adjustments 

Actual 
Budget 
Basis 

REVENUES: 

Taxer 
Pmperty Taxes 
Penalty and Interest 
Alcohoiic BeveraOe 
Bingo Tax 
Sales and Use 

Franchise Fees 
Licenser and Permits 
inlergovemmental Revenuer 
Charges for Services 
Fine6 
Fees and Calledions 
interest and Other 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 

General Government 
Mayor and City Council 
Cily Manager 
internal Audit 
Real Estate 
Public Information Ofice 
Customer Service 
City Hall Maintenance 
Budget 
Municipal Court 
Building lnrpeciians 
City Anorney 
City Seuetav 
Eledions 
Tax O l c e  
Accounting 
Purchasing 
Payroll 
ACCOUII~S Payable 
Personnel and Civil SeNice 
Tmining 
Planning 
Sedion 112 
TeleeDmmuniations 
Cornrnunialions & Admin. Support 
Data Proeerring 

119,018 
(33.205) 
21.824 

(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 

Public Safety 
Police 
Police Civilians 
Autothen Grad Match 
911 Communications 
Twck Route Division 
c;,- , ,,- 
FIR - EMS Division 
Fire - EMS Trauma (Webb Co.) 
Fire Civilians 
Flre - Prevention & Anon 
Fire Atrpofl 
Fire - Training (In House) 
Fire - Training 
Fire Emergency Management 
Disaster Miligation Grant 
Homeland Security Grant 
Tralfic 
Street Lighting 

Public Works 
AdminisIration 
Engineering 
Street Maintenance 
Draning & Surveying 
Street COnltNCtion 

Street Cleaning 
Building Rehabilitation 
Warehouse 

Health and Welfare 
Thtrd-Parly Funding 
Hurticane Relief Effoflr 

Cultural and Recreational 
Parks 
Maintenance 
Forestry Grant 
Recreation 
Recreation Centerr 
Cemetery 
Library 
Center for Non-Profit Management 

Other 
Contributions 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenuer Over 
Expenditures 

GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUNOBALANCES-BUDGETANDACTUAL 
Year Ended September 30.2005 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Budget 

Orlglnal Final Actual Adjustments Bas15 

Variance 
POSItiVe 

(Negative) 

$ 4,571,139 4,475,225 9,839,861 11,230,452) 8,609,209 4,133,984 
(Continued) 



OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Transfen In: 
Narcotics Task Force 
Hotel Motel Fund 
Reweatton Fund 
Fire Training Facility 
Transit Syslem Fund 
W a l w r X s  F w d  
Bond Proceeds 

Transfers Out: 
Community Development 
AUto Then Task Force 
Health Fund 
Special Police Program 
Public Access Fund 
Pahr  Capital Grants Fund 
Communication Sydem Fund 

Sale of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
(USES) 

Excess (Deticiency) of Revenues and Other 
Sources Over Expenditures 
and Other User 

Fund Balancer at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjurtment 

FUND BALANCESAT END OF YEAR 

C i N O F  LAREDD. TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Budget 

Orlginal Flnal Actual Adlustmsnts Bas19 

The notes to the flnanclal statements are an Integral part of thls statement. 
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CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

LAREDO 
FIREFIGHTERS 
RETIREMENT 

SYSTEM 
PENSION AGENCY 

TRUST FUND FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 4) 
Equity in lnvestment Pool (Note 4) 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Investments, at Fair Market Value (Note 5) 
lnvestment with Fiscal Agent, at Fair Market Value (Note 5): 
Money Market Funds 
Domestic Corporate Bonds 
Domestic Stocks 
Foreign Money Market Funds 

Accounts Receivable (Note 6) 
Notes Receivable (Note 6) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 
Due To Other Funds 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

Held In Trust for Pension Benefits, Plan Participants, 
and Other Purposes $ 59,449,100 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

LAREDO 
FIREFIGHTERS 
RETIREMENT 

SYSTEM 
PENSION 

TRUST FUND 

ADDITIONS: 

Contributions: 
Employer contributions 
Plan members 
Other contributions 

Total Contributions 6,601,144 

Investment Earnings: 
Interest earnings and dividends 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair 

value of investments 
Gains (Loss) on sale of investment 

Total investment earnings 
Less: investment expense 

Net Investment Earnings 4,972,035 

TOTAL ADDITIONS 11,573,179 

DEDUCTIONS: 

Benefits 
Administrative Expenses 

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 2,619,325 

Change in Net Assets 8,953,854 

Net Assets - Beginning 50,495,246 

NET ASSETS - ENDING 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
September 30, 2006 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial 

Statements 

Fund Deficits 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Investments 

Receivables 

Restricted Assets for Enterprise Fund Types 

Capital Assets 

Retirement Plans 

Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits 

General Long-Term Obligations 

Proprietary Funds Long-Term Obligations 

lnterfund Receivable and Payables 

lnterfund Transfers 

Debt Service Requirements 

Construction and Improvement Commitments 

Fund Expenditures Exceeding Appropriations 

Risk Management 

Contingencies 

Prior Period Adjustment 

Donor Restricted Endowments 

Budget Basis Reporting 75 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

The accounting methods and procedures adopted by the City of Laredo, Texas conform 
to general accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities. The 
following notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the City's Basic 
Financial Statements. 

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Laredo, Texas (the City) is a municipal corporation incorporated under 
Article XI, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Texas (Home Rule Amendment). 
The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides a full 
range of municipal services as authorized by its charter. The services include public 
safety (police and fire), highways and streets, sanitation, health and social services, 
culture and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general 
administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates certain major activities 
including an airport, a transit system, water and sewer utility system, a landfill, and a 
bridge system. 

The City has defined its reporting entity in accordance with GASB 14, "The Financial 
Reporting Entity". The component units discussed below are included in the City's 
reporting entity because at least one of the following criteria are satisfied: the elected 
officials of the City are financially accountable for the entity, or the nature and 
significance of the relationship between the entity and the City are such that to exclude 
the entity from the reporting entity would render the financial statements misleading or 
incomplete. In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, the financial 
statements of the component units have been included in the financial reporting entity 
as blended components. 

The City Council is the governing board for Laredo Municipal Housing Corporation, 
Laredo Convention and Visitors' Bureau, Laredo Transit Management, lnc., and the 
Laredo Water Corporation. These entities are bound by the City's legal requirements 
and the City Council approves the budget, major contracts, surplus dispositions, and 
any fees or charges. Additionally, the City is legally responsible for debt and public 
service rendered within the City's boundaries. 

Laredo Municipal Housino Corporation The Laredo Municipal Housing Corporation 
(LMHC) was established in 1976 to acquire 74 duplexes from the Federal Government 
in an effort to alleviate the existing housing shortage and provide affordable rental 
housing to the citizens of Laredo. These units are known as the Jose A. Flores 
Apartments. In 1986 the LMHC had 64 additional rental units constructed, known as 
the Tomas Flores Apartments. The 210 rental properties (82 two-bedroom, 98 three- 
bedroom and 30 four-bedroom) must be maintained in a safe and habitable condition. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

In addition to the rental units, one duplex unit is being used as the Laredo Municipal 
Housing Corporation office. The Corporation provides the necessary materials and 
labor required for the repairs of each rental unit. Beautification efforts are also 
rendered with consistent grass and tree trimming and exterior painting of the duplexes. 
Staff also provides a physical inspection of rental units and implements a preventive 
maintenance program to curtail deterioration of the units. The Laredo Municipal 
Housing Corporation operations are reported as an enterprise fund. 

In 1999, LMHC finalized the construction of 50 3-bedroom houses, which were known 
as the Lease-Purchase Program. This program allowed qualified families to purchase 
the home, after three years of leasing it from LMHC at or near cost. As of 2003, this 
program came to an end with all tenants assuming mortgages 

Laredo Transit Manaaement. Inc. Under the authority of Revised Texas Civil Statues, 
Article 118(z) on September 8, 1987, created Laredo Municipal Transit System, The 
Laredo Municipal Transit System and "Mass Transit Board". The Laredo Transit 
Management, Inc. reports to the Mass Transit Board. L.M.T.S. is commonly referred to 
as El Metro. 

The primary function and purpose of Laredo Transit Management, Inc. is to operate, 
maintain, design, and construct a safe, reliable, cost effective and efficient public 
transportation system that will meet the changing needs of our community, while 
complying with applicable state and federal mandates, including the Texas Clean Air 
Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

Laredo Transit Management, Inc. provides both a fixed-route and a demand response 
para-transit program (El Lift). Currently, the fixed-route system is comprised of 22 
routes. The fixed route system has a total of 34 buses during a regular workday and 
Saturday peak period. The Laredo Transit Management, Inc. bus fleet is currently 
comprised of 47 buses and 2 trolleys. Thirty-eight buses operate using compressed 
natural gas. The El Lift program operates a total of 18 para-transit vans. Fifteen are 
utilized for a regular workday. 

Laredo Convention and Visitors' Bureau The Laredo Convention and Visitors' Bureau 
was established in April 1993 to engage in visitor promotion and to solicit and service 
conventions and other related group businesses generating overnight stays in the City, 
thereby enhancing and developing the economy of the city. In 2003, Laredo 
Convention and Visitor's Bureau contracted the Miss Texas Pageant to be performed in 
Laredo for the next 5 years. Laredo Convention and Visitors' Bureau operations are 
reported as special revenue funds. 

Laredo Firefishters' Retirement Svstem The Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System 
was created under the authority of Article 6243e -Texas Local Firefighters' Retirement 
Act enacted by the Legislature of the State of Texas. The act established the 
membership, benefits, credits and administration of certain retirement systems for 
volunteer or paid firefighters. The Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System administers 
the retirement system for the City of Laredo Firefighters employees and is included in 
the financial statements of the City as a component unit. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Laredo Water Comorafion The Laredo Water Corporation was created under the Texas 
Transportation Code 431.101 with the approval of the Laredo City Council. The 
corporation was organized for the purpose of acquiring and providing water for the use 
and benefit of the City including, without limitation, contracting for water use rights, 
constructing appropriate water storage, retention, distribution, and transportation 
facilities, and arranging and providing for the payment and financing of all of the 
foregoing, in the fulfillment of its public proposes and for carrying out its duties to 
provide such water as may be approved by the City from time to time. 

The Laredo Water Corporation is reported as an enterprise fund, 

Complete financial statements of the component units can be obtained from the City of 
Laredo, Financial Services Department offices: 

City of Laredo 
Financial Services Department 
P. 0. Box 579 
Laredo, TX 78042-0579 

B. Basis of Accounting 

The accounting and reporting policies of the City as reflected in the accompanying 
basic financial statements conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
for local governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The following 
represent the more significant accounting policies and practices of the City. 

Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary 
activities of the primary government and its component units. The effect of inter-fund 
activity has been removed from these statements. 

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business activities. Business-type activities 
rely to an extent on fees and charges for support. The primary government is reported 
separately for certain legally separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. 

Program Revenues and Direct Expenses - The Statement of Activities demonstrates 
the direct expenses of a given function or segments offset by program revenues. A 
direct expense is specifically associated with a service, program, or department and is 
clearly identifiable to a particular function. In the Statement of Activities, certain 
indirect expenses are reported in the program expenses. Program revenue derives 
directly from the program itself or from parties outside the reporting government's 
taxpayers or citizenry. Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

given City function or segment. Program revenues also include grants and 
contributions that are limited to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Taxes and other items not included among program revenue are 
reported as general revenue. 

Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are 
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. 
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based 
upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending 
activities are controlled. The City maintains the following fund types: 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City 
are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the City's expendable financial 
resources and the related current liabilities (except those, if any, which should be 
accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The 
measurement focus is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial 
position, rather than upon net income determination. The City maintains the following 
governmental fund types: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used 
to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts, or major capital 
projects) that are legally restricted or designated for specific functions and activities. 

Debt Service Fund -The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related 
costs. 

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial 
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other 
than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises -where the 
determination of net income, financial position, and cash flows are necessary or useful 
for sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be 
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provided either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or 
agencies primarily within the government (internal service funds). 

The City has adopted the following policy regarding proprietary activities under GASB 
Statement Number 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and 
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that (1) are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the 
intent of the City Council is that the cost (expenses including depreciation) of providing 
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges or (2) where the City Council has decided that periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and net income is appropriate 
for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other 
purposes. 

The City will apply all GASB pronouncements and all FASB Statements and 
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions and Accounting Research 
Bulletins (ARB) issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements and apply all FASB Statements and Interpretations, 
issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements. 

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing 
of goods or services provided by one City department or agency to other City 
departments or agencies or to other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a 
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governmental units, and other funds. 

Pension Trust Fund - This fund is accounted for in the same manner as proprietary 
funds with the measurement focus on determination of net income and capital 
maintenance. The City is custodian to funds contributed into the fund; funds are used 
toward annuity payments. The City has one pension fund: Firefighters Retirement 
System. 

Agency Funds - The Agency Funds are used to account for funds where the City's role 
is purely custodial. All assets reported in an agency fund are offset by a liability to the 
party on whose behalf they are held and do not involve measurement of results of 
operations. Currently, the City has three Agency funds: Annuity Fund, Payroll Clearing 
and Police Health and Benefits. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Economic resources 
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measurement focus reports all inflows, outflows, and balances affecting or reflecting an 
entity's net assets. Accrual basis accounting is the method that recognizes the 
financial effect of transactions, events, and inter-fund activities when they occur, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenues in the year for which they are levied while the organization recognizes grant 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements obligatory have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized when measurable and available. "Measurable" means that the amount 
of the transaction can be determined, and "available" means collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current 
period. The City considers property tax revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally 
recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund 
liability is incurred. An exception to this general rule is principal and interest on general 
long-term obligations, compensated absences, and claims and judgments which are 
recognized when due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and are recognized as revenues 
of the current fiscal period. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on 
behalf of the government are also recognized as revenue. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available when they are received. 

The City reports the following as major governmental funds: 

General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those require to be accounted for in another fund. 

Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the 
payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 

The City reports the following as major proprietary funds: 

Bridcle Svstem Fund is used to account for toll proceeds from four international bridges 
and the related operations, maintenance, and debt service. 

Water Works Svstem Fund is used to account for the operations, maintenance, and 
debt service from three water treatment plants and seventeen booster stations and the 
related revenue received from 61,722 customers. 

Sewer System Fund is used to account for the operations, maintenance, and debt 
service of the City's five sewage treatment plants and its related revenue received from 
58.796 customers. 

Solid Waste Fund is used to account for operations and maintenance of the municipal 
landfill, recycling center and construction of a new municipal landfill site. The major 
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source of revenues consists of garbage collection fees, landfill fees and federal and 
state mandates. 

Additionally, government-wide reports for proprietary funds include the following fund 
type: 

Internal Service Funds are used to provide fleet services to other funds, provide 
services associated with the City's partially self-funded health benefits program and 
provide services associated with the risk management for all city property including 
workman's compensation, to all funds on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

As a general rule, the effect of inter fund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments- 
in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the City's water and sewer functions and 
various other functions of government. 

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued after November 
30, 1989, are followed in both business-type activities and enterprise funds fund 
financial statements to the degree that those standards do not conflict with or disagree 
with the guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments 
have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected to 
follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Amounts reported as program revenue include 1) charges to customers or applicants 
for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 
3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated funds are reported as general 
revenues. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal operations. The 
principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and of the government's internal 
service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
government's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources 
as they are needed. 

C. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the operating budgets 
reflected in the basic financial statements: 
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(1) Sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the City Manager submits 
to the City Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1st. This 
budget is required to include expenditures by office, department, and agency and the 
means of financing them. Proposed short and long range capital expenditures and 
bonded debt requirements must also be included. 

(2) Public hearings are conducted at which all interested parties may comment 
concerning the proposed budget. 

(3) Council adopts the budget on or before the last day of the month of the fiscal year 
currently ending through passage of an appropriation ordinance and tax levy 
ordinance. If the City Council fails to adopt the budget at that time, the budget of the 
previous year is deemed to be adopted. 

(4) Annual appropriated budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund, Special 
Revenue Funds, Capital Project Funds, Debt Service Fund, Proprietary Fund Type 
Funds, and certain Trust and Agency Funds including Friends of the Library, Canseco 
Endowment Fund and Police Trust Fund. A comparison of budget to actual is 
presented in the Basic Financial Statements for the General Fund, Special Revenue 
Funds. and Debt Service Fund. 

(5) The City Charter identifies various allowable amendments to the budget after 
adoption. Supplemental Appropriations are allowed if the City Manager certifies that 
there are, available for appropriation, revenues in excess of those estimated in the 
budget and Council by ordinance and after a formal inquiry has established a need for 
the supplemental appropriation. Emergency Appropriations are allowed to meet a 
public emergency affecting life, health, property, or the public peace of the City through 
an emergency ordinance if there are available un-appropriated revenues. Decreases in 
the amount of appropriations are allowed if revenues available are insufficient to meet 
the amount appropriated. 

Transfer of Appropriations is allowed. Several supplementary appropriations were 
necessary during the year primarily to adjust the total budget for grants received from 
various federal and state agencies. 

(6) The City Council approval is required in order to transfer un-appropriated balances 
from one department, office, or agency to another. The City Manager has the authority, 
without City Council approval, to transfer appropriation balances from an expenditure 
account to another within a department, office, or agency of the City. The reported 
budgetary data has been revised for amendments authorized during the year. 

(7) Each appropriation, except those for capital expenditures, shall lapse at the close of 
the fiscal year to the extent it has not been expended or encumbered. Certain 
differences exist between the basis of accounting for budgetary purposes and that used 
for reporting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
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D. Encumbrances 

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed (executed) contracts for 
goods or services. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, 
and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve 
that portion of the applicable appropriation, is used in the governmental funds. 

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances 
since the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year and, accordingly, 
do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. 

For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at year-end except for that portion 
related to encumbered amounts. For financial purposes, the original budget also 
includes actual appropriation amounts automatically carried over from prior years to 
cover prior-year encumbrances. 

E. Equity in lnvestment Pool 

Cash balances of all City funds (except for the Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System) 
are pooled and invested. The Equity in lnvestment Pool consists of cash in bank 
accounts, which are pooled and allocated to all funds. lnvestments purchased with 
pooled cash consisting of lnvestment Pools, U.S. Government obligations, U.S. Agency 
obligations, and Mortgage Backed Securities are recorded at fair value in accordance 
with GASB Statement 31 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain lnvestments 
and for External lnvestment Pools and are classified as "lnvestments" in the 
accompanying combined balance sheet. Interest earned on investments purchased 
with pooled cash is allocated monthly to each participating fund based upon the fund's 
average month equity balance. Funds that incur a negative balance in equity in pooled 
investments are reclassified as Due to Other Funds in the financial statements and are 
not allocated any interest earnings or charged interest expense. 

F. lnvestments 

The City can legally invest in certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, 
obligations of the U.S. Government and its Agencies or instrumentality and State 
obligations all of which are recorded at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement 
31 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain lnvestment and for External 
lnvestment Pools. 

G. lnventories 

lnventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in first-out 
method, and the average cost method as appropriate. The costs of governmental fund- 
type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased. 
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H. Restricted Assets 

The International Toll Bridge System, Water System, and Sewer System revenue bond 
indentures require that, during the period the bonds are outstanding, the City must 
maintain certain separate accounts and funds to account for the proceeds from the 
issuance of the revenue bonds and the debt service deposits made from revenues. 
These restricted assets can be used only in accordance with the revenue bond 
indenture to pay the debt service payments on such bonds. 

I. Property, Plant, Equipment, and lnfrastructure 

Property, plant, and equipment owned by the City are stated at historical cost. 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred, and improvements, 
which extend the useful life of a capital asset, are capitalized. Currently, the City's 
policy has a threshold of $5,000 for equipment and $25,000 for infrastructure. The 
straight-line method is used to calculate the depreciation for all capital assets over the 
estimated useful life: 

Utility Funds: 

Plant 

Transmission and distribution system 

Other machinery and equipment 

All Other Funds: 

Buildings and improvements 

Machinery and equipment 

Vehicles 

Streets 

Bridges 

Airport runways 

Boat ramps 

Storm Drainage 

Landfill 

50 years 

25-50 years 

1 - 25 years 

45-50 years 

1 - 10 years 

6 years 

15-30 years 

20-35 years 

10 years 

30 years 

50 years 

5 years 

The City's lnfrastructure acquired prior to June 30, 1980, is included. When property, 
plant, and equipment are retired from service or otherwise disposed of, a gain or loss 
on disposal of assets is recognized. 

J. Net Assets 

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested 
in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the 
acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding back unspent 
proceeds. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations forced on 
their use either though enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external 
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or regulations of other governments. 
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K. Long-Term Obligations 

The City has issued combination tax and special revenue (water, sewer, paving 
assessments, hotel-motel, airport revenues, mass transit, parking system, and public 
property finance contractual obligations) certificates of obligation, which it intends to 
repay from a combination of revenues and property taxes. The City identifies the debt 
service requirements for all general obligation bonds and all combination tax and 
special revenue certificates of obligation and reduces the property tax levy by surplus 
revenues (if any) from the above-mentioned sources. GASB Statement 34 eliminates 
the presentation of the General Long Term Debt Account Group, but provides that 
these records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the Governmental 
Column in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. General obligation and all 
combination tax and special revenue certificate of obligation debt is recorded 
exclusively in the General Long Term Debt Account Group, and it is counted towards 
the legal debt limit of the City. 

Any proceeds from issuance of general obligation and combination certificates of 
obligation, which are used for construction of governmental capital assets are recorded 
as bond proceeds in the governmental funds. 

Any proceeds from issuance of combination of tax and special revenue certificates of 
obligation bonds which are to be used for construction of enterprise fund capital assets 
are recorded as bond proceeds in the General Fund and as contributions to the 
enterprise funds. In the enterprise fund the proceeds are recorded as "Contributions". 

Revenue bonds, which have been issued to fund capital projects of an Enterprise Fund 
and Special Revenue Fund, are to be repaid from net revenues of the Enterprise Funds 
and Sales Venue Sales Tax for the Special Revenue Fund. Such debt is recorded in 
the Enterprise Funds. 

L. Compensated Absences 

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave hours at varying rates based on 
the number of years employed. Employees are paid accumulated vacation hours up to 
a maximum of 480 hours upon termination or retirement. Sick leave hours are paid up 
to a maximum of 720 hours upon retirement. 

Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not expected to be 
liquidated with available financial resources are accounted for in the general long-term 
debt account group for internal purposes only. Accumulated vacation leave of 
enterprise funds are recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the benefits 
accrue to employees. No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to 
receive sick pay benefits except as noted above. 
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M. Federal and State Grants and Entitlements 

Grants and entitlements may be accounted for within any of the three fund types. The 
purpose and requirements of each grant or entitlement are carefully analyzed to 
determine the proper fund type in which to record the related transactions. Grants and 
entitlements received for purposes normally financed through a particular fund type 
may be accounted for in that fund type provided that applicable legal restrictions can be 
appropriately satisfied. 

Capital grants restricted for capital acquisitions or construction projects are accounted 
for in the applicable Capital Project Funds. Revenues received for operating or for 
capital expenditure purposes of Enterprise Funds are recognized in the applicable 
Enterprise Fund. 

In prior years, capital contributions, including capital grants received for capital 
purchases, were recorded as a direct addition to the contributed capital equity account 
for Proprietary Funds. Beginning in fiscal year 2001, GASB 33 requires contributions 
of capital grants to be recorded as revenue in the Statement of Revenue, Expense, and 
Changes for Fund Net Assets for Proprietary Funds. 

N. Interfund Transactions 

Transactions between funds that would be treated as revenues, expenditures, or 
expenses if they involved organizations external to the governmental unit are 
accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses in the funds involved. 

Non-recurring or non-routine transfers of equity between funds are reported as 
additions to or deductions from the fund balance of governmental funds. All other 
legally authorized transfers are treated as transfers in the basic financial statements 
and are included in the results of operations of both governmental and proprietary 
funds. 

0. Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs 

Expenses related to the sale of revenue bonds are amortized over the life of the issue. 

P. Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash 
on hand, equity in the investment pool, and cash with fiscal agent. Governmental 
entities under GASB 9, as amended by GASB 34, paragraph 105, must use the direct 
method for Cash Flow presentation. 

The accounting methods and procedures adopted by the City of Laredo, Texas conform 
to generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities. The 
following notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the City's Basic 
Financial Statements. 
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NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the government-wide statement of net assets 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance- 
total governmental funds and net assets-governmental activities as reported in the 
government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains 
that "long-term liabilities include bonds payable, which are not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds." The details of this 
$1 85,331,608 difference are as follows: 

Bonds, notes payable, and capital leases $195,879,870 
Accrued interest 1,328,183 
Deferred revenue (24,964,394) 
Compensated absences 15,524,866 
Elimination of lnterfund activity (2,436,9171 
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental 
funds to arrive at net assets-governmental activities $385.331.608 

6. Explanation of certain differences between governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide 
statements of activities 

An element of the reconciliation states that "the issuance of long-term debt provides 
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal 
of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds 
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is 
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of 
activities." The details of this minus $1,372,871 difference are as follows: 

Debt issued: 
Bond & Capital lease proceeds 
Repayments: 
General obligation bond 
Capital lease 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund 
balances-total governmental funds to arrive at 
changes in net assets of governmental activities $11.372.8711 

An element of the reconciliation states that for governmental funds, capital outlay 
should be reported as expenditures. In the statement of activities, "the cost of these 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense." The amount of capital outlays exceeding depreciation in this fiscal year were 
$29,349,495. The details of this are as follows: 
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Assets that were purchased and capitalized in the current year $36,551,887 
Prior Period Adjustment 11,019,218 
Current year depreciation 118.221 .610) 

Amount by which capital outlays exceed depreciation $29.349.495 

NOTE 3 - FUND DEFICITS 

The following is a list of the undesignated deficit fund balances in the Special Revenue 
Funds: Block Grants $1,273,915; Home Investment $332,456; Emergency Shelter 
$71,452; Health Fund $20,074; lnternational Airport $3,050,952; 91 1 Emergency 
Comm. Fund $1,000,312; Subdivision Trust Funds $3,762; and Capital Projects Funds: 
Webb County Colonias Project $1,747,072; Airport Construction Fund $798,003; Parks 
Capital Grants Fund $74,964; Capital Grants Fund $191,297. The deficit fund 
balances are equal to or less than the Reserve for Encumbrances balance that does 
not constitute expenditures or liabilities. The Reserve for Encumbrances constitutes 
purchase orders, contracts and other commitments entered into during fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2006. The deficits will be recovered through grant cost 
reimbursements and other revenues. 

International Airport Fund's deficit fund balance of $3,050,952 was due to the purchase 
of additional land and an increase in Dassenaer facilitv charoes designated for 
improvements. The deficit is expected to be recovered by nixt fiscal year. 

- 

Subdivision Trust Fund's deficit fund balance of $3,762 was due to a reduction in the 
fair market value. The deficit is expected to be recovered by next fiscal year. 

NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The monetary assets of the City are held in various forms and accounts. These assets 
are described and presented in the basic financial statements in three groups. 

One group is described as "Cash and Cash Equivalents". This group is characterized 
as having high liquidity with little market risk and includes cash in bank accounts, petty 
cash and change funds. Another group is disclosed as Equity in Investment Pool and 
consists of cash in bank accounts. The third group of monetary assets is presented in 
the basic financial statements as "Investments". Cash balances of all City funds 
(except for the Laredo Firefighters Retirement System) are pooled and invested. All 
securities are reported at fair value in order to comply with GASB Statement 31 - 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for External lnvestment Pools. lnvestments with a 
remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year of less are reported at amortized 
cost. The net increase in the fair value of the securities was $200,579 for the City of 
Laredo and a net increase of $976,263 for the Laredo Firefighters Retirement System. 

As of September 30, 2006, cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following: 
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Petty Cash and Change Fund 
Equity in Investment Pool 
Cash in Other Bank Accounts 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 

Custodial credit risk - deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event 
of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. The City's deposit policy 
is in compliance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2257 - "Collateral for Public 
Funds". All deposits were covered by federal depository insurance up to $100,000 and 
collateralized with eligible securities in amounts of at least 102% of the book value of 
deposits. As of September 30, 2006, the book value of all the City's deposits was 
$2,297,086. Deposits were properly secured at all times during the fiscal year. All 
collateral securities were held by a third party in the City's name and were not exposed 
to custodial credit risk. 

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENTS 

The City, as per the "Public Funds Investment Act" of the State of Texas, is authorized 
to invest in obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities; direct 
obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities; other obligations 
which are unconditionally guarantee by the State of Texas or United States; obligation 
of the States, agencies thereof, Counties, Cities, and other political subdivisions of any 
state having been rated as investment quality by a nationally recognized investment 
rating firm; Certificates of Deposits of state and national banks domiciled in Texas, 
guaranteed or insured by the Federal Depository Insurance or its successor; fully 
collateralized direct repurchase agreements with a defined termination date secured 
by obligations of the Untied Stated or its agencies; Banker's Acceptances that has a 
stated maturity of 270 days or less from the date of issuance; Commercial Paper that 
has a stated maturity of 270 days or less from date of issuance and rated not less than 
A-I or P-I or an equivalent rating; a no-load money market mutual fund that is 
registered with and regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, has a 
dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or fewer and includes in its 
investment objectives the maintenance of a stable net asset valued of $1 for each 
share; Investment Pools as long as the governing body of the City approved them by 
rule, order ordinance or resolution. The investments of the Pension Trust Fund, the 
Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System are governed by the Texas Local Fire Fighters' 
Retirement Act establishing the System. The act authorizes additional investment 
types which include corporate bonds, common stock and mutual funds. 

The investment and maturities at September 30, 2006, were as follows: 
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Investment Maturity in Years 
Non Maturity 

Fair Value Rated Less Than 1 1-3 
U. S. Agencies $ 82,284,210 - 68,209,669 14,074,541 

Mutual Funds 27,567,679 27,567,679 

Equities 30,754,687 30,754,687 

Managed Pools 129,752,313 129,752,313 129,752,313 
Total Investments $ 270,358,889 188,074,679 197,961,982 14,074,541 

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will 
decrease as a result of a rise in interest rates. The City's investment policy limits the 
maximum maturities exceeding two years to 25% of the total portfolio. The other 75% 
must, to the extent possible, be match with projected cash flow requirement. As of 
September 30, 2006, Treasury coupon securities totaling $19,058,917 had an average 
maturity of 1.37 years. All other investments had average maturity dates less than a 
year. 

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that the government will not be able to recover the 
value of its securities. As per the City's investment policy, all security dealers must be 
registered and certified with the Texas State Securities Board, National Association of 
Security Dealers, and Securities and Exchange Commission. It is the policy of the City 
to require full collaterization of all City funds on deposits with a depository bank. The 
City's policy states that al purchased securities shall be held in safekeeping by either 
the City, the City's account in a third-party financial institution, or the City's safekeeping 
account at its designated depository bank. 

As of September 30, 2006, the City invested in U. S. Agencies and Managed Pools. 
The credit ratings for our Managed Pool accounts are as follows: Lone Star lnvestment 
Pool "AAAm", Municipal Investor Services Co. "Aaa", and TexPool "AAAm". The City 
also invested in Federal Agency Coupon Securities and Treasury Coupon Securities. 
The Federal Agency Coupon Securities were invested in Federal Farm Credit Bank 
Notes and Federal Home Loan Bank. 

The Laredo Firefighters' Retirement System as per their investment policy is allowed to 
investment in other types of investments such as mutual funds and common stock. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. The risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a 
government's investment in a single issuer. As per the City's investment policy, no 
more than 50% of the City's total investment portfolio will be invested in a single 
security type, with the exception of the U.S. Treasury. Of the total City's investments, 
6% were invested in Federal Farm Credit Bank Notes and 32% in Federal Home Loan 
bank Notes the other 62% were investment in Local Government Investment Pools. Of 
the Firefighters' Retirement System investments, 48% was invested in mutual funds 
and 52% in equities. 
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Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment security, custodial credit risk is the risk that in 
the event of a failure of the counterparty the City will not be able to recover the value of 
its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 
As of September 30, 2006, the City had no repurchase agreements. The City's 
investment policy dictates that a third party financial institution, designated by the City, 
shall be the holder of the City's investment securities. The Firefighters' Retirement 
System has also designated a third party selected by the system as the safekeeping 
institution for its securities. 

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES 

The City's property tax is levied each October I st on the assessed value listed on the 
tax roll as of the prior January 1st for all real and personal property located in the City. 
The City Charter stipulates that taxes shall become due on October 1st of the year of 
levy and shall be paid by the following January 31st. All real and personal property in 
the City on January 1st each year will be subject to lien from that date for taxes due 
thereon. The adjusted assessed value for the tax roll as of January 1, 2005, upon which 
the 2005 levy was based, was $7,449,143,814. 

The appraisal of property within the City is the responsibility of the Webb County 
Appraisal District. The Appraisal District is required under the Property Tax Code to 
assess all property within the Appraisal District on the basis of 100% of its market 
value. The value of property within the Appraisal District must be reviewed every three 
years; however, the City may, at its own expense, require more frequent reviews of 
appraised value. The Webb County Appraisal District has chosen to review the value 
of property every year. Under this legislation, the City continues to set tax rates on 
property within the City limits. However, if the effective tax rate exceeds the rate for the 
previous year by more than 8% qualified voters of the City may petition for an election 
to determine whether to limit the tax rate to no more than 8% above the effective tax 
rate of the previous year. 

The City is permitted by Article II, Section 5 of the State of Texas Constitution to levy 
taxes up to $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation for general governmental services; 
including the payment of principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt. 
Under the 1981 City Charter, the City's power of taxation is restricted to State statutes. 
The City Council has considered $1.50 as the maximum tax per $100 assessed 
valuation. City Charter Section 6.13, as amended in November 1995, limits the total 
overall outstanding debt to 10% of the total assessed valuation of the City. 

The tax rate to finance general governmental services including the payment and 
interest on long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 2006 was $.637000 per 
$100 of assessed valuation ($.512019 for general government and $.I24981 for debt 
service). Thus, the City has a tax margin of approximately $.863000 per $100, and 
could levy approximately $64,286,111 in additional taxes per year from the present 
assessed valuation of $7,449,143,814 before the limit is reached. Because of 
limitations imposed by state law, cases in which accumulated taxes exceed property 
value, other problems in tax collection and because of the possible uncollectibility of 
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certain other accounts receivable, allowances have been provided for uncollectible 
accounts resulting in only the net collectible amounts being reflected in the balance 
sheet. 

The allowances for uncollectible accounts for taxes and other receivables as of 
September 30, 2006 are reflected in the following table: 

Other 
Governmental 

Receivables: 
General Types Proprietary Fiduciary Total 

Property Taxes $ 5,649,925 992,877 - 6,642,802 
HotelIMotel Taxes 2,864 - 2,864 
Accounts 7,684,986 3,631,530 8,708,990 37,200 20,062,706 
Notes 13,769,443 1,009,794 103,522 14,882,759 
Paving Assessments 523,937 523,937 

Gross Receivables 13,334,911 18,920,651 9,718,784 140,722 42,115,068 
Less Allowance For 
Uncollectible (3,012,595) (3,296,346) (3,227,923) (9,536,864) 

Net Receivables $ 10,322,316 15,624,305 6,490,861 140,722 32,578,204 

NOTE 7 - RESTRICTED ASSETS FOR ENTERPRISE FUND TYPES 

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set 
aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet 
because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. 

The "revenue bond retirement reserve" is used to report resources set aside to make 
up potential future deficiencies in the revenue bond current debt service account. The 
"revenue bond contingency" is used to report resources set aside to subsidize potential 
deficiencies from the enterprise fund's operation that could adversely affect debt 
service payments. The "construction account" is used to report those proceeds of bond 
issuance that are restricted for use in construction. The "water rights" account is used 
to report revenue received through water availability charges. 
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The following table summarizes restricted assets by purpose as of September 30, 
2006: 

Solid 
Transit Bridge Waterworks Sewer Waste 
SvJtem Sysem sy&!ll Manacrement TDtal 

Revenue Bond 
Retirement 
Reserve $ 5.804.972 1,612,117 980,734 6,397,623 

Revenue Bond 
Contingency 

Construction 
Account 4.781.062 8,601,880 21,753,629 16,363,877 7.714.771 59,215.41 9 

Water Rights 12.798.862 12,798,862 

Total Restricted 
Assets $ 4,781.062 14,906,852 37,489.913 18,092.424 7.714.771 82.985.022 

NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows: 

A - Governmental Activities: 

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in Progress 
Total Capital Assets, Not Being 
Depreciated 
Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Buildings 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Total Assets Being Depreciated 
Less Accumulated Depreciation For: 
Buildings 
lmprovements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Total Accumulated Depreciation 
Total Caoital Assets. Beino 

Balance as of Balance as of 
September 30, Deletions September 30, 

2005 Additions and Transfers 2006 

- 
~epreciited, Net ' 323,703,302 1,549,144 369,103 325,621,549 
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, 
Net $ 380,017,065 18,336,928 10,867 396,364,860 
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B - Business Type Activities: 

Balance as of Deletions Balance as of 
September 30. Additions and Transfers September 30, 

2005 2006 
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: 
Land $ 28,256,904 2,192,824 273,949 30,723,677 
Construction in Progress 27,672,393 22,332,785 (5,770,320) 44,234,858 
Waterrights 14,756,178 2,289,494 17,045,672 

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 70,685,475 26,815,103 (5,496,371) 92,004,207 

Capital Assets Being Depreciated: 
Buildings 56,907,672 - 4,210,603 61,118,275 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 248,947,723 7,783,155 1,260,770 257,991,648 
Machinery and Equipment 53,205,579 4,239,658 (1,635,382) 55,809,855 
Total Assets Being Depreciated 359,060,974 12,022,813 3,835,991 374,919,778 

Less Accumulated Depreciation For: 
Buildings (16,567,237) (1,283,976) (17,851,213) 
Improvements Other Than Buildings (91,950,714) (9,537,320) (101,488,034) 
Machmery and Equ pment (29,650.937) (4,965,628) 1,516.463 (33,120,102) 
Total Accumulated Deprec~at~on (138,468,888) (15,806 924) 1,516,463 (1 52,459.349) 
Total Capltal Assets Belng Depreclated, Net 220,892.086 (3,784,111) 5,352,454 222,460,429 

Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 291,577,561 23,030,992 (143,917) 314,464,636 

Depreciation expense was charged to functionslprogram of the primary government as 
follows: 

Government Activities: 
General Government $ 758,923 
Public Health 317,309 
Culture and Recreational 437,003 
Public Works 11,974,297 
Public Safety 2,758.388 
Air Transportation 1,986,557 
Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are 

charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 61,818 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Solid Waste Management 
Municipal Transit System 
Bridge System 
Wateworks System 
Sewer System 
Other Enterprise Funds 

Total depreciation expense-business-type activities 
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS 

The City provides benefits for all of its full-time employees (except for firefighters) 
through a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide 
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one of 81 1 administered by TMRS, an 
agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. 

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, 
and the City-financed monetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan began, the 
City granted monetary credits for services rendered before the plan began using a 
theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been contributed by the 
employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan. Monetary credits for service 
since the plan began are a percentage (loo%, 150%, or 200%) of the employee's 
accumulated contributions. In addition, the City can grant, as often as annually, 
another type of monetary credit referred to as an updated service credit which is a 
theoretical amount which, when added to the employee's accumulated contributions 
and the monetary credits for service since the plan began, would be the total monetary 
credits and employee contributions accumulated with interest if the current employee 
contribution rate and City matching percent had always been in existence and if the 
employee's salary had always been the average of his salary in the last three years 
that are one year before the effective date. At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if 
the sum of the employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the employer- 
financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. 

Deposit Rate: 7% 
Matching Ratio (City to Employee) 2 t o 1  
A member is vested after 5 years 

Members can retire at certain ages, based on the years of service with the City. 
The Service Retirement Eligibilities for the city are: 5 yrslage 60, 20-yrslany age. 

Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determines the City 
contribution rate. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior 
service contribution rate, both of which are calculated to be a level percent of payroll 
from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently accruing 
monetary credits due to the City matching percent, which are the obligation of the City 
as of an employee's retirement date, not at the time the employee's contributions are 
made. The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent of payroll 
necessary to satisfy the obligation of the City to each employee at the time hislher 
retirement becomes effective. The prior service contribution rate amortizes the 
unfunded (over-funded) actuarial liability (asset) over the remainder of the plan's 25- 
year amortization period. The unit credit actuarial cost method is used for determining 
the City contribution rate. Both the employees and the City make contributions 
monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary 
purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for 
the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect. (1.e. December 31, 2005 
valuation is effective for rate beginning January 2007). 
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SCHEDULE OF ACTUARIAL LIABILITIES AND FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/00 12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31 104 12/31/05 

Actuarial Value of Assets $ 57.214.578 65,263,038 71,378.360 83,134,944 93,220,964 104,886,750 

Actuarial Accrued Liability 82,609,247 92,117,721 100,308,824 143,268,763 159,858,885 176,834.192 
Percentage Funded 69.26% 70.85% 71.20% 58.03% 58.31% 59.30% 
Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability (UAAL) 25,394,669 26,854,683 28,930,464 60,133,819 66,637,921 71,947,442 

Annual Covered Payroll 48,412,432 52,328,408 53,281,587 57,825,500 59,429,800 66,500,972 

UAAL as a percentage of 
covered Payroll 52.45% 51.32% 54.32% 103.90% 112.13% 108.2% 
Annual Pension Cost: 
Annual Required 
Contribution (ARC) 4,613,519 5,130,863 5,573,578 7,853,449 9,637,803 10,609,392 
Less Contributions Made 
at the end of the period 4,613,519 5,130,863 5,573,578 7,853,449 9,637.803 10,609,392 
Net Pension Obligation $ - - - 

P 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Actuarial Cost Method - 
Amortization Method- 
Remaining Amortization Period- 
Asset Valuation Method- 

Investment Rate of Return- 
Projected Salary Increases 
Includes Inflation At 
Cost-of-Living Adjustments- 

Unit Credit 
Level Percent of Payroll 
25 Years - Open Period 
Amortized Cost (To accurately reflect 
the requirements of the GASB Stmt, No. 
25, paragraphs 36e and 138) 
7% 
None 
3.5% 
None 

The City of Laredo is one of 81 1 municipalities having the benefit plan administered by 
TMRS. Each of the 811 municipalities has an annual, individual actuarial valuation 
performed. All assumptions of the December 31, 2005 valuations are contained in the 
2005 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, a copy of which may be obtained 
by writing to P. 0. Box 149153, Austin TX 78714-9153. 

Laredo Firefiahters' Retirement System Required Supplemental Information 
Disclosures in Accordance with GASB Statement No. 27 

Actuarial Update as of  March 31, 2004 

The Financial Statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
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The Board of Trustees of the Laredo Firefighters Retirement System is the 
administrator of a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. The Laredo 
Firefighters Retirement System is considered part of the City of Laredo financial 
reporting entity and is included in the City's financial reports as a pension trust fund. 

The Laredo Firefighters Retirement System covers the firefighters in the Laredo Fire 
Department. The table below summarizes the membership of the System reflected in 
the actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2004, which is performed every two years. 

.~ - ~ 

a. Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and terminated employees 
entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 98 

b. Current Employees: 
i. Vested 53 . . . . . . . - 
ii. Non-vested 

c. Total 

The Laredo Firefighters Retirement System provides service retirement, death, 
disability, and withdrawal benefits. These benefits vest after 20 years of credited 
service. Employees may retire at age 50 with 20 years of service. The Plan effective 
August I, 2003 (in effect on the March 31, 2004 valuation date) provides a monthly 
normal service retirement benefit, payable in a Joint and Two-Thirds to Spouse form of 
annuity. The monthly benefit for firefighters hired prior to January 1, 1988 is equal to 
3.03% of Final Average Monthly Salary for each year of service. The monthly benefit 
for firefighters hired on or afler January 1, 1988 is equal to 2.88% of Final Average 
Monthly Salary for each year of service. 

There is no provision for automatic post retirement benefit increases. The System has 
the authority to provide, and has periodically in the past provided for, ad hoc post 
retirement benefit increases. The Texas Local Fire Fighters' Retirement Act (TLFFRA) 
authorizes the benefit provisions of this plan. TLFFRA provides the authority and 
procedure to amend benefit provisions. 

Contributions Required and Contributions Made 

The contribution provisions of this plan are authorized by TLFFRA. TLFFRA provides 
the authority and procedure to change the amount of contributions determined as a 
percentage of pay by each firefighter and a percentage of payroll by the city. While 
the contribution requirements are not actuarially determined, state law requires that 
each plan of benefits adopted by the System must be approved by an eligible actuary. 
The actuary certifies that the contribution commitment by the firefighters and the City 
provides an adequate financing arrangement. Using the entry age actuarial cost 
method the plan's normal cost contribution rate is determined as a percentage of 
payroll. The excess of the total contribution rate over the normal cost contributions rate 
is used to amortize the plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability, and the number of 
years needed to amortize the plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is determined 
using an open, level percentage of payroll method. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The costs of administering the plan are financed from the trust. For the Plan effective 
August 1, 2003, (Plan effective March 31, 2004), the funding policy of the Laredo 
Firefighters Retirement System requires contributions equal to 14% of pay by the 
firefighters. Effective April 1, 2003, required contributions by the City of Laredo were 
16.02% of pay for each firefighter hired before January 1, 1988 and 14.57% of pay for 
each firefighter hired on or after January 1, 1988. Effective April 1, 2004, required 
contributions by the City of Laredo were 17.02% of pay for each firefighter hired before 
January 1, 1988 and 15.57% of pay for each firefighter hired on or after January 1, 
1988. Effective April 1, 2005, required contributions by the City of Laredo were 17.65% 
for firefighters hired before January I ,  1988 and 16.20% for firefighters hired on or after 
January 1,1988. 

Annual Pension Cost 

For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2006, the City of Laredo's annual pension 
cost of $3,576,070 for the Laredo Firefighters Retirement System was equal to the 
City's required and actual contributions during the year. While the required 
contributions were not actuarially determined but were a fixed percentage, the plan 
benefits which was most recently amended effective as of August 1 ,2003 has been 
approved by the Board's actuary as having an adequate financing arrangement. The 
fixed city contributions are 16.02% effective April 1, 2003, 17.02% effective April 1, 
2004 and 17.65% effective April 1, 2005 for firefighters hired before January 1, 1988. 
For firefighters hired on or afler January 1, 1988; the fixed percentage is 14.57%, 
effective April 1, 2004, 15.57%, effective April 1, 2004, and 16.2% effective April 1, 
2005. The required contributions were reflected in the March 31, 2004 actuarial 
valuation, which satisfied the parameters of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 27. 

The entry age actuarial cost method was used, with the normal cost calculated as a 
level percentage of payroll. The actuarial value is equal to the expected actuarial value 
of assets adjusted by 40% of the difference between the actual market value and the 
expected actuarial value. The actuarial value is not more than 120% or less than 80% 
of the actual market value of assets. The actuarial assumptions included an investment 
return assumption of 7.75% per year (net of expenses), projected salary increases 
averaging 4.5% per year as a general salary increase and 1.7% per year as a 
promotion and longevity increase for a total averaging 6.2% per year based on 30-year 
career, and no postretirement cost-of-living adjustments. An inflation assumption of 4% 
per year is included in the investment return and salary increase assumptions. The 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is amortized with the excess of the total 
contribution rate over the normal cost rate. The number of years needed to amortize 
the UAAL is determined using an open, level percentage of payroll method; assuming 
that the payroll will increase 4.5% per year, and was 37 years as of March 31, 2004 
actuarial valuation based on the plan provisions effective August 1, 2003. 
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Trend Information 

Annual Pension Cost Percentaae of APC Net Pension ~~~ - ~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ - ~ - ~ ~  

Fiscal Year Ending (APC) ~ont lbu ted  Obligation 
0913011 998 $ 1,273,426 100% 
0913011999 1,417,590 100% 
0913012000 1.584.805 100% 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Entry Age UAAL as a 
Actuarial Unfunded AAL Percentage of 

Actuarial Actuarial Value Accrued (UAAL) Funded Annual Covered Covered 
Valuation of Assets (a) Liability (AAL) @-a) Ratio (alb) Payroll (c) Payroll 

Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Annual Contribution As a Annual Required Percentage of Required 
Plan Year Ended Percentage of Payroll Contribution Contribution Contributed 

0913011996 14.02% & 12.57% $ 1,033,636 100% 
0913011997 14.02% & 12.57% 1,132,840 100% 
0913011 998 14.02% & 12.57% 1,273.426 100% 
0913011999 14.02% & 12.57% 1,417,590 100% 
0913012000 14.02% & 12.57% 1,584,805 100% 
0913012001 14.02% & 12.57% 1,714,980 100% 
0913012002 15.02% & 13.57% 2,000,411 100% 
0913012003 16.02% & 14.57% 2,420,048 100% 
0913012004 17.02% & 15.57% 2,787,027 100% 
0913012005 17.65% & 16.20% 3,235,074 100% 
0913012006 17.65% & 16.20% $ 3,576,070 100% 

A copy of the financial and pension plan report may be obtained by writing to: Laredo 
Firefighters Retirement System, 5219 Tesoro Plaza, Laredo, TX 78041. 

NOTE 10 - POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS 

In addition to the pension benefits, the City provides postretirement health care benefits 
in accordance with State statutes to all employees who retire from the City at age 60 
and above with 5 years or more of service or with 20 or more years of service 
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regardless of age. Currently, 96 retirees meet those eligibility requirements. The City 
reimburses 80% of the amount of validated claims for medical and hospitalization costs 
incurred by pre-Medicare retirees and their dependants. Expenditures for 
postretirement health care benefits are recognized as retirees report claims and include 
a provision for estimated claims incurred but not yet reported to the City. During the 
year, expenditures of approximately $430,891 were recognized for postretirement 
health benefits of which $107,895 was received from the firemen's contribution. 

NOTE 11 - GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a summary of changes in the city's general long-term obligations for 
the year ended September 30,2006. 

G e n d  Certificates Capital 
Obligation of Rwmue Conpensated Lease Ndes 

Serial Bonds Obligation Bonds Absences Obligations Payable 
Lorg Term Liabilities: 

Retirements (25,705,000) (6,665,000) (1,040,000) (1,417,256) (945,948) @x'@J) 
Endrg Balances 72,200,000 69,585,000 35,165,000 15,524.a 1,683,920 1,M0,000 

Current Liatilities: 
Due Wthin One Year 7,490,000 6,665,000 I,'J@J,000 25,322 945,948 85000 
Total Liabilities $ 79,690,000 76,250,000 36,205,000 15,550,188 Z629,868 1,105,000 

7 

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund. 

Bonds payable as of September 30, 2006 are comprised of the following issues: 

A - General Obligation Serial Bonds 

$5,830,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1997 issued for the purpose of 
constructing and permanently equipping three fire stations; constructing, and installing 
and equipping a fire training tower and training facility, and other matters relating 
thereto. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2017 with interest varying from 
4.75% to 7.75% per annum. $ 565.000 

$43,050,000 1998 General Obligation Refunding Bonds issued for the purpose of 
refunding a portion of the City's outstanding tax supported debt in order to lower the 
overall debt service requirements of the City, and to pay cost of issuance of the Bonds. 
Principal is due in varying amounts through 2015 with interest varying from 4.00% to 
5.125% per annum. 35,545,000 

$4,590,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 issued to reduce the 
overall debt service requirements of the city. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2010 with interest varying from 2.00% to 3.00% interest per annum. $ 1,260,000 
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$24,455,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 issued for the purpose 
of refunding outstanding obligations in order to achieve a debt service savings and pay 
cost related to the issuance of the bonds. Principal is due in varying amounts through 
2021 with interest varying from 3.50% to 5.00% interest per annum. $ 24,455,000 

$17,865,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 issued for the purpose 
of refunding outstanding obligations in order to restructure the City's debt service 
requirements and achieve a debt service savings. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2013 with interest varying from 4.00°h to 5.00% per annum. 17.865.000 

Total General Obligation Bonds 

B - Certificates of Obligation 

$1,000,000 1992 Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Certificate of Obligation issued 
for the purpose of making airport improvements. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2013, with interest varying from 4.85% to 6.60% per annum. $ 480,000 

$2,040,000 1996 Combination Tax and Airport Revenues Certificates of Obligation 
issued for the purpose of acquiring land for the Laredo Municipal Airport. Principal is 
due on varying amounts through year 2011, with interest rates varying from 4.4% to 6% 
per annum. 865,000 

$2,860,000 Combination Tax and Watelworks System Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 1997-A, issued for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's 
contractual obligations for improvements and extension to the City's Watelworks 
system, and for the payment of legal, fiscal, and engineering fees in connection with this 
project. Principal is due in varying amounts though 2017 with interest varying from 
4.75% to 6.75% per annum. 275,000 

$3,660.000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation. Series 1997-6, 
issued for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the city's contractual obligations for 
the acquisition of trucks and related fire equipment; acquisition of equipment and 
improvement at the new main library; purchase of material recycling facility from 
Southern Sanitation Services, Inc.; and for the payment of legal, fiscal, architectural and 
engineering fees in connection with such projects. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2007 with interest varying from 4.25% to 7.25% per annum. 190,000 

$1,430,000 1998 Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Certificates of Obligation, for 
the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations for the 
purpose of acquiring land at the municipal airport in connection with the settlement of a 
lawsuit in reference to noise abatement at the City's Airport and for the payment of legal 
and fiscal fees in connection with this project. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2018 with interest from 4.60% to 7.00% per annum. 1,030,000 

$6,415,000 1998-A Combination Tax and Sewer Revenue Certificates of Obligations 
issued for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations for 
improvements and extensions to the City's Sewer System, and acquisition of land in 
connection therewith, and for the payment of legal, fiscal, and engineering fees in 
connection with this projects. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2018 with 
interest from 4.400% to 7.375% per annum. $ 1,775,000 
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$16,160,000 1998-8 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation for the 
purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations for the 
construction of drainage improvements; construction of street improvements and 
repairs; construction of a new Public Works Building, repairing and remodeling the 
Canizalez Gym, Old Library Building, and Municipal Court Building; acquisition of 
municipal vehicles and equipment for municipal departments, together with a Landfill 
Collection System, and the acquisition of land for a municipal landfill, and for the 
payment of legal, fiscal, architectural and engineering fees in connection with such 
projects. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2018 with interest from 4.40% to 
7.25% per annum. 

$1,050,000 1999 Combination Tax and Parking System Certificates of Obligation issued 
for the purpose of purchasing land for a parking lot and to pay costs of issuance. 
Principal is due in varying amounts through 2014, with interest varying between 3.75% 
through 5.20% per annum. 

$3,850,000 1999 Combination Tax and Watelworks System Certificates of Obligation 
issued for the purpose of expanding and improving the Watelworks System and to pay 
costs of issuance. Principal is due in varying amounts through 201 9 with interest varying 
between 3.70% through 5.35% per annum. 

$2,830,000 1999 Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds issued for the 
purpose of refunding a portion of the City's current outstanding indebtedness. Principal 
is due in varying amounts through 2014 with interest varying between 4.25% through 
5.40% per annum. 

$2,060,000 2000 Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Refunding Bond issued for the 
purpose of refunding the Airport indenture Obligation for release of land from indenture, 
and ordaining other matters relating thereto. Principal is due in varying amounts through 
2020 with interest from 5.10% to 7.00% per annum. 

$1,820,000 2000 Combination Tax and Sewer System Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations 
for the purposes of improving and extending the City's Sewer System, and the payment 
of legal and fiscal fees in connection with this project. Principal is due in varying 
amounts through 2020 with interest from 5.10% to 7.00% per annum. 

$2,485,000 2000 Combination Tax and Watelworks System Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations 
for the purpose of improving and extending the City's Watelworks System, and for the 
payment of legal and fiscal fees in connection with this project, and other matters 
relating thereto in connection with this project. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2020 with interest from 5.00% to 7.00% per annum. 

$9,365,000 2000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation issued for the 
purpose of constructing a new Municipal Court, constructing and improving the City's 
streets, the acquisition, design, and construction of the Inner City Park, and issuance 
expenses. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2021 with interest varying from 
5.25% to 5.375% per annum. 

$9,925,000 2002 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation issued for the 
purpose of acquiring downtown properties, a properiy known as Slaughter Farm, 
acquisition of land in northeast Laredo and land for the Fire Training and Law 
Enforcement Facility. Princi~al is due in varvino amounts through 2022 with interest . - 
varying from 3.25%io 5.00~h'~er annum. 
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$2,265,000 2002 Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations issued for the 
purpose of paying all or a portion of the issuer's contractual obligations to be incurred in 
connection with the acquisition or purchase of personal property. Principal is due in 
varying amounts through 2007 with interest varying from 2.0% to 2.9% per annum. 

$3,620,000 Combination Tax and Sewer System Revenue Certificates of Obligation, 
Series 2003 issued for the purpose of paying all or portion of the City's Contractual 
obligations for constructing, improving, and extending the City's Sewer System, and for 
the payment of legal, fiscal, and engineering fees in connection with this project. 
Principal is due in varying amounts through 2023, with interest varying from 3.40% to 
4.50% per annum. 

$2,795,000 Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2003 issued for the 
purpose of purchasing vehicle equipment, trucks, cars, trailers, fire department 
equipment. EMS equipment, boat ramps, sweepers, mowers, projector, studio lights, 
generators, testing equipment for toll system, street equipment, computers, related 
hardware and software, paint remover equipment, statement sorter, power sweepers. 
and issuance costs. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2008 with interest 
varying from 1.70% to 3.00% per annum. 

$3,510,000 Combination Tax and Watenvorks System Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation, Series 2003 for the purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's contractual 
obligations for the purpose of constructing drainage improvements, including pilot 
channel, constructing and equipping a fire station, for the payment of legal, fiscal, 
architectural and engineering fees in connection with this. Principal is due in varying 
amounts through 2023 with interest from 3.40% to 4.50% per annum. 

$13,535,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2004 for 
to purpose of paying street, parking, and landfill improvements, including costs of 
issuance. Principal is due in varying amounts through 2024 with interest from 3% to 5% 
per annum. 

$15,625,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2005 for 
the purpose of purchasing vehicles, and equipment for the Fire Department, purchasing 
vehicles for the Planning, Building and Public Works Department, acquiring and 
constructing a City communication system, making improvements to the City Health 
Clinic, acquiring land and equipment for and making improvements to municipal parks, 
acquiring land and preliminary design for various drainage projects, and for the payment 
of legal, fiscal, and engineering fees in connection with such projects; and paying the 
costs related to the issuance of the certificates. Principal is due in varying amounts 
through 2025 with interest from 3% to 5% per annum. 

$17,320,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 2006 for 
paying all or a portion of the City's Contractual Obligations for the purpose of 
constructing and equipping Police and Fire department improvements for substations, a 
training center and headquarters building, constructing, improving, repairing, and 
extending City streets, and providing for road improvements for Texas Department of 
Transportation projects together with drainage improvements and traffic and signal 
equipment and improvements, constructing and equipping improvements to City's 
Health complex, branch Library, and municipal parks, and for the payment of legal, 
fiscal, and engineering fees in connection with such projects. Principal is due in varying 
amounts through 2026 with interest from 4% to 4.5% per annum. 

Total Certificates of Obligation 
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The applicable bond ordinances for the aforementioned debt contain limitations and 
restrictions on annual debt service requirements and maintenance of and flow of 
monies through various restricted accounts as well as minimum amounts to be 
maintained in various sinking funds. 

The City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions 

C - Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

The City's Sales Tax Revenue Bonds are special obligations of the City and are 
collateralized by revenue from a % of 1% sales and use tax collected within the City's 
boundaries. Sales Tax Revenue Bonds as of September 30, 2006 consist of the 
following: 

$39,315,000 2001 Sports Venue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds issued for the purpose of 
financing a multipurpose sports and entertainment arena and related infrastructure, and 
issuance costs. Principal is due in valying amounts through 2018 with interest from 3.95% $ 2,855,000 
to 5.75% per annum. 

$33,550,000 2005 Sports Venue Sales Tax Revenue Improvement and Refunding Bonds 
issued for the purpose of acquiring and constructing additional parking for the 
multipurpose entertainment arena and refunding a portion of the City's outstanding Sports 
Venue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 in order to achieve a debt service savings 
and to pay costs related to the issuance of the bonds. Principal is due in varying amounts 33.350.000 
through 2024 with interest from 3.00% to 5.00% per annum. 

Total Sales Tax Revenue Bonds $36.205.000 

D - Capital Lease Obligations 

The City has entered into several lease-purchase agreements for various pieces of 
equipment. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes 
(titles transfer at the end of the lease terms) and, therefore, have been recorded at the 
present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception. 

$772,219 Ford Motor Credit Company for the purchase of thirty seven law enforcement 
vehicles for the Police Department. Payments are due in annual installments of $250,000 
for the first year and $189,468.03 for the remaining years including principal and interest 
through February 2007. Interest is at 4.36% per annum. $ 181,552 

$1,123,300 Philpott Motors for the purchase of forty seven law enforcement for the Police 
Department. Payments are due in annual installments of $325,000 for the first year and 
$284,940.56 for the remaining years including principal and interest through November 
2007. lnterest is at 3.5% per annum. 

$401,677 Motorola Corporation and Portable Computer Systems for the purchase of forty 
seven Mobile Data Terminals for the Police Department. Payments are due in annual 
installments of $110,527.81 including principal and interest through January 2009. lnterest 
is at 3.950% per annum. 307.016 

$1,600,000 Motorola Corporation for the purchase of 800 mhz radio communication system 
for the public safety and public service departments. Payments are due in annual 
installments of $400.000.00 through November 2009. Interest is at 0.00% per annum. $ 1,600,000 
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Total Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments 

Plus Amount Representing lnterest 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Asset: 
Automotive Equipment $ 2,353,718 
Machinery & Equipment 1.600.000 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 11,769,914) 
Total $ 2.183.804 

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum 
lease payments as of September 30, 2006, are as follows: 

Governmental 
Year Ending Sep. 30 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
Total minimum lease payments 
Less: amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 

- ~ ~~~~- 

Activities 
984,936 
795,468 
510.528 

Capital leases will be paid within the next four years, therefore only data for those 
years is shown. 

E - Notes Payable 

Section 108 Loan $1,700,000 Chase Manhattan Bank through HUD 108 Program 
for the restoration of the Hamilton Hotel into a 165 low and moderate income 
residential units. Principal is due annually with a variable interest rate between 
6.2013% and 6.4050%. $l=LK&@Q 

F - Refunding and Early Extinguishment 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 

On June I, 2006, the City of Laredo issued $17,865,000 in General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 with an average interest rate of 4.55% to advance 
refund the following: 

Average Principal Amount 
Bond Issue 

G.O. Ref. Bond, Series 1996 
lnterest Rate ~efunded 

4.43% $ 18.215.000 

The net proceeds of $18,098,687 (after payment of $210,020 in underwriting fees, 
insurance, and other issuance costs) plus an additional cash contribution of $538,208 
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for the 1996 Series G.O. bonds sinking funds monies were used to purchase 
government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust within 
an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1996 Series 
G.O. As a result, the 1996 G.O. refunding bonds are considered defeased and the 
liability for those bonds has been removed. 

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the 
net carrying amount of the old debt of $21,550,525. This difference, reported in the 
accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is being 
charged to operations through the year 2013 using the effective-interest method. The 
agency completed the advance refunding and its total debt service payments decrease 
over the next seven years by $1,060,307 and resulted in an economic gain (difference 
between the present value of the old and the new debt service payments) of $536,210. 

G - Prior-year Defeasance of Debt 

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing 
the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service 
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability of the 
defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements. As of September 
30, 2006, $25.085 million in bonds outstanding are considered defeased. 

NOTE 12 - PROPRIETARY FUNDS LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the City's 
Proprietary Funds for the year ended September 30, 2006: 

Revenue Note Landfill Compensated 
Bonds Pavable cost Absences 

Long Term Liabilities: 
Beginning Balances $ 90,484,703 24,818,425 6,869,894 653,490 
Additions 13,485,000 - 193,231 
Amortization of Deferred Charaes 324.266 1304.767) 
Retirements 

Ending Balances 

Current Liabilities: 
Due Within One Year 
Total Liabilities 

A - Bonds 

$1,700,000 1991 Subordinate Sewer Revenue Bonds with principal due in varying 
amounts through 2011, including interest at 5.5% per annum. $ 500,000 

$17,995,000 1996 International Toll Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bonds with 
principal due in varying amounts through year 2010, including interest at 4.00% to 
5.70% per annum. $ 3,915,000 
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$9,000,000 1999 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Bond with principal due 
in varying amounts through year 2019, including interest at 3.7% to 5.4% per 
annum. $ 

$12,105.000 2002 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Bond with principal 
due in varying amounts through year 2022, including interest at 4.0% to 5.0%. 

$2,095,000 2002A Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bond with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 201 1, including interest at 2.0% to 3.75%. 

$2,620,000 20026 Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bond with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 2011. including interest at 1.85% to 4.95%. 

$741,000 2002 Waterworks System Revenue Bond with principal due in varying 
amounts through year 2024, including interest at 3.3% to 5.9 % 

$710,000 2002 Sewer System Revenue Bond with principal due in varying amounts 
through year 2024, including interest at 3.3% to 5.9%. 

$5,935,000 2004 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Bond with principal due 
in varying amounts through year 2024, including interest at 2.3% to 6.0% 

$7,480,000 2004 Waterworks & Sewer Systems Revenue with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 2024, including interest at 3.0% to 5.0% 

$6,215,000 2004 Waterworks Revenue Refunding Bonds with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 2010, including interest at 2.0% to 4.65% 

$23,760,000 2005A lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Improvement and 
Refunding Bond with principal due in varying amounts through year 2025, including 
interest at 3.0% to 5.0% 

$24,565,000 20056 lnternational Toll Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bond with 
principal due in varying amounts through year 2019, including interest at 4.0% to 
5.0% 

$6,420,000 2005 Waterworks & Sewer Systems Revenue with principal due in 
varying amounts through year 2025, including interest at 3.0% to 4.4% 

$8,950,000 2006 Waterworks & Sewer Systems Revenue Bond with principal due 
in varying amounts through year 2026, including interest at 4.0% to 4.5% 

Subtotal $ 

Deferred Charges for Various Revenue Refunding Bonds 

Total Revenue Bonds 

Due Within One Year 

The applicable bond ordinances for the aforementioned debt contain limitations and 
restrictions on annual debt service requirements and maintenance of and flow of 
monies through various restricted accounts as well as minimum amounts to be 
maintained in various sinking funds. The City is in compliance with all significant 
limitations and restrictions. 
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B - Notes Payable 

Texas Department of Transportation - State Infrastructure Bank loan for 
$27,000,000 for the design and construction of bridge facilities and a portion of the 
costs of constructing the highway improvements. The City of Laredo received 
$19,500,000 of the loan proceeds in fiscal year 1998 and $9,806,858 in fiscal year 
1999. Interest rate on the note is 4.10% simple interest per annum. lnterest is 
deferred for seven years and added to the principal outstanding balance. The note 
has a final maturity date of October 1,2027. $ 22,869,226 

Deferred Gain on Refunding Note 
Total 
Due Within One Year 

C - Compensated Absences 

The long-term portion of compensated absences for all City employees for Proprietary 
funds is comprised of the following: 

Fund Amount 
Transit Svstem $ 78.094 
Bridge system 
Municipal Housing 
Wateworks System 
Sewer System 
Solid waste Fund 
Total 

D - Prior-year defeasance of debt. 

In prior years, the City defeased certain revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new 
bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old 
bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and liability of the defeased bonds are not 
included in the City's financial statements. 

As of September 30, 2006, $24.855 million in bonds outstanding are considered 
defeased. 

E - Landfill Closure and Post Closure Costs 

During fiscal year 1994, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.18 
"Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post Closure Care Costs." 
The landfill closure and post closure costs and the liability for landfill closure and post 
closure costs in Solid Waste Fund as of September 30, 2006 is $13,117,761 of which 
$5,568,754 has been recognized and recorded as a liability based on the Municipal 
Solid Waste Landfill use. 

Federal and State laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its 
landfill when it stops accepting waste and perform certain maintenance and monitoring 
functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. In addition to operating 
expenses related to current activities of the landfill, a liability is being recognized based 
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on future closure and post closure care costs that will be incurred near or after the date 
the landfill no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these landfill closure and post 
closure care costs is based on the capacity of the landfill used to date. 

The liability for landfill closure and post closure care costs of $5,568,754 as of 
September 30, 2006 represents the cumulative amount for 109.3 acres of the landfill 
filled with solid waste for closure and 200 acres for post-closure care. The percentage 
of the landfill capacity for solid waste used as of September 30, 2006 is 53.9%. With 
Landfill receiving a permit for vertical expansion the estimated remaining life of the 
landfill is 10 years. Based on the remaining life, the landfill will be filled to capacity by 
the year 2016. The estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and post closure 
care ($13,117,761) is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, 
facilities, and services required to close, monitor, and maintain the landfill were 
acquired as of September 30, 2006. However, the actual costs of closure and post 
closure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in solid 
waste management laws and regulations. 

The landfill is divided into four phases and is further divided into cells of 3 to 7 acres. 
The new regulations require that liner systems be installed in all cells opened after July 
1, 1994. All cells regardless of their age will be required to receive final cover in 
conformity with the specifications of the current laws. 

Federal and State laws and regulations require the City of Laredo to make annual 
financial assurances regarding the financing of closure and post closure care. The City 
is in compliance with this requirement. It is anticipated that future inflation costs will be 
financed in part from earnings on investments and by a federal mandate fee of $4.25 
charged monthly to all garbage users. Commercial accounts, formerly exempt from the 
fee, are now charged the federal mandate fee. The remaining portion of anticipated 
future inflation costs and additional costs that might arise from changes in post closure 
requirements (for example, changes in technology or more rigorous environmental 
regulations) may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users, taxpayers, or 
both. 

NOTE 13 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

The purposes of interfund balances are to provide cash flows for grants and to cover 
funds with negative cash. lnterfund receivables and payables as of September 30, 
2006 are as follows: 

lnterfund lnterfund 
Receivables Payables 

General Fund $ 2,437,017 $ 
Nonmajor Governmental 2,402.202 
Major Business Type Funds: 
Municipal Transit System 9,418 9,418 
Bridge System 109,767 109,767 
Watelworks System 33,149 33,149 
Sewer System 10,736 10,736 
Fiducialy Funds: 
Police Health and Benefits 34.71 5 
Firefighters Retirement System Pension Trust Fund 100 
Total $ 2,600,087 $ 2,600,087 

69 
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NOTE 14 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

The purpose of interfund transfers is to transfer funds based on City ordinance for 
operational purposes or grant purposes. Transfers between funds during the year were 
as follows: 

General Fund: 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Major Business Type Funds: 
Waterworks System 

Nonmajor Funds: 
General Fund 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Major Business Type Funds: 
Transit System 
Bridge System 
Solid Waste Fund 
Waterworks System 
Sewer System Fund 

Nonmajor Business Funds 
Internal Service Funds 

Debt Service Fund: 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Major Business type Funds: 

Transit 
Bridge 
Solid Waste 
Waterworks 
Sewer 

Internal Service Fund 

Major Business Type Funds: 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Major Business Type Funds 

Transit System 
Bridge System 
Solid Waste Fund 
Waterworks System 
Sewer System Fund 

Internal Service Funds: 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Total 

Transfers Transfers 
In Out 
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NOTE 16 - CONSTRUCTION AND IMPROVEMENT COMMITMENTS 

As of September 30, 2006, the City had contractual commitments of $8,353,238 for 
various construction and improvement projects. The commitments are summarized as 
follows: 

Project Description Commitment 
Community Development $ 490,029 

Airport 109.115 

Capital Improvements Fund 260,786 

Airport Construction Fund 334.077 

Colonias Project 1,737,900 

2003 C.O. Issue 43,240 

Capital Grants 191,297 

2005 C.O. Issue 78,012 

Bridge System 2,855,748 

Waterworks System 1,783,175 

Sewer System 469,859 

Total Commitments $ 8,353,238 

Financing Sources 
Grant Proceeds 

Fund Revenues 

Fund Revenues 

Grant Proceeds 

Grant Proceeds 

Bond Proceeds 

Grant Proceeds 

Bond Proceeds 
Bond Proceeds 

Fund RevenueslC.0. Bond 

Fund RevenuesIC.0. Bond 

NOTE 17 - FUND EXPENDITURES EXCEEDING APPROPRIATIONS 

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, expenditures in Enterprise and 
Special Revenue Funds - Waterworks System and Ryan Street Railroad Bridge 
exceeded appropriations by $208,370 and $2,891, respectively. 

NOTE 18 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

A. HEALTH AND BENEFITS FUND 

In January 1990, the City established a partial self-insured plan for medical coverage 
for its employees and an internal service fund called Risk Management. On October 1, 
1995, the fund name was changed to Health and Benefits Fund. Under this plan, the 
City will pay for medical claims up to the amount of $100,000 per employee, with a 
maximum lifetime benefit of $1,000,000 per employee. There is a maximum medical 
aggregate liability of $12,611,401 and a projected net claims of $1 1,210,160. Claims 
exceeding $100,000 per employee are paid by the City and reimbursed by the City's 
stoplloss insurance carrier. The City has accrued for claims that have been incurred 
but not reported. 

The incurred claims liability of $1,552,241 reported in the Fund as of September 30, 
2006 is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information 
prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the 
claim liability can be reasonably estimated. Claim liabilities are calculated considering 
the recent claim settlements trends including frequency and amount of payouts and are 
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due within one year of the date of the statement of net assets. Changes in the Fund's 
claims liability amount in fiscal year 2004, 2005, and 2006 were: 

Balance at Claims and Current year 
Beginning of Changes in Claims & Balance of Fiscal 

Year Fiscal Year Estimates Payments Year end 

There were no changes or reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in prior 
years. Settled claims did not exceed commercial excess coverage in any of the past 
three years. 

'Claim Liabilities are due within one year of the date of the statement of net assets. 

B. RISK MANAGEMENT FUND 

On October 1, 1996, the City established a self-insured retention program for the 
worker's compensation liability within the Risk Management Fund which also accounts 
for the following policies: (a) General Liability (b) Law Enforcement Liability (c) Errors 
and Omission (d) Auto Liability (e) Auto Physical Damage - ACV. The self-insured 
retention program for worker's compensation was implemented with $300,000 retention 
per occurrence and a $2,150,000 aggregate for FY 03-04, $2,400,000 aggregate for FY 
04-05 and $2,700,000 aggregate for FY05-06. A deductible reimbursement program 
was also established for claims with $5,000 retention per occurrence through Texas 
Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (TMLIRP), with the exception of errors 
and omission, which has a $25,000 deductible. As of September 30, 2006, a liability 
was recorded based on fiscal year 2006 outstanding claims, which is due within one 
year of the date of the statement of net assets. Changes in this claims liability amount 
in fiscal years 2004,2005 and 2006 were: 

Balance at Claims and Current year 
Beginning of Changes in Claims & Balance of Fiscal 

Year Fiscal Year Estimates Payments Year end 

There have been no significant changes in insurance coverage in any of the past three 
years. Settled claims did not exceed commercial excess coverage in any of the past 
three years. 

2Claim Liabilities are due within one year of the date of the statement of assets. 
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NOTE 19 - CONTINGENCIES 

The City participates in a number of federal programs that are fully or partially funded 
by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are 
subject to audit by the appropriate grantor agency. If expenditures are disallowed due 
to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the City may be required to 
reimburse the grantor. As of September 30, 2006, significant amounts of grant 
expenditures have not been audited by the grantor agencies; however, the City 
believes it has substantially complied with applicable laws and regulations and that the 
results of subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual 
governmental funds or the overall financial position of the City, 

The City is a Defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from claims against 
the City for alleged actions by City employees including alleged acts of negligence and 
discrimination. Total damages claimed are substantial; however, it has been the City's 
experience that such actions are resolved for amounts substantially less than the 
claimed amounts. The City Attorney estimates that the amount of potential claims 
against the City not covered by various insurance policies would not materially affect 
the financial condition of the City. 

NOTE 20 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

Prior period adjustments were recorded to account for a change in the reporting of 
compensated absence liability for both current and long term liabilities. Current liability 
of $2,709,227 was removed from the individual financial statements to reflect only the 
amount due and payable for terminated employees. Long term liability for 
compensated absences of $16,619,066 was recorded in the government-wide financial 
statements in order to recognize this liability. An additional prior period adjustment was 
recognized in the government-wide financial statement in the amount of $8,421,440 for 
fixed assets that were expensed in prior years. A prior period adjustment of $1,301,140 
is reported for the business type activities. The adjustment is the result of increased 
useful life and capacity of the City Landfill and therefore reducing the Closure and Post 
Closure Cost. 

NOTE 21 - DONOR-RESTRICTED ENDOWMENTS 

The Canseco Foundation Children's Endowment Trust Fund was established on 
January of 1998, when the City accepted the endowment for the Canseco Foundation 
in the amount of $50,000. The program would have the City seek all opportunities to 
augment children's programming resources provided though the Laredo Public Library. 
Funding of children's programming from the fund each year will be based on interest 
accrued on the endowment. Interest distributions will be from the Canseco Foundation 
Children's Endowment Fund. For September 30, 2006, the amount of unspent interest 
to date was $15,213. This amount is reported in the government-wide financial 
statements under Net Assets-Restricted for other purposes. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Texas State Law: 

(a) Except as provided by Subsection (e), the governing board may appropriate for 
expenditure, for the uses and purposes for which the fund is established, the net 
appreciation, realized and unrealized, in the fair market value of the assets of an 
endowment fund over the historic dollar value of the fund to the extent prudent 
under the standard provided by Section 163.007. 

(b) A determination of the historic dollar value made in good faith by the governing 
board is conclusive. 

(c) Subsection (a) does not limit the authority of the governing board to expend 
funds as permitted under other law, the terms of the applicable gift instrument, 
or the charter or articles of incorporation of the institution. 

(d) Subsection (a) does not apply if the applicable gift instrument indicates the 
donor's intention that the net appreciation not be extended. A restriction on the 
expenditure of net appreciation may not be implied from a designation of a gift 
as an endowment or from a direction or authorization in the applicable gift 
instrument to use only "income" This rule of construction applies to gift 
instruments executed or in effect before, on, or after the effective date of this 
chapter. 

NOTE 22-BUDGET BASIS REPORTING 

The budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a budget 
basis other than generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP Basis). The results 
of operations as presented in the General Fund Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances are reported in accordance with the budgetary process 
(budget basis) to provide a meaningful comparison with the budget. 

The major difference between the budget basis "actual" and GAAP basis are that 
encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed to 
a reservation of fund balance (GAAP) and non-budgeted increases in compensated 
absences, claims payable, workmen's compensation insurance, and allowance for 
doubtful accounts are recorded as expenditures when payments are made (budget) as 
opposed to when the liability is incurred (GAAP). 

Adjustments necessary to convert from the GAAP basis to the budget basis are as 
follows: 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

General 
Fund 

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures and other uses (GAAP Basis)- 
Adjustments: 
Timing Differences-Encumbrances 
Basic Differences: 

Non Budgeted-Compensated Absences 
Non Budgeted-Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures 
and other uses (GAAP Basis)-budgetary' classifications 
Other adjustments-Excess of revenues and other financing 
Sources over expenditures and other uses for non-budgeted 
Funds-(Entity Differences) 
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures and other uses - Budget Basis 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts or major capital 
projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. 

Special Revenue Funds include: 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANTS - to account for the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development grant and the related - 
disbursements for street improvements, drainage improvements, water 
and sewer improvements, public service, open space, code enforcement, 
low income housing rehabilitation and for administration. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT HOUSING REHABILITATION - to account for 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development grant for low 
income housing rehabilitation loans and the related disbursements. 

HOME INVESTMENT - to account for the U. S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development grant and the related disbursements for new 
affordable housing units. 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT EMERGENCY SHELTER - to account for the 
US. Department of Housing and Urban Development grant and the 
disbursement of such proceeds for city shelters for the homeless. 

NOISE ABATEMENT - to account for the Federal Aviation Administration grant 
for the implementation of a noise compatibility program by acquiring noise 
impacted residential properties, soundproofing and or acquiring aviation 
easements. 

NARCOTICS TASK FORCE - to account for the Criminal Justice Department 
grant and the disbursement of such for narcotic undercover arrests and 
seizures. 

FINANCIAL TASK FORCE - to account for the Office of National Drug Control 
and Prevention grant for the investigation of illegal financial activities 
related to drug trafficking in the City. 

AUTO THEFT TASK FORCE - to account for the Texas Department of 
Transportation grant for the combined effort between the City of Laredo 
and Webb County to detect, investigate and apprehend individuals 
involved in auto theft. 



SPECIAL POLICE PROGRAM - to account for federal and state law 
enforcement grants. Major funding sources include intergovernmental 
revenues from Texas Department of Transportation, US.  Department of 
Justice and U.S. Department of Treasury. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES FUND - to account for federal and state grants 
and the disbursements required by the storm water regulations. 

HEALTH FUND - to account for the rendering of public health services to City 
and County residents by administrating grants and contracts awarded by 
federal and state agencies and contributions by private foundations. 

911 REGIONAL FUND - to account for Commission on State Emergency 
Communications grant funds to administer and operate emergency 
service communications programs for Jim Hogg, Starr, Webb and Zapata 
Counties. 

INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT - to account for the operation and maintenance of 
the City of Laredo Airport, financed through restricted revenues from 
airport tenants. 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS - to account for the issuance of license and permits, 
in order to mitigate hazardous materials incidents through prevention and 
control. 

PARKING METERS - to account for the collection of parking meter revenues and 
to enforce City ordinances on prohibited parking areas and where parking 
meters are installed. 

KEEP LAREDO BEAUTIFUL, INC. - to account for the beautification of the City 
of Laredo. The corporation is organized to promote public interest in the 
general improvement of the environment of the City of Laredo. 

RECREATION FUND - to account for the recreational activities provided to the 
general public through various sports leagues, such as softball and 
basketball, and other activities such as swimming lessons and aerobics. 

VETERANS FIELD - to account for revenue received from the baseball stadium 
and the disbursement of such revenue restricted for the operating and 
maintenance costs. 

CIVIC CENTER - to account for rental receipts from the auditorium, ballroom, 
and meeting rooms, and the disbursements for its operation and 
maintenance. 



HOTEL-MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX - to account for tax proceeds received from 
hotels and motels and the disbursement of such to promote community 
agencies and projects as authorized by State statute and allocated by City 
Council. 

PUBLIC ACCESS CHANNEL - to account for the operations of City owned 
studio facilities for access channels and to provide training in television 
production, programming and transmitting, and the related revenue 
associated with such services. 

MERCADO MANAGEMENT - to account for rent revenues derived from the 
City's downtown marketplace, "Mercado", and the disbursement of these 
funds for the operation and maintenance of this specialty retail center. 

LAREDO CONVENTION & VISITOR'S BUREAU - to account for the promotion 
of the City of Laredo. Its primary function is to engage in visitor promotion 
by soliciting and servicing conventions and other related group businesses 
generating tourism. 

SPORTS AND COMMUNITY VENUE - to account for the sales tax proceeds of 
% of one percent designated for payments of debt service in connection 
with the financing of a sports venue complex. 

NOISE ABATEMENT LEASE PURCHASE - to account for all the units 
purchased through the Noise Abatement Program that are being leased 
out as public housing and the related operating and maintenance 
disbursements. 

FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY - to account for funds received from the Friends of 
the Library organization for acquisition of capital outlay for the benefit of 
the City of Laredo Public Library. 

SUBDIVISION TRUST FUND - to account for funds received from developers 
and the disbursement of such funds on subdivision streets and off-site 
improvements. 

POLICE TRUST FUND - to account for the proceeds from seized revenues from 
narcotic operations to be used to acquire any necessary public safety 
equipment or improvements that will serve to further improve the law 
enforcement operations. 



SPECIAL FIRE GRANTS - to account for various projects and improvements 
that increase the public safety for the citizens of Laredo. Major funding 
sources include State Homeland Security and Environmental Protection 
Agency. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for 
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed 
by proprietary funds and trust funds. 

Capital Projects Funds include: 

WEBB COUNTY COLONIAS PROJECT - to account for grants received from 
the Texas Water Development Board, the North American Development 
Bank, and Webb County, to provide water and sewer improvements to the 
communities outside the City Limits. 

AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION FUND - to account for the Federal Aviation 
Administration, the Texas Department of Transportation, and US. 
Department of Transportation grants for the engineering design and 
construction of runway and taxiway improvements and promote air 
service. 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS - to account for contractual obligation bond 
and lease-purchase agreement proceeds for the purchase of equipment. 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION SERIES 1998 - to account for $16,160,000 in 
bond proceeds for the purpose of paying for the construction of drainage 
improvements, construction of street improvements and repairs, 
construction of a new public works building, repairing of public buildings, 
acquisition of municipal vehicles and equipment, a landfill collection 
system, and for the acquisition of land for a municipal landfill. 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION SERIES 2000 - to account for $9,365,000 in 
bond proceeds for the construction of a new Municipal Court, street 
construction and maintenance projects, and the acquisition, design and 
construction of the Inner City Park. 

FlRE TRAINING FACILITY - to account for $5,250,000 in bond proceeds for the 
construction of a new fire training facility. 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND - to account for capital improvement projects 
approved by City Council. Its major funding sources are revenues 
received from the Bridge System, General Fund, and interest earnings. 



CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION SERIES 2002 - to account for $9,925,000 in 
bond proceeds for the purpose of acquiring downtown property for future 
municipal offices, parks, landfill, and the fire and law enforcement training 
center. 

RYAN STREET RAILROAD BRIDGE - to account for the Texas Department of 
Transportation grant for the improvements related to the conversion of the 
Ryan St. railroad bridge, and the construction related to the Zacate Creek 
Pedestrian and Bicycle Facility project. 

STREETS OF LAREDO URBAN MALL - to account for the Economic 
Development Administration grant for the conversion of a three block 
downtown area into the Streets of Laredo Urban Mall, which will include 
infrastructure improvements such as sidewalk widening, landscaping, 
decorative lighting, utility line relocation and improvements to water, 
wastewater and sewer drainage systems. 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION SERIES 2003 - to account for $3,510,000 in 
bond proceeds for the construction of pilot channels, drainage 
improvements, and the construction of a fire station. 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION SERIES 2005 - to  account for $15,625,000 in 
bond proceeds for purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's 
contractual obligations for the purpose of purchasing trucks, vehicles, and 
equipment for various departments, a communication system, 
improvements to the health clinic, acquisition of land and improvements 
for municipal parks, acquisition of land and improvements to drainage 
projects. 

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION SERIES 2006 - to account for $17,320,000 in 
bond proceeds for purpose of paying all or a portion of the City's 
contractual obligations for the purpose of constructing and equipping 
various departments, street and drainage improvements, and traffic 
equipment. 

PARKS CAPITAL GRANTS - to account for various projects and improvements 
that enhance the quality of life for the citizens of the City of Laredo. Major 
funding sources include intergovernmental revenues from Webb County, 
the Texas Department of Transportation, and the Texas Parks and Wildlife 
Service, as well as other revenue sources who dedicate funding for future 
recreational improvements. 



CAPITAL GRANTS - to account for the installation and activation of Intelligent 
Transportation Systems and for the renovation of the historic Plaza 
Theater's marquee and blade sign. Major funding sources include 
intergovernmental revenues from Texas Department of Transportation and 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

COMMUNICATION SYSTEM FUND - to account for the 800 MHz trunked radio 
communication system which provides radio operability to emergency 
personnel and other City department users, and interoperability between 
local, state, and federal agencies region wide. Its major funding sources 
are revenues from state grant, bond proceeds, lease purchase proceeds, 
and various City departments. 

PERMANENT FUND 

CANSECO TRUST FUND - to account for funds received from the Canseco 
Endowment Foundation for the benefit of the City of Laredo Public Library. 
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CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,2006 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

NARCOTICS 
BLOCK HOUSING HOME EMERGENCY NOISE TASK 

GRANTS REHAB INVESTMENT SHELTER ABATEMENT FORCE 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash 
Equily in Investment Pool 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 

Investments 
Receivables, net of allowances: 

Accrued Interest 
Hotel-Motel Tax, Penally and Interest 
Accounts 
Notes 

Due From Other Governmenls 
Inventory 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Retainage Payable 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 
Compensated Absences 
Contracts Payable 
Customer Deposits 
Due To Other Funds 
Due To Other Governments 
Deferred Revenue 
Due To Developers 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Fund Balances: 
Resewed: 
Resewed for Encumbrances 
Reserved for Capital Acquisition 
Resewed for Children's Programming 
Resewed for Endowment Corpus 
Resewed for Washington Trip 
Resewed for Debt Service 
Resewed for Peg Fees 
Resewed for Time Warner 

Unreserved: 
Designated for Improvements 
Undesignated (Oeficil) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 5 1,129,150 2,713,507 9.2ll,943 20.561 277,662 
(Continued) 



(Continued) 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

FINANCIAL AUTO SPECIAL 9 l l  
TASK THEFT POLICE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH EMERGENCY INT'L. HAZARDOUS 

FORCE TASK FORCE PROGRAM SERVICES FUND COMM. FUND AIRPORT MATERIALS 



CITY O F  LAREDO. TEXAS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
September 30. 2006 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash 
Equity in Investment Pool 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 

Investments 
Receivables, net of allowances: 

Accwed Interest 
Hotel-Motel Tax, Penalty and Interest 
Amunts 
Notes 

Due From Other Governments 
Inventory 

TOTALASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Retainage Payable 
Accrued Wages and Employee Beneflts 
Compensated Absences 
Contracts Payable 
Customer Deposits 
Due To Other Funds 
Due To Other Governments 
Deferred Revenue 
Due To Developers 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

(Continued) 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

KEEP HOTEUMOTEL 
PARKING LAREDO RECREATION VETERANS CIVIC OCCUPANCY 
METERS BEAUTIFUL FUND FIELD CENTER TAX 

Fund Balances: 
Resewed: 
Resewed for Encumbrances 
Resewed for Capital Acquisition 
Resewed for Children's Programming 
Resewed for Endowment Carpus 
Resewed for Washington Trip 
Resewed for Debt Sewice 
Resewed for Peg Fees 
Resewed for Time Warner 

Unresewad: 
Designated for Improvements 
Undesignated (Deficit) 

TOTALFUNDBALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,127.383 19,366 203,205 133.812 100.904 768,391 
(Continued) 



(Continued) 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

PUBLIC LAREDO SPORTS 8 NOISE ABATE. FRIENDS SUBDIVISION 
ACCESS MERCADO CONVENT. 8 H.U.D. COMMUNIN LEASE OF THE TRUST 
CHANNEL MGMT. VISITORS SEC. 108 VENUE PROGRAM LIBRARY FUND 

199,354 66.996 120,171 2,584,350 12.353.540 1,918,260 93.716 1,662.734 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEE l  
September 30,2006 (Continued) 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash 
Equily in investment Pool 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 

Investments 
Receroabtes, net of ailwvances: 

Accrued Interest 
Hotel-Motel Tax, Penalty and lnterest 
Accaunts 
Notes 

Due From Olher Governments 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Retainage Payable 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 
Compensated Absences 
Contracts Payable 
Customer Deposits 
Due To Other Funds 
Due To Other Governments 
Deferred Revenue 
Due To Developers 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Fund Balances: 
Resewed: 
Resewed for Encumbrances 
Resewed for Capital Acquisition 
Resewed far Children's Pragramming 
Resewed for Endowment Corpus 
Resewed for Washington Trip 
Reserved for Debt Sewice 
Resewed for Peg Fees 
Resewed for Time Warner 

Unrese~ed: 
Designated for improvements 
Undesignated (Deficit) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LiABlLlTlES AND FUND BALANCES 

SPECIAL REVENUE CAPITAL PROJECTS 

WEBB 
POLICE SPECIAL COUNTY AlRPDRl 

CERTIFICATE 
OF 

TRUST FIRE COLDNIAS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION 
FUND GRANTS PROJECT FUND OBLIGATIONS 98 ISSUE 

71.697 598,619 
(1,747,072) (796.003) 

2,190,093 568,376 502.415 96.973 621.269 

1 2.196.208 - 1,111,864 1,444,921 105,809 633,914 
(Continued) 



(Continued) 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

CERTIFICATE CERTIFICATE STREETS OF CERTIFICATE CERTIFICATE 
OF FIRE OF RYAN STREET LAREDO OF OF 

OBLIGATION TRAINING CAPITAL OBLIGATION RAILROAD URBAN OBLiGATlON OBLlGATiON 
00 ISSUE FACILITY IMPROVEMENT 02 ISSUE BRIDGE MALL 03 ISSUE 05 ISSUE 

551,453 - 9,140,042 724.911 363,963 8,237,211 - - - 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
September 30,2006 (Continued) 

PERMANENT 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

CERTIFICATE TOTAL 
OF PARKS COMM. CANSECO NONMAJOR 

OBLIGATION CAPITAL CAPITAL SYSTEM ENDOWMENT GOVERNMENTAL 
06 ISSUE GRANTS GRANTS FUND FUND FUNDS 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash 
Equity in Investment Pool 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 

Investments 
Receivables, net of allowances: 

Accrued Interest 
Hotel-Motel Tax. Penalty and Interest 
Accounts 
Notes 

Due From Other Governments 
Inventory 

TOTALASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabililies: 
Acwunts Payable 
Retainage Payable 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 
Compensated Absences 
Contracts Payable 
Customer Deposits 
Due To Other Funds 
Due To Other Governments 
Deferred Revenue 
Due To Developers 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved: 
Reserved for Encumbrances 
Reserved for Capital Acquisition 
Reserved for Children's Programming 
Reserved for Endowment Corpus 
Resewed for Washington Trip 
Resewed for Debt Sewice 
Resewed for Peg Fees 
Resewed for Time Warner 

Unresewed: 
Designated for Improvements 
Undesignated (Deficit) 

TOTALFUNDBALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 5 16,004,819 159,042 7,103 298.658 65,213 81,012,958 
(Continued) 
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C l N  OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
Year ended September 30,2006 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

REVENUES: 
Taxes 
Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental: 
Federal 
state 
Other 

Charges for Services 
Fines 
Fees and Collections 
Investment lnwme: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Rents and Royalties 
Diswunt Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 
Local Contl-ibulions 
Reimbursements 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
Cultural and Recteafional 
General Government 
Air Transportation Services 

Tolal Operating Expenditures 

Debt Service 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In 
Proceeds - Long Term Debt 
Transfers Out 
Capital Leases 
Sale of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Olher Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjuslment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

NARCOTICS 
BLOCK HOUSING HOME EMERGENCY NOISE TASK 

GRANTS REHAB INVESTMENT SHELTER ABATEMENT FORCE 

14 (14,146) (41.814) (313,240) (190,997) 
155 22.947 133,297 562.105 190,997 

25 

$ 169 8 , 828 91.483 268,865 
(Continued) 



(Continued) 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

FINANCIAL AUTO SPECIAL 911 REGIONAL 
TASK THEFT POLICE ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH COMM. INT'L. HAZARDOUS 
FORCE TASK FORCE PROGRAM SERVICES FUND FUND AIRPORT MATERIALS 

103.808 1,722,522 318,096 15.406 - 1 2 . 2 9 4  77,862 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS - - - - 

NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT O F  REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
Year ended September 30,2006 

REVENUES: 
Taxes 
Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental: 
Federal 
State 
Other 

Charges for Services 
Fines 
Fees and Collections 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of lnvestmenls 

Rents and Royalties 
Discount Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 
Reimbursements 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Public Safely 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
Cultural and Recreational 
General Government 
Air Transportation Services 

Total Operating Expendilures 

Debt Service 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In 
Proceeds - Long Term Debt 
Transfers Out 
Capital Leases 
Sale of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year . - 

Prior Period Adjustment 

FUNDBALANCEATENDOFYEAR 

(Continued) 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

KEEP LAREDO HOTEUMOTEL 
PARKING BEAUTIFUL, RECREATION VETERANS CIVIC OCCUPANCY 
METERS INC. FUND FUND FIELD CENTER TAX 

$ 613,657 16,694 184,980 102,290 14,555 63384 
(Continued) 



(Continued) 

SPECIAL REVENUE 

PUBLIC LAREDO SPORTS 8 NOISE ABATE. FRIENDS SUBDIVISION POLICE SPECIAL 
ACCESS MERCADO CONVENT. 8 COMMUNIN LEASE OF THE TRUST TRUST FIRE 

CHANNEL MGMT. VISITORS VENUE PROGRAM LIBRARY FUND FUND GRANTS 

188.280 45,028 77,793 12.3- 1,828,246 44,115 (3,762) 2,190.093 - 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT O F  REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
Year ended September 30,2006 

REVENUES: 
Taxes 
Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental: 
Federal 
State 
Other 

Charges for Services 
Fines 
Fees and Collections 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Rents and Royalties 
Discount Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 
Reimbursements 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Public Safely 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
C~ltural and Recreational 
General Government 
Air Transpoltation Services 

Total Operating Expenditures 

Debt Sewice 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In 
Proceeds - Long Term Debt 
Transfers Out 
Capital Leases 
Sale of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 
WEBB CERTIFICATE CERTIFICATE 

COUNTY AIRPORT OF OF FIRE ~~ ~ - ~ 

COLONIAS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATION OBLIGATION TRAINING 
PROJECT FUND OBLIGATIONS 98 ISSUE 00 ISSUE FACILITY 

$ 588.376 502,415 98,973 821,269 510,753 
(Continued) 



CAPITAL PROJECTS 
CERTIFICATE STREETS OF CERTIFICATE CERTIFICATE CERTIFICATE 

OF RYAN STREET LAREDD OF OF OF -- - -.. . - -. 
CAPITAL OBLIGATION RAILROAD URBAN OBLIGATION OBLIGATION OBLIGATION 

IMPROVEMENT 02 ISSUE BRIDGE MALL 03 ISSUE 05 ISSUE 08 ISSUE 

8,825,476 724.91 1 260,497 7,698,028 15,920,979 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT O F  REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES I N  FUND BALANCES 
Year ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 
PERMANENT 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
TOTAL 

PARKS COMM. CANSECO NONMAJOR 
CAPITAL CAPITAL SYSTEM ENDOWMENT GOVERNMENTAL 
GRANTS GRANTS FUND FUND FUNDS 

REVENUES: 
Taxes 
Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental: 
Federal 
Slate 
Other 

Charges for Sewices 
Fines 
Fees and Coiledions 
investment lnwme: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of investments 

Rents and Royalties 
Dismunt Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 
Reimbursements 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
Cunural and Recreational 
Genera Government 
Air Transpoltation Services 

Tolal Operating Expenditures 

Debt Service 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In 
Pmceeds - Long Term Debt 
Transfers Out 
Capital Leases 
Sate of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Oefioency) 01 Revewes Over 
Expend lues and Other Sources (Uses) 

F.no Ba antes a1 Beg on ng of Yeat 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUNDBALANCEATENDOFYEAR 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
CDBG Grants 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTALREVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CDBG SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

EXPENDITURES: 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
Cultural and Recreational 
General Government 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In: 
General Fund 
Ryan Street Railroad Bridge 

Transfer Out: 
Communication System Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
HOUSING REHABILITATION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -(BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Origlnal Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 5 900 900 (900) 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 48 48 48 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 130.000 182.491 161,777 161,777 (20.7141 

TOTALREVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Administration: 

Personnel Services 
Contractual Services 

Totai Administration 

Housing Rehabilitation Loans: 
Contractual Services 

Total Housing Rehabilitation Loans 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
HOME Grants 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
HOME INVESTMENT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balances - Beginning 

Fund Balances -Ending 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
EMERGENCY SHELTER FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
Emergency Shelter Grants 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 

Prior Current 
Years Year 

Total To Project 
Date Authorization 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOISE ABATEMENT FUND 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
FAA Grants $ 5,249,178 4,089,036 9,338,214 13,050,000 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 125,246 10,210 135,456 130,864 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments (2,149) 1,542 (607) 

Miscellaneous: 
31,615 31,615 31,615 Reimbursements 

TOTALREVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenu 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In: 

International Airport 
Airport Construction 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 1,099,998 - 1,099,998 1,099,998 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 582,105 (313,240) 268,865 

Fund Balances-Beginning 582,105 

Fund Balances-Ending $ 268,865 



REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of investments 

TOTAL REVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NARCOTICS TASK FORCE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS1 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basls (Negative) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer Out: 

General Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Reven-es Over 
ExpendlLres an0 Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Ba.ances at Beg nnlng of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Forfeitures 

TOTALREVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
FINANCIAL TASK FORCE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS1 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Bask (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Material and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Sale of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



C I N  OF LAREDO. TEXAS 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
State 
Other 

Investment income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of investments 

TOTAL REVENUES 

AUTO THEFT TASK FORCE 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASiSl 
Year ended September30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adiustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer In: 

General Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SPECIAL POLICE PROGRAM 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - lBUDGET BASIS1 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis INegative) 

REVENUES: 
Interaovernmental: 

~ederal  
State 
School Districts 
Other 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Police Grants: 

Universal Hiring 
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 
Violence Vs Woman Act 
South Texas Drug Related Task Force 
Click It or Ticket 
Alcohol Tobacco Firearms 
Comprehensive Comm. Vehicle STEP 
Step Wave 
DWI Enforcement 
Operation Cooperation 
Customs Narcotics 
Bulletproof Vest Partnership 
Justice Assistance Grant 
Ldo. Joint Terrorism TF 
Weed and Seed Program 
Cops in School - SRO 
OCDETF 
Reserve 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer in: 

General Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Defc ency) of Reven-es Over 
Expend~t~res and Otner SoJrces (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUNDBALANCESATENDOFYEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS - - . -  - 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - lBUDGET BASIS1 

Year ended September 30,2006 

REVENUES: 
Storm Water Fees 
Intergovernmental: 
Environmental Protective Agency 
STDC-Regional Solid Waste Mgmt 
Texas Department of Transpollation 
Universities and Colleges 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Discount Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 
Contributions 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Administration: 

Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Administration 

Enviromental Engineering: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Environmental Engineering 

Dos Laredos-TSU: 
Contractual Services 

Total Dos Laredos-TSU 

Chacon Creek: 
Contractual Services 

Total Chacon Creek 

JSEPA-MEXICO Boraer 
Conlraclual SON ces 

Total USEPA-MEXICO Border 

STDC-Regional Solid Waste Mgmt: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

Total STDC-Regional Solid Waste Mgmt 

Actual Varlance 
Orlglnal Flnal Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

10,000 10.000 
18,213 18,213 

$ 28,213 28,213 

(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

EXPENDITURES (Continued) 
Chacon Creek Phase 11: 

Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

Total Chacon Creek Phase I1 

Brownsfield: 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Brownsfield 

Storm Water Improvements: 
Resetve Appropriation 

Total Storm Water Improvements 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30, 2006 
(Contlnued) 

Actual Variance 
Original Flnal Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer in: 

Hazardous Materials 
Transfers Out: 
Communications System Fund 
Debt Setvice 
Keep Laredo Beauliful 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 



C l N  OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
HEALTH FUND - -  . -  

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - IBUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Original Final 
Budget Budget Actual 

Actual 
Budget 
Basis 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) Adjustments 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
Federai Grants 
State Grants 
Other 

Licenses and Permits 
Fees and Collections 
Rents and Royalties 
Miscellaneous: 
Contributions 
Reimbursements 
Other 

TOTALREVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Administrative Divisions: 

Administration 
Heaith Education 
Vital Statistics 
E M S .  Billing 
Maternity 
Immunization 
Tubercuiosis 
Adult Health 
Dental 
Laboratow 
Personal ~ e a  lh Sew ces 
Budget and Grant Management 
dea lh Protectwe S e ~ l c e s  
Animal Control 

Total Administrative Divisions 

State Grants: 
T.N.R.C.C. -Continuous Air Monitoring 
Station 
H.I.V. -Prevention 
Immunization Action Plan 
Enviromental Protection Agency 
T.B. Federai - Tubercuiosis 
H.I.V. -Consortia (Ryan White) 
H.I.V. - Housina Proiect 1H.OP.W.A.) - . .  
Assoclalesmp for Commd! ly rleallh 
ano Resource Development - T lle V 

Associateship for Community Heaith 
and ~esource ~eveiopmeni- Family Plar 
MCH -Core of Public Health 
Conference of Mayors 
Children Heaith Insurance Project - 
Outreach Program 

(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
HEALTH FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 

State Grants (Continued) 
Primary Care 
HIV Social Services 
Bureau of RegionallLocal Health 
Operations 

Associateship for Community Health 
and Resource Development - Dental 
Tuberculosis 
Women Infant and Children (W.I.C.) 
Abstinence Education Program 
HIV Positive Clients Projects 
Bio-Terrorism Preparedness 
Border Health Conference 
Border Vision Fronteriza 
Lead Poisoning Prevention 
Bi-National TB Card - Pilot 
Border Health - Buena Vida 
Border Health - Buena Vida Lab 
USMBHA Conference 
CPSIBio-Terrorism 
Border Health Bi-national Health Week 
Women and Children Health Program 
Special Projects 
Hepatitis B Program 
U.S.D.H.H.S.-M.A.C. 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 
Year ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 

Total State Grant Expenses 

Total Operating Expenses 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer in: 
General Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

Actual Variance 
Original Flnal Budget Posltive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis [Negative) 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
State Emergency Commission 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

- - - - 

911 REGIONAL COMMUNICATIONS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - tBUDGET BASIS1 
Year ended September 30, 2006 

Actual Variance 
Orlglnal Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures (194,184) (6,265) 11,241 (1.015.718) (1,004,477) (998,212) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 6,019 4,165 4,165 4,165 

FUNDBALANCESATENDOFYEAR 5 (188,165) (2,lOOL 15,406 (1,015.718) (1,000,312~ (998,212) 
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CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 

Federal Aviation Administration - 
Control Tower 

State Operating Grants 
Fees and Collections 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Rents and Royalties 
Miscellaneous: 

Reimbursements 

TOTALREVENUES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Administration: 

Personnel Services 
Materials and Suppiies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Administration 

Building Maintenance: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Building Maintenance 

Ground Maintenance: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual services 

Total Ground Maintenance 

Control Tower: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Suppiies 
Contractual Services 

Total Control Tower 5 486,903 486.903 491,684 75 491,759 (4,856) 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES.EXPENDITURES.ANDCHANGES 

EXPENDITURES (Continued) 
Airport Police: 

Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

Total Airport Police 

Foreign Trade Zone: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

Total Foreign Trade Zone 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 
Year ended September 30,2006 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer In: 

Airport Construction Fund 
Transfers Out: 

Debt Service 
Communication System Fund 

Sale of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

(Continued) 

Actual Varlance 
Orlglnal Final Budget Posltive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 



REVENUES: 
Licenses and Permits 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTALREVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adiustments Bask (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer Out: 

Environmental Services 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 



REVENUES: 
Licenses and Permits 
Fines 
Fees and Collections 
investmenl Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Discount Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 

Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
PARKING METERS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Posltive 
Budget Budget Actual Adiustments Basis lNeaatlve1 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer In: 

Transit System 
Transfers Out: 

Debt Service Fund 
Communication System Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Defciency) of Reven-es Over 
Expena lues and Olher Sources (Uses) 

~ u n d  Balances at Beainnina of Year - - 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS - . -  
KEEP LAREDO BEAUTIFUL, INC. FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL - IBUDGET BASIS1 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
State Operating Grant 

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Contributions 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Administration: 

Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Administration 

Contributions: 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Contributions 

Texas Forest Service Grant: 
Materials and Supplies 

Total Texas Forest Service Grant 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Varlance 
Orlglnal Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Bask (Negative) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer In: 

Environmental Services 100,000 100,000 92.253 92,253 (7,747) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 100,000 100,000 92,253 92,253 17.747) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) (20,500) (4.644) (16.005) (20,649) (149) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 20,500 20,500 20,500 
Prior Period Adjustment 838 838 838 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 16,694 (16,005) 689 689 



REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Fees and Collections 
Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTALREVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
RECREATION FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Suoolies 
Contractual services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer Out: 

General Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
VETERANS FIELD 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative1 

REVENUES: 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value $ 
of Investments (121) (121) (121) 

Rents and Royalties 168,300 196,926 196,926 28,626 
Miscellaneous: 

Reimbursements 46,000 22,083 22,083 (23,917) 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Delciency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CIVIC CENTER 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES.EXPENDITURES.ANDCHANGES 

REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Discount Earnings 
Rents and Royalties 
Miscellaneous: 

Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel S e ~ i c e s  
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer In: 

Hotel -Motel Occupancy Tax 
Transfer Out: 

Debt Service 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess IDeficiencv) of Revenues Over 
~ x ~ e n i  lures and Olher Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beg nn ng of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREOO, TEXPlS 
HOTEL-MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

REVENUES: 
Taxes: 

Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax 
Penalty and Interest 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL lBUDGET BASISI 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Varlance 
Orlglnal Flnal Budget Posltlve 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustment Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services: 

Tourism and Promotion 
Historical and Arts 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers Out: 

Civic Center 
General Fund 
Convention and Visitors Bureau 
Capital Improvements Fund 
Public Access Channel 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT EN0 OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
PUBLIC ACCESS CHANNEL .- - -. -- 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS1 

REVENUES: 
Production and Transmission 
Fees and Collections 
Time Warner Settlement 
Peg Funds 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Discount Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In: 

General Fund 
Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 



REVENUES: 
investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Rents and Royalties 
Miscellaneous: 

Reimbursements 

TOTALREVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
MERCADO MANAGEMENT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30, 2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Flnal Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 
Prior Period Adjustment 

FUNDBALANCEATENDOFYEAR 



REVENUES: 
Fees and Collections 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
LAREDO CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - lBUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basls (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer In: 

Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess (Defc ency) of Revenues Over 
ExpendLres an0 Otner Sources ( ~ e s l  

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year . - 

Prior Period Adjustment 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SPORTS AND COMMUNITY VENUE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 

REVENUES: 
Taxes: 

General Sales & Use Tax 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of investments 

Rents and Royalties 
Miscellaneous: 
Contributions 

TOTAL REVENUES 

IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL : (BUDGET BASIS) 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Varlance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer In: 

Spolls & Community Operations 
Transfers Out: 

Sports &Community Debt Service 
Debt Service 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

Excess IDeficiencv) of Revenues Over 
~x~endl lures an; Otner Sodces (Lses) 

F-na Ba ances at Beglnnlng of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



REVENUES: 
Investment income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Fees and Collections 
Rents and Royalties 
Discount Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 

Reimbursements 

TOTALREVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NOISE ABATEMENT LEASE PROGRAM 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Flnal Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Selvices 
Materials and Suooiies 
Contractual setviks 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deliciency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

REVENUES: 
intergovernmental: 

Federal Operating Grant 
State Operating Grants 

Charges for Services 
Investment income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - fBUDGET BASIS) 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Posltive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Library: 

Materials and SuDDlies . . 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Library 

FOTL-Loan Star Library Grant: 
Other 

Total FOTL-Loan Star Library Grant 

FCC-Universal Service Program: 
Contractual Services 

Total FCC-Universal Service Program 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SUBDIVISION TRUST FUND 

REVENUES: 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

TOTAL REVENUES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

- -  - - 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budaet Actual AdLustments Basis (Negative) 



REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Forfeitures 
Reimbursements 

C I N  OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
POLICE TRUST FUND 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES.EXPENDITURES.ANDCHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Flnal Budget Posltlve 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basls (Negative) 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenditures 
Debt Service 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 

E.P.A. 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Other 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

C I N  OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SPECIAL FIRE GRANTS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30, 2006 

Original 
Budget 

Actual Variance 
Final Budget Positive 

Budget Actual Aqustments Bask (Negative) 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
State 
Webb County 

Fees and Collections 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 

TOTALREVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services 
Debt Service 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
WEBB COUNTY COLONIAS PROJECT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In: 
Waterworks System 
Sewer System 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change i n  Fund Balances 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION FUND 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current 
Years Year 

Total To 
Date 

Project 
Authorization 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
FAA Grants 
U.S. Department of Transportation 
Texas Department of Transportation 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 
Transfers In: 

International Airport 
Laredo Convention and Visitors Bureau 

Transfers Out: 
International Airport 
Noise Abatement 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGES 
INFUNDBALANCES-BUDGETANDACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Other 

TOTALREVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) o f  Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 
Transfers Out: 

Capital Improvement Fund 
Debt Service Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Endina 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 1998 ISSUE 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current 
Years Year 

Total To 
Date 

Project 
Authorization 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
School Districts 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 
Other 

TOTALREVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 
Transfers In: 

General Fund 
EDA-EPA lnfrastructure 

Transfers Out: 
Capital Improvements Fund 
DPW lnfrastructure 

Sale of Assets 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 



REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 

Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 
Reimbursements 

TOTALREVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 2000 ISSUE 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 
Transfers In: 

General Fund 
Capital Improvements Fund 

Transfer Out: 
General Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending $ 510,753 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
FIRE TRAINING FACILITY 

SCHEDULEOFREVENUES,EXPENDITURES,ANDCHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenu 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 
Transfers In: 

General Fund 
Capital Improvements Fund 
2002 C.O. lssue 
Police Trust Fund 

Transfers Out: 
2003 C.O. lssue 
General Fund 
Debt Service Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 37,134 (37,134) 

Fund Balances-Beginning 37,134 

Fund Balances-Ending $ 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
Federal 
State 
Other 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Discount Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers In: 

General Fund 
Mineral Leases 
Civic Center 
Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax 
Contractual Obligations 
EDA-DPW Infrastructure 
1998 C.O. lssue 
2000 C.O. lssue 
Transit System 
Bridge System 
Municipal Housing Corporation 

(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 
(Continued) 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

Transfers Out: 
General Fund $ (280,000) (280,000) (280,000) 
Infrastructure Maintenance (1,822,270) (1,822,270) (1,822,270) 
Civic Center (54,101) (54,101) (54,101) 
Fire Training Facility (20,000) (20,000) (20,000) 
2000 C.O. Issue (200,000) (200.000) (200,000) 
Bridge System (400,000) (400,000) (400,000) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 10,484,773 3,425,987 13,910,760 12,071,390 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 8,071,511 753,965 8,825,476 - 

Fund Balances-Beginning 8,071,511 

Fund Balances-Ending $ 8,825,476 



REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Miscellaneous: 

Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 2002 ISSUE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services 
Debt Service 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) o f  Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 
Transfers Out: 

Fire Training Facility 
Solid Waste Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 5,302,571 5,302,571 5,302,571 

Net Change i n  Fund Balances $ 779,195 (54,284) 724,911 

Fund Balances-Beginning 779,195 

Fund Balances-Ending $ 724,911 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
Transportation Grant 

Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 

TOTALREVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
RYAN STREET RAILROAD BRIDGE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 711,941 19,950 731,891 729,000 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 1,296 1,296 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer Out: 

Community Development (1,296) (1,296) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: (1,296) (1,296) 

Net Change i n  Fund Balances $ - 

Fund Balances-Beginning - 
Fund Balances-Ending $ 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
EDA Grant 

Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 

TOTAL REVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STREETS OF LAREDO URBAN MALL 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
INFUNDBALANCES-BUDGETANDACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 

Prior Current 
Years Year 

Total To Project 
Date Authorization 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 2003 ISSUE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

Miscellaneous: 
Local Contributions 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 
Transfer In: 

Fire Training Facility 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending $- 260,497 



REVENUES: 
Interest Earnings 
Other 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 2005 ISSUE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

TOTALREVENUES 438,435 548,983 987,418 700,157 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 83,842 83,842 85,465 
Other 256,525 - 256,525 391,820 
Capital Outlay 408,462 5,165,561 5,574,023 12,847,872 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 664,987 5,249,403 5,914,390 13,325,157 

Excess (Deficiency) o f  Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (226,552) (4,700,420) (4,926,972) (12,625,000) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 15,625,000 - 15,625,000 15,625,000 
Transfer Out: 

Communication System Fund (3,000,000) (3,000,000) (3,000,000) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 15,625,000 (3,000,000) 12,625,000 12,625,000 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 15,398,448 (7,700,420) 7,698,028 

Fund Balances-Beginning 15,398,448 

Fund Balances-Ending $ 7,698,028 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION 2006 ISSUE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 

REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 

TOTAL REVENUES 

Other 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Bond Issues 
Transfer Out: 

Capital Improvements Fund 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 

Prior Current 
Years Year 

Total To Project 
Date Authorization 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
PARKS CAPITAL GRANTS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
State $ - 10,210 10,210 4,385,073 
Webb County - 104,800 104,800 375,000 

Miscellaneous: 
Contributions and Donations - 5,000,000 

TOTALREVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Contractual Services 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 122,950 122,950 9,908,614 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (7,940) (7,940) (148,541) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer In: 

General Fund 148,541 148,541 148,541 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 148,541 148,541 148,541 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 140,601 140,601 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 



REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental: 
HUD Grant 
TxDot Grant 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES: 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CAPITAL GRANTS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current Total To Project 
Years Year Date Authorization 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Fund Balances-Ending 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Prior Current 
Years Year 

REVENUES: 
Intergovermental: 
South TX lnteroperability Project $ 1,200,000 

TOTAL REVENUES 1,200,000 

EXPENDITURES: 
Personnel Services 
Contractual Services 
Capital Outlay 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - 6,964,794 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (5,764,794) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Transfers In: 
General Fund 
Community Development 
Airport 
Environmental Services 
Parking Meters 
Transit System 
Bridge System 
Municipal Housing Corporation 
Solid Waste Fund 
Wateworks System 
Sewer System 
Fleet Management 
Risk Management 
2005 C.O. Issue 

Capital Leases 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 146,236 

Fund Balances-Beginning 

Total To Project 
Date Authorization 

Fund Balances-Ending $ 146,236 



REVENUES: 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value 
of Investments 

TOTALREVENUES 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
CANSECO ENDOWMENT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - (BUDGET BASIS) 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Actual Variance 
Original Final Budget Positive 
Budget Budget Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

EXPENDITURES: 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over 
Expenditures 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by 
one City department or agency to other City departments or agencies, or to other 
governmental entities, on a cost- reimbursement basis. 

Internal Funds include: 

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND - to account for the transactions related to the 
partial self insurance plan for medical coverage for City employees. 

HEALTH AND BENEFITS FUND - to account for all expenses associated with 
the City's partially self funded health benefits program. 

FLEET MANAGEMENT - to account for the providing of fuel and repair services 
to all city owned vehicles and machinery, on a cost reimbursement basis. 



ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
Cash 
Equity in Investment Pool 

Investments 
Accounts Receivable 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Inventory 
Prepaid items 

Total Current Assets 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
September 30,2006 

RISK HEALTH 8 FLEET 
MANAGEMENT BENEFITS MANAGEMENT TOTAL 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital Assets: 
Buildings 
Transportation Vehicles and Equipment 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets (Net of 
Accumulated Depreciation) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Claims and Judgments Payable 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 
Compensated Absences 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Compensated Absences 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 



OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for Services 
Reimbursements 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Cost of Services 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Depreciation 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating lnwme (Loss) 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

RISK HEALTH 8 FLEET 
MANAGEMENT BENEFITS MANAGEMENT TOTAL 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Investment Income: 

Interest Earnings 
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair 
Value of Investments 

Discount Earnings 
Gainl(Loss) on Sale of Assets 

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

Income Before Contributions and Transfers 

Transfers Out 

Change in Net Assets 
Total Net Assets - Beginning 

TOTAL NET ASSETS- ENDING 



CITY O F  LAREOO. TEXAS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ondod September 30,2006 

RISK HEALTH 8 FLEET 
MANAGEMENT BENEFITS MANAGEMENT TOTAL 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts fmm customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services pravlded 
Payment to suppliers 
Pavment to emolovees . . 
Payment for interfund services ured 

Net cash provlded (used) by operating ilctlvitles 745,667 546,188 354,691 1.646.546 

CASH FLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to Other Funds (20,410) (49,467) (69.8771 

Net cash provlded (used) by noncapltal and related 
f lnmclng activitler (20.410) (49.467) (69.877) 

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Purehare of capital assets (79.339) (79.339) 
Proceeds from sales of capttal assets 1,378 1,378 

Net cash pmvlded (used) by capltal and related 
nnsnclng actlvltles (77,961) (77.961) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Pmceeds from sales and maturity of investments (755,201) (610,322) (234,027) (1,599,550) 
Interest and dividends received 40,914 72,850 8,572 122,336 

Net cash provided (used) by investing astlvitler (714,287) (537.472) (225,455) (1,477.214L 

Net increase (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 10,970 8.716 1,808 21,494 
Cash and cash equivalents -October 1,2005 3,787 3.019 840 7,646 

Cash and cash equivalenb -September 30,2005 $ 14.757 11,735 2.648 29.140 

Reconcillatlon of Opentlng Income to 
net cash provided (used) by aperatlng 
PctIVItIe*: 
Opentlng income $ 257,327 313.098 311.805 882,230 
AdjuDtmentD to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided (used) 
Depreciation expense 5.5M 642 55.612 61.818 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (285) 337,966 123.691 461.372 
Increase in allowable for uncolledible accounts (1 26.265) (128.265) 
(Increase) deueare in inventories (37.979) (37.979) 
(Increase) deueare in prepaid ilems 31.000 (28,383) 2,617 
lnuease (decrease) in accounts payable 36,166 313,332 31,781 383.299 
lnusase (decrease) in compensated absences payable (6.101) (1.540) (307) (7.948) 
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 1,013 (863) (1.647) (1.497) 
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgements payable 418.963 (388,064) 30,899 

rota1 adJustmsnts 488.340 233,090 42,886 764,316 

Net cash provided by operating actlvltles I 745,667 546,188 354,691 1,646,546 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
adivities: 
Inueare (deueare) in the fair value of investments 3.217 (3.344) (459) (586) 
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CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET ASSETS 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for Sewices 
ReimburSemento 

Year ended September 30.2006 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Positive 

Orlglnal Budget Actual Adjustment Basis (NegatRe) 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 5,946.183 5,946,183 5,401.170 6,401.170 (545,013) 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Cost of Services 
Per~onnel Sewices 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Depreciation 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 6,136,543 

Operating lnwme (Lass) (190.360) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Investment lnwme: 

Interest Earnings 38.300 
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair 
Value of Investments 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPEN: 38.300 

lnwme Before Contributions and Transfers (152,060) 

Transfers Out: 
Debt Service 
Communication System Fund 

Change in Net Assets 
Total Net Assets - Beginning 

TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING I 1,037,975 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services provided 
Payment to suppliers 
Payment to employees 
Payment for interfund services used 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturity of investments 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents -October 1,2005 

Cash and cash equivalents -September 30,2006 

Reconciliation of Operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided (used) 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 
lncrease (decrease) in claims and judgments payable 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 
lncrease (decrease) in the fair value of investments 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
HEALTH AND BENEFITS 

STATEMENTOFREVENUES.EXPENSES.ANDCHANGES 
IN FUND NET ASSETS 

Year ended September 30,2006 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
sudget Positive 

Original Flnal Actual Adjustment Bask (Negative) 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for Services $ 14,208.135 14,208,135 13,104,968 13,104,988 (1,103.147) 
Reimbursements 800,000 800.000 1,316,691 1,316,691 516,691 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 15,006,135 15,008,135 14,421,679 14,421,679 (586,4561 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Cost of Services 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Depreciation 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 15,081,311 15,061,311 14,108,581 698 14,109,479 971,832 

Operating lnmme (Loss) (73,176) (73,176) 313,098 (698) 312,200 385.376 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 71.000 71.000 76,330 78,330 7.330 
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair 
Value of Investments (3.344) (3,344) (3.3441 

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPEN! 71.000 71.000 74,986 74,986 3,986 

Change in Net Assets 
Total Net Assets - Beginning 

TOTAL NET ASSETS-ENDING 5 (25,103) (25,103) 365,157 (8961 364.259 389,362 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
HEALTH AND BENEFITS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services provided 
Payment to suppliers 
Payment to employees 
Payment for interfund services used 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturity of investments 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents -October 1,2005 

Cash and cash equivalents - September 30,2006 

Reconciliation of Operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided (used) 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 
lncrease (decrease) in claims and judgements payable 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 
lncrease (decrease) in the fair value of investments 



OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for Services 
Reimbursements 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
FLEET MANAGEMENT FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET ASSETS 

Year ended September 30,2008 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget P o ~ l t l ~ e  

Original Final Actuai Adlustment Basis (Negative) 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 6,683,354 6,983,354 6,843,205 6,843,205 (140,149) 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Cost of Services 4,252,255 4,583,614 4,353,921 4,353.921 229,693 
Personnel Services 1,885,549 1,845,549 1,689,090 308 1,689,398 156,151 
Materials and Supplies 81.911 107,633 93,160 93,160 14,473 
Contractual Services 384,490 377.779 336,017 336.017 41.762 
Other 48,000 3,600 (3.600) 
Capital Outlay 95.000 82.989 79,339 79,339 3.650 
Depreciation 55,612 (55,612) 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 6,747,205 6,997,564 8,531,400 20,435 6,551,835 445,729 

Operating lnwme (Loss) (63.851) (14,210) 311.805 (20,435) 291.370 305,580 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Investment lnwme: 
Interest Earnings 2,900 2,900 9,561 9.561 6,661 
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair 
value of lnvestmenls (459) (459) (459) 

O i sw~n t  Earnings 667 667 667 
Galnl(Loss) on Sale of Assets 607 607 1,378 1.378 771 

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPEN: 3,507 3,507 11,147 11,147 7,640 

lnwme Before Contributions and Transfers (60,344) (10.703) 322,952 (20,435) 302,517 313,220 

Transfer Oul: 
Communication Systems Fund (49,641) (49,467) (49.467) 174 

Change in Net Assets 
Total Net Assets - Beginning 

TOTAL NET ASSETS- ENDING $ 559,743 559,743 893,572 (20,435) 873,137 313,394 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
FLEET MANAGEMENT FUND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services provided 
Payment to suppliers 
Payment to employees 
Payment for interfund services used 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Purchase of capital assets 
Proceeds from sales of capital assets 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturity of investments 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents - October 1,2005 

Cash and cash equivalents -September 30,2006 

Reconclllatlon of Operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operatlng 
activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided (used) 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
lncrease in allowable for uncoilectible accounts 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease [decrease) in comoensated absences oavable . , 
lncrease idecreasej in accrled wages and employee benefits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operatlng activltles 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 
lncrease (decrease) in the fair value of investments 
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CAPITAL ASSETS 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
Capital Assets Used in the Operation o f  Governmental Funds 

Comparative Schedules by Source (1) 
September 30,2006 and 2005 

Governmental Funds Capital Assets: 

Land $ 52,949,889 45,405,076 
Buildings 122,849,101 121,914,646 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 345,875,681 336,095,435 
Vehicles 37,557,117 36,260,907 
Machinery & Equipment 20,405,224 12,463,778 
Construction in Progress 19,793,422 10,908,687 

Total Governmental Funds Capital Assets 599,430,434 563,048,529 - 

Investments in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Source: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds 
Capital Projects Funds 

Total Investments in Governmental Funds $ 599,430,434 563,048,529 - - 

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. 
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above 
amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental 
activities in the statement of net assets. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds 

Schedule by Function and Activity (1) 
For The Year Ended September 30,2006 

IMPROVEMENTS MACHINERY 
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY TOTAL LAND BUILDINGS Om BLDGS TRANSPORTATION 8 EQUIPMENT 

General Government: 
Mayor and City Council 
City Manager 
Municipal Court 
Building 
City Attorney 
City Secretary 
Tax Office 
Personnel 
Clly Planning 
Finance 
Reel Estate 
City Hall Maintenance 
Engineering 
Management Info. Systems 
Community Development 
Telecommunications 

General Government 

Public Safety: 
Police 
Police Trust Fund 
Auto Theft Task Force 

Narcotics 
Financial Task Force 
Special Police 
Laredo Border Vlolence 
Homeland Security Grant 
Fire 
Hazardous Materials 
Parking Meters 
911 Administration 
911 -General Fund 
Communications 
Traffic Safety 

Public Safety 

Public Works: 
Capital improvements Projects 
1998 C.O. Issue 
Infrastm~t~re Maint. 
DPW 
Keep Laredo Beauliful 
New Fire Stations 
Fire Training Facility 
2000 co ISSUB 
Colonias Project 
LEC Construction Project 
2002 CO Issue 
2003 CO Issue 
2005 CO Issue 
2006 CO Issue 
FAA-Noise Abatement 
Airport Canst. Fund. 
Ryan Street Railroad Bridge 
Streets of Laredo Urban Mall 
Contractual Obligations 
Public Works 

Public Works $ 396,290,685 27,998,837 56,300,370 293,771,284 14,971,699 3.248.495 
(Continued) 
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CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
Capital Assets Used in the Operations of Governmental Funds 

Schedule by Function and Activity (1) 
For The Year Ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 

IMPROVEMENTS MACHINERY 
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY TOTAL LAND BUILDINGS O K  BLDGS TRANSPORTATION 8 EQUIPMENT 

Health &Welfare: 

Health 
Noise Abtm. Lease 
Environmental Services 

Health & Welfare 

Cultural & Recreational: 
Parks & Recreation 
Library 
New Public Library 
Cemetery 
Friends of the Library 
Civic Center 
Public Access Channel 
Mercado 
Convention &Visitor's Bureau 
Sports & Community Venue 
West Martin Stadium 

Cultural & Recreational 

Air Transportation Services: 
Airport 

Air Transportation Services 81,284.701 6,324,997 41,016.422 33,405,822 431,076 106,384 

Total Assets i n  service 579.637.012 52,949,889 122,849,101 345,875,681 37,557,117 20,405,224 

Construction in Progress 19,793,422 

Total Governmental Funds 
Capital Assets 5 599,430,434 

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are 

excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
Capital Assets Used i n  the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity (1) 
For The Year Ended September 30,2006 

BALANCE AT DISPOSALS1 BALANCE AT 
FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY BEGINNING OF YEAR ADDITIONS TRANSFERS END OF YEAR 

General Government: 
Mayor and City Council 
City Manager 
Municipal Court 
Building Inspections 
City Attorney 
City Secretary 
Tax office 
Personnel 
City Planning 
Finance 
Real Estate 
City Hail Maintenance 
Engineering 
Management Info. Systems 
Community Development 
Telecommunications 

General Government 

Public Safety: 
Police 
Police Trust Fund 
Auto Thefl Task Force 
Narcotics 
Financial Task Force 
Special Police 
Laredo Border Violence 
Homeland Security Grant 
Fire 
Hazardous Materials 
Parking Meters 
911 Administration 
91 1 - General Fund 
Communications 
Traffic Safety 

Public Safety 

Public Works: 
Capital Improvements Project 
1998 CO lssue 
Infrastructure Maint 
DPW 
Keep Laredo Beautiful 
New Flre Stations 
Fire Training Faclllty 
2000 CO lssue 
Colonias Project 
LEC Construction Project 
2002 CO lssue 
2003 CO lssue 
2005 CO lssue 
2006 CO lssue 
FAA-Noise Abatement 
A rport Constr.ct on Fund 20 756,364 
Rvan Street Ral road Br~dge 648.069 
Sireels of Laredo Urban Mall 1,158,524 
Contractual Obligation 7,229.318 
Public Works 219,547,481 

Public Works $ 381,333,443 14,745,221 212,021 396,290,685 
(Continued) 
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CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
Capital Assets Used in  the Operation of Governmental Funds 

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity (1) 
For The Year Ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 
BALANCE AT DISPOSALS1 BALANCE AT 

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY BEGINNING OF YEAR ADDITIONS TRANSFERS END OF YEAR 

Health &Welfare: 
Health $ 4,425,910 50,362 (2,242) 4,474.030 
Noise Abatement Lease 21.280 21,280 
Environmental Services 6,237,665 169,492 (7.546) 6,399.81 1 

Health &Welfare 10,685.055 219,854 (9.788) 10,895,121 

Cultural & Recreational: 
Parks & Recreation 
Library 
New Public Library 
Cemetery 
Friends of the Library 
Civic Center 
Public Access Channel 
Mercado 
Convention & Visitors Bureau 
Sports & Community Venue 
West Martin Stadium 

Cultural & Recreational 

Air Transportation Services: 
Airport 

Air Transportation Services 

Total Assets In Service 

Construction in Progress 

Total Governmental Funds 
Capital Assets $ 563,048,529 - - 36,551,887 - (169,982) 599,430,434 

(1) This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported 
in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included 
as governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 



ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise funds account for the acquisition, operation and maintenance of the 
City's facilities and services which are entirely or predominantly supported by 
user charges or those for which the City has decided that periodic determination 
of the revenues earned, expenses incurred, andlor net income is appropriate for 
capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability and or 
other purposes. All activities necessary to provide services are accounted for in 
these funds, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, and 
maintenance. 

Enterprise Funds include: 

MUNICIPAL TRANSIT SYSTEM - to account for the proceeds from the City's 
Transit System and a grant from the U.S. Department of Transportation, 
Urban Mass Transportation used for operating and maintaining the Transit 
System, which provides 22 bus routes. 

BRIDGE SYSTEM - to account for toll proceeds from four international bridges 
and the related operations, maintenance and debt service. 

MUNICIPAL HOUSING CORPORATION - to account for proceeds derived from 
210 dwelling units of which 7% is received from Housing Urban 
Development Section 8 for rental assistance for low income housing and 
the related operational and maintenance disbursements. 

WATERWORKS SYSTEM - to  account for the operations, maintenance and debt 
service from three water treatment plants and seventeen booster stations 
and the related revenue received from 61,772 customers. 

SEWER SYSTEM - to account for the operations, maintenance and debt service 
of the City's five sewage treatment plants and its related revenue received 
from 58,796 customers. 

SOLID WASTE FUND - to account for the landfill and recycling center 
operations and revenues collected from landfill fees and Federal and State 
mandates fees, and for the construction of the municipal landfill. 

LAREDO WATER CORPORATION - to account for the costs of acquiring and 
providing a secondary water source alternative for the City. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
September 30, 2006 

MUNICIPAL LAREDO 
HOUSING WATER 

CORPORATION CORPORATION TOTALS 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash 
Equity in Investment Pool 

Investments 
Receivable: 

Accrued Interest 
Accounts 

Total Current Assets 

Capital Assets: 
Transportation Vehicles and Equipment 
Buildings 
lmprovements 
Land and lmprovements 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets (net of 
accumulated depreciation) 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable $ 11,770 1 1,770 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 8,768 8,788 
Compensated Absences 11,929 11,929 
Tenant Deposits 72,931 72,931 
Deferred Revenue 4,766 4,768 

Total Current Liabilities 110,186 110,186 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Compensated Absences 4,982 4,982 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,962 4.982 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 115,168 115,168 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 1,264,364 1,264,384 
Unrestricted 337,503 337,503 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Year ended September 30,2006 

MUNICIPAL LAREDO 
HOUSING WATER 

CORPORATION CORPORATION TOTALS 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Charges for Services 
Rental of Facilities 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 1,264,613 - 1,264,613 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Operating Expenses Before 
Depreciation 

Depreciation Expense 

TOTALOPERATINGEXPENSES 

Operating Income (Loss) 262,820 - 262,820 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Investment income: 
Interest Earnings 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investment 3,599 3,599 
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 

(EXPENSES) 53,537 - 53,537 

income (Loss) Before Contributions 
and Transfers 

Transfers Out: 
Capital Improvements Fund 
Communication System Fund 

Change in Net Assets (1,128,132) - (1,128,132) 

Total Net Assets-Beginning 2,730,019 - 2,730,019 

Total Net Assets-Ending $ 1,601,887 1,601,887 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
NONMAJDR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30, 2006 

MUNICIPAL LAREDO 
HOUSING WATER 

CORPORATION CORPORATION TOTALS 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Payments t o  suppliers 
Payments t o  employees 
Payments for interfund services used 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 351,944 351,944 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 
Net cash provided lusedl by noncapital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Purchases of capital assets 
Net cash provided lusedl by capital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents. October 1 

Cash and cash equivalents. September 3 0  

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 

Operating income $ 262,820 262,820 
Adiustments t o  reconcile ooeratina 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
lncrease in allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Increase in customer deposits 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in deferred revenues 
increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (usedl by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 

lncrease (Decrease) in fair value of investments 
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CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Budgeted Amount Actual Varlance 
Budget Pos l t i~e  

Original Final Actual Adjustments Basis INeaatlve) 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Charger far Sewices 
Miscellaneous 
Rental of Facilities 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Opt-Fixed Route: 
Penannei Sewices 
Maleriais and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Opt-Fixed Route 

Opt-Para Transit: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Opt-Para Transit 

Mainl-Fixed Raule: 
Perronne Sew ces 
Maleralr and S-ppler 
Contractual S e ~ c e r  

Total Maint-Fixed Route 

Maint-Para Transit: 
Personnel Sewices 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

Taai Maint-Para Transit 

Tmining and Safety: 
Perronne Ssrvcas 
Maler a P m a  Suppl sr 
Contract~a Sew cer 

Total Training and Safety 

B~i ld ina lGr~~nds:  
~ersonnel Sewices 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

Total BuildingIGraunds 5 446.865 476,034 438,271 (969) 437,302 38.732 
(Continued) 



Bur StoplShelters: 
Personnel ServlCeD 
Maler a 5 an0 S ~ p ~ l e n  
Canl,acf.al Servms 

General Administration: 
Penonnel Servicer 
Materials and Supplieo 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Told General Adminirtration 

Planning: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Servicer 

Tdal Planning 

Marketing: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contradual Servicer 

Total Marketing 

Customer Service: 
Penonnel Ssrvices 
Matetials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 

Total Customer Service 

Transit Center Building: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contraclual Services 

Total General Administration 

~~ ~ - , ,  
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Transit Center Facility 

Total Operating Expenses Before 
Depreciafion 

Depreciation 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating Income (Loss) 

CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Budgeted Amount 

Origlnal Final - Actual . 

(Continued) 

Actual Variance 
Budget Posltlve 

Adlustments Basis (Negative) 

12,627,708 12,821,708 12,392,884 (10,207) 12,382.677 439.029 
1,619,146 (1.619.146) 

12,621,706 12,821,706 14,012,030 11,629,363) 12382,677 439,029 

$ (9,429,007) (9,629,007) (10,544,292) 1,629,353 (8,914,939) 714.068 
(Continued) 



C l N  OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Positlve 

Origlnal Final Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Investment lnwme: 
Interest Earnings 
Interest Earnings-Restricted 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair 
Value of Investments 

Diowunt Earnings 
Sales Tax 
Loss on Sale of Equipment 
Gam on Ss e of Eq.lpmenl 
FTA Operatmng Grant 
Stale Dcpl d hlgnways 
Conrtruaian 
Capital Outlay 
Other 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 
AND (EXPENSES) 

Incame (Loss) Before Contributions 
and Transfers 

Capilal Contributions: 
Federal Capital Grant 
State Capital Grant 

Transfer In: 
Transit Sales Tax 

TranSferS Out: 
General Fund 
Debt Service 
Parking Meters 
Communication System Fund 
Transit Operations 
Transit Center Facility 
Capital and Planning 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets-Beginning 

Total Net Assets-Endlng 
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CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments for interfund services used 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 
Subsidy from federal and state grants 
Sales Tax 
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Subsidy from federal and state grants 
Purchases of capital assets 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Proceeds from sales of capital assets 
Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 31,128 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL TRANSIT SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
lncrease in allowance for uncollectible accounts 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
lncrease in customer deposits 
increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital and financing 
activities: 

Disposition of assets 
lncrease (Decrease) in fair value of investements 

(Continued) 



CiTY OF LAREOO, TEXAS 
BRIDGE SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Posltive 

Origlnal Final Actual Adjustments Basis (Negative) 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Rental of Facilities 
Toll Receipts 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Laredo Bridge Operations: 
Psrsonnel Services 
Malerialo and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Olher 

Total Laredo Bridge Operations 

Bridge I1 Operations: 
Personnel Scrvcer 
Malanalr sno Suppllar 
Conlramdal Sew ces 

Total Bridge I1 Operations 

Colombia Bridge Operations: 
Pemnnel Services 
Materials and Supplier 
Contractual Services 

Total Colombia Bridge Operations 

Fourth Bridge Operations: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplier 
Contradual Services 

Total Fourth Bridge Operations 

FiHh Bridge: 
COII~RCIUBI Services 

Total FiHh Bridge 

Total Operating Expenses Before 
Depreciation 

Depreciation 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

Opsrallng Income (Loss) 

31,577.087 31,231,163 30,396,800 (29.576) 30,357,222 663.941 
3,175,520 (3,175,520) 

31.677.087 31,231,463 53,672,320 (3206.098) 30,367,222 863,941 

$ 8,967,953 9,313,887 7,550,927 3,205,096 10,756,025 1,442,136 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
BRIDGE SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Positive 

Orlglnal Final Actual Baolo (Negative) Adlustments 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings 
interest Earnings - Restricted 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair 
Value of Investments 

Refunding Gain 
lntenrl Expense 
Principal Paid Revenue Bands 
Fiscal Agent Fees 
Bond Issuance Cost Amonized 
Loss on Advanca Refunding 
Construdion 
Other 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES) 

Income Before Contributions 
and Transfers 

Transfers In: 
Bridge Operating Fund 
Capital lmprovments Fund 

Transfers Out: 
Capital lmpwments Fund 
Communication System fund 
Debt Service 
Bridge Construction Pmjeds 
Bridge Debt Service 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets-Beginning 

To ld  Net Assets-Ending $ 208,261 &863.0871, 28,053,299 ('14,827,2721 13,226,086 26,089,173 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
BRIDGE SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments for interfund services used 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 
Transfer from other funds 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt 
lnterest paid on capital debt 
Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
lnterest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 77,777 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
BRIDGE SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
lncrease in allowance for uncollectible accounts 
lncrease in customer deposits 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in deferred revenues 
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 
Gain on Refunding Issue 
Bond issuance cost amortized 
lncrease (Decrease) in fair value of investments 
Loss on Advance Refunding 

(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL HOUSING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30, 2006 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Positive 

Original Flnal Actual Adluslmenb Basis (Ne~ative) 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Rental of Facilities 
Charges for Services 
Misceilaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Airpod Housing: 
Penonnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Canlractual Services 
Other 

Total Airpan Housing 

West Laredo Housing: 
Penonnel Services 
Materials and Supplier 
Conlractual Services 
Other 

Total West Laredo Housing 

Total Operating Expenses Before 
Depreciation 

Depreciation Expense 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating Income (Loss) $ 118.990 134,990 262.820 119,092 381,912 246,922 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREOO, TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL HOUSING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 

Budgeted Amount Actual variance 
Budget positive 

Orlglnal F ind  Actual Adjustments Basis (Ne~allve) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings $ 40.200 40.200 49,938 49.938 9,738 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair 
Value of Investments 3.599 3.599 3.599 

Gain on Sale of Asseb 500 500 (5001 
Capital Outlay (18,500) (16.9531 113.680) (13.680) 3,273 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES) 22.200 23.747 53,537 113.680) 39.867 16,110 

lnmme (Loss) Before Contributions 
and Transfers 141,190 158,737 316,357 105.412 421.769 263,032 

Transfers Out: 
Capital lmpmvemsnts Fund (1,427,000) (1,427,000) - (1.427.000) 
Communtcatiw, System Fund (17,5472 117.489) (17.489) 58 

Change in Net Assets 141,190 (1.285.81o) (1,128,132) 105.412 (1.022.720) 263,090 

Total Net Assets-Beginning 2,730.019 2,730,019 2.730.019 2,730,019 

Tob l  ~ s t  ~ssets-Ending $ 2 , 8 7 1 , 2 0 9  1,444209 1,601,887 105,412 1,707,299 - 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL HOUSING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments for interfund services used 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of capital assets 
Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 2,299 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL HOUSING CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
lncrease in allowance for uncollectible accounts 
lncrease in customer deposits 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in deferred revenues 
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital and financing 
activities: 

lncrease (Decrease) in fair value of investements 

(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
WATERWORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Pos l t l~e  

Ortglnal Flnal A c t ~ s l  Adjustments 88~18  (Neqatlve) 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Charger for Services 
Rental of Facilities and Equipment 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

General and Administrative: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contradual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

Total General and Administrative 

Utility Engineering: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total Utility Engineering 

Utility Billing: 
Personnel Serviceo 
Materials and Supplies 
Contradual Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total Utility Billing 

Asset Management: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contradual Services 

Total Asset Management 

Water Treatment: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 

Total Water Treatment 

Transmission and Distribution: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Serviceo 
Capital Outlay 

TMal Transmission and Distribution $ 2,751.022 3,201,589 2,803,090 126.654 2,784,262 136,953 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
WATERWORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Positive 

Original Final Actual Adlustments Basis (Negative) 

Water Pollution Control: 
Personnel Services $ 313,508 344.590 343,670 (3.805) 339.865 4,725 
Materials and Supplier 36,304 33.030 27,226 27.226 5.604 
Contractual Services 189,460 168,969 131,974 131.974 36,995 

Total Water Pollution Control 539.272 546,589 502,870 (3.805) 499,065 47,524 

Tdai Operating Expenses Before 
Depreciation 12,158,601 13,956,802 14,010.809 29.470 13,882,961 (208.370) 

Depreciation Expense 5,198,812 (5,198,812) 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 12,158,601 13,966.802 19,209,521 (5,169,342) 43,892,961 (208,370) 

Operating incame (Loss) 4,286.168 3,543,857 4,252,661 5.169342 9,569,321 6,025,364 

NONOPERATING REMNUES (EXPENSES): 

investment income: 
interest Earnings 
interest Earnings Restricted 
Net increase (Decrease) in Fair 
Value of investments 

Disca~nt Earnings 
Premiums 
Bond issuer 
intereat Expense 

Principal Paid Revenue Bond I 
Capital Leases 

Fiscal Agent Fees 
Bond Issuance Cost Amortized 
LOSS on Advance Funding 
Water Availability 
Construction 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REMNUES 
(EXPENSES) 

income Before Contributions 
and Tranofers 

Capital Contributions: 
State Capital Grant 
Contributions - Waterrights 
Contributions - Rain Enhancement 
COntributionO - Developers 

Transfer in: 
W a t e ~ ~ o r k ~  System 

Transfers Out: 
General Fund 
Communication System Fund 
Debt Service Fund 
Water Construction Fund 
Water Bond 
Water Debt Service 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Asrets-Beginning 

T o h l  Net Asrets-Ending 



CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services provided 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments for interfund services used 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
WATERWORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 
Net cash provlded (used) by noncapital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from capital debt 
Capital contributions 
Purchases of capital assets 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt 
lnterest paid on capital debt 
Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
lnterest and dividends received 
Issuance of Notes Receivable 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 164,880 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
WATERWORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
lncrease (decrease) in allowance for uncollectible accounts 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
lncrease (decrease) in customer deposits 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in deferred revenues 
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 
Bond issuance cost amortized 
Contributions of capital assets from developers 
lncrease (Decrease) in fair value of investments 
lncrease (Decrease) in Accrued Interest Payable 
Loss on Advance Refunds 

(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SEWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AN0 CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2008 

Budgeted Amount A c t ~ a l  Variance 
Budget Positive 

Orislnal Final Actual Adjustments Basis (Ne~atlvel 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

Charges for Services 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

Administrative: 
Caniractual Services 
Other 

Total Administrative 

Wastewater Treatment: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total Wastewater Treatment 

Wastewater Collection: 
Perronnal Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total Wastewater Collection 

Total Operating Expenses Before 
Depreciation 

Depreciation Expense 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating Incame (Loss) 

7,971,866 8.727.172 8,486,409 238.249 9,724,658 2,514 
3,681,453 (3,681,453) 

7,971,868 8,727,172 12,167,882 (3,443,204) 8,724,868 2,514 

$ 5,178,158 4.422.852 2,370.416 3.443.204 5,613,620 1,390,768 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
SEWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 

Budgeted Amount Actual Varlance 
Budget P o s l t i ~ ~  

Original Flnill Actual Adiustments Baals [Negative) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Investment Income: 
Interest Earnings $ 120,000 120.000 359.999 359,999 239.999 
Interest Earnings Restricted 485,700 501.535 673,502 673,502 171.967 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair 
Value of Investments 29,384 29,384 29,384 

Discounts 
Bond Issues 
Premium 5,098 5,098 5.098 
Interest Expense (405,752) (405.752) (458,565) 52.120 (406.445) (693) 
Principal Paid Revenue Bond / 

Capital Leases (838,800) (836,800) (839.000) (839.000) (200) 
Fiscal Agent Fees (3.000) (3,000) (3.300) (3.3001 (3001 
Bond Issuance Cost Amortized (33.606) 33,606 
LOOP on Advance Refunding (33.547) (56,310) (91.857) (91.857) 
Const~Ction (21.469.584) (27,606,590) (36,327) (3,047,676) (3,084.003) 24,722.587 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES) (22,1i1,436I 123,892,509) 502.639 675.740 4,178,379 25,070,888 

Income Before Contributions 
and Transfen 

Capital Contributions: 
State Capital Grant 
Contributions- Developers & Others 

Transfers In: 
Sewer Operating Fund 

Transfers Outs: 
General Fund 
Communication System Fund 
Debt Service Fund 
Sewer Debt Service 
Sewer Construdion Fund 
Sewer Bond Funds 

Change in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets-Beginning 

Total Net Assets-Ending 



CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services provided 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments for interfund services used 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SEWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from capital debt 
Purchases of capital assets 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt 
lnterest paid on capital debt 
Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
lnterest and dividends received 
Issuance of Notes Receivable 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 81,811 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SEWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
lncrease (decrease) in allowance for uncollectible accounts 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in deferred revenues 
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 
Contributions of capital assets from developers & others 
Bond issuance cost amortized 
lncrease (Decrease) in fair value of investments 
lncrease (Decrease) in Accrued Interest Payable 

(Continued) 



Charges for Services 
Rental of Facilities 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

Administration: 

CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
SOL10 WASTE MANAGEMENT FUN0 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30, ZOO6 

BudgeDd Amount Actual V ~ r i m c ~  
Budget Positive 

Original Final Actual Adlustmants Basis INagativs) 

Other 

Total Administration 

Creek Cleaninn: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Servic~s 
Capital Outlay 

Totel Creek Cleaninn 

Sanitation: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

Total Sanitation 

Landfill: 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Sueplies 
Contractual Services 
Other 
Capital Outlay 

Total Landfill 

Total Operatinn Expense8 Before 
Depreciation 

Depreciation E x ~ e n s e  

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 



CITY OF LAREDO. TEXAS 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
Year ended September 30. 2006 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Positiua 

Orlglnal Final Actual Adiuatments Ba& INwativel 

NONOPERATING REVENUES IEXPENSESI: 

Investment Inmme: 
Interest Earnings 
ln tere~t  Earnings-Restricted 
Net Increase IDecreasel in Fair 

Value of Investments 
Premiums 
D i ~ c o ~ n f  Eernings 
Capital Lease Proceeds 
interest Exwnss 

Princi~al Paid Revenue Bandl 
C ~ ~ i t a l  LBBSBS 
Gain From Sale of Assets 
Loss From Sale of Assets 
c0nstructi0n 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 
IEXPENSESI 

Income Before Contributions 
and Transfers 

Transfero Out: 
Debt Service Fund 
Communi~ation System Fund 

Chan~e  in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets-Beginning 
Prior Period AdiuStmsnt 

Total Nst Assel~Endinn 



CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts from customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services provided 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments for interfund services used 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Year ended September 30, 2006 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Transfer to other funds 
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 

and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of capital assets 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Proceeds from sales of capital assets 
Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 27,375 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Year ended September 30, 2006 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided (usedl by operating 
activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
(Increase) decrease in landfill closure and post closure costs 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
lncrease in allowance for uncollectible accounts 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable 
lncrease (decrease) in deferred revenues 
lncrease (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
lncrease (decrease) in accrued wages and employee benefits 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital, and financing 
activities: 

Current closure and post closure costs 
Loss on sale of equipment 
lncrease (Decrease) in fair value of investments 

(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
LAREOO WATER CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF REVENI N FUND NET ASSETS 

Budgeted Amount Actual Variance 
Budget Positive 

Orisinal Final Actual Adjustments Basis INegative) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

Construction $ (1,200,000~ (1.200.000) 1,200,000 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 
(EXPENSES) (1.200.000) 11,200,000) 1,200.000 

income Before ContributionD 
and Transfers (1.200.000) (1.200.000) 

Contributions 1,200.000 1,200.000 (1,200.000) 

Change In Net Assets 

Total Net AaeetsBeginning 

Total Net Assets-Ending I- - 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
LAREDO WATER CORPORATION 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended September 30,2006 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Advances from other funds 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of capital assets 
Net cash provided (used) by capital 
and related financing activities 

Net increase in  cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 



FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an 
agent for other agencies or individuals, private organizations or governmental 
units, andlor other funds. Fiduciary funds include pension trust funds and 
agency funds. 

Agency funds include: 

ANNUITY FUND - to account for cash transfers received from other City funds, 
which are used towards insurance premium payments for various retired 
City employees. 

PAYROLL CLEARING - to account for cash transfers received from other City 
funds and the disbursement of net wages and payroll related fringe 
benefits and payables. 

POLICE HEALTH & BENEFITS - to account for contributions made by city 
police officers and the City for expenses associated with health benefits 
premiums for retired police officers. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

AGENCY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

PAYROLL POLICE TOTAL 
CLEARING HEALTH B BENEFIT AGENCY 

FUND FUND FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Equity in Investment Pool 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Investments, at Fair Market Value 
Accounts Receivable (Note 7) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 
Due To Other Funds 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,604,775 34,715 2,639,490 

NET ASSETS 

Held In Trust for Pension Benefits, Plan Participants, 
and Other Purposes $ 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUNDS 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

PAYROLL CLEARING FUND 

Balance Balance 
Beginning End 

of Year Additions Deductions of Year 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Equity in Investment Pool $ 4,492 75,707,197 75,698,692 12,997 

Accrued Interest Receivable 12,714 15.728 12,714 15,728 
Investments, at Fair Market Value 2,504,022 2,573,565 2,504,022 2,573,565 
Accounts Receivable 2,194 488 197 2,485 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,523,422 78,296,978 78,215,625 2,604,775 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 2,322,177 60,672,811 60,597,159 2,397,829 
Accrued Wages and Employee Benefits 201,245 35,696,722 35,691,021 206,946 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 2,523,422 96,369,533 96,288,180 2,604,775 - 

POLICE HEALTH AND BENEFIT FUND 
Balance Balance 

Beginning End 
of Year Additions Deductions of Year 

ASSETS 

Accounts Receivable 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 

Due To Other Funds 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 290 34,715 290 34,715 
(Continued) 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
AGENCY FUNDS 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

(Continued) 

TOTALS-ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Balance Balance 

Beginning End 
of Year Additions Deductions of Year 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
Equity in Investment Pool $ 4,492 75,707,197 75,698.692 12,997 

Accrued Interest Receivable 12,714 15.728 12,714 15,728 
Accounts Receivable 2,494 34,903 197 37,200 
Investments, at Fair Market Value 2,504,022 2,573,565 2,504,022 2,573,565 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,523,722 78,331,393 78,215,625 2,639,490 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 2,322,177 60,672,811 60,597.159 2,397,829 
Accrued Wages and Benefits 201,245 35,696,722 35,691.021 206,946 
Due To Other Funds 290 34,715 290 34,715 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 2,523,712 96,404,248 96,288,470 2,639,490 - 



STATISTICAL SECTION 



CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 
STATISTICAL SECTION 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Principal presentations included in the Statistical Section provide data on the 
financial, physical, and economic characteristics of the City. These tables cover 
multiple fiscal periods and provide users with a broader and more complete 
understanding of the City and its financial affairs. 

Name of Table 

Government-Wide Expenses by Function 

Government-Wide Revenues 

General Governmental Expenditures by Function 

General Governmental Revenues by Source 

General Governmental Tax Revenues by Source 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments 

Special Assessments Billings and Collections 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and 

Net Bonded Debt per Capita 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General 

Bonded Debt to Total General Government Expenditures 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Revenue Bond Coverage - Bridge, Water, Sewer 

System and Sports Venue 

Demographics Statistics 

Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposits 

Principal Taxpayers 

Principal Employers 

Principal Water Consumers 

Miscellaneous Statistics 

Insurance in Force 

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 

Operating Indicators by Function 

24 Capital Assets by Function 
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RCE b 
LAST TEN FISCAL PERIODS I 

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Fund tax revenues. 

City of Laredo. Texas 
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TS - 
LASTTEN FISCAL PERIODS 

TAX RATES (per $100 of assessed value) 

TAX LEVIES 

INDEPENDENT 
SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 

INDEPENDENT 

DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY 
COLLEGE 

City of Laredo, Texas 
Webb County Appraisal District Offlce 



COLLECTIONS CURRENT AND DELINQUENT 

BILLINGS AND COLLECTIONS (1) 

(1) The Charter of the City of Laredo allows the City Council to assess the costs of street paving and sidewalk construction 
to the adjacent owners. Normally, this is collected in equal principal installments over a five year period with interest 
computed at eight percent. 
This assessment constitutes a lien against the property which may be foreclosed upon default. 

CITY OF LAREDO, T t M S  

(2) Assessments beginning balance include Principal 8 Interest and are net of allowance for uncoliectible. 

t - 

City of Laredo. Texas 



COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN I 1 CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 

AND AUTHORIZED AND UNISSUED BONDS 

I TABLE 101 

The Constitution of Texas in Article 11, Section 5, limits the maximum amount that a home rule 
city can tax to $2.50 per $100.00 of valuation and the same Article provides that no debt shall 
ever be created by any city unless at the same a time provision is made to assess and collect 
annually a sufficient sum to pay the interest thereon and create a sinking fund of at least two 
percent thereon. The Attorney General of Texas, in connection with the quoted provision, has 
created a rule for the guidance of home rule cities which states that the bond allowable under 
this constitutional provision shall be on the basis of no greater than $1.50 per $100.00 of 
valuation unless the city charter provides for less than the maximum specified in the 
Attorney General's rule. City Charter Section 6.13. as amended in November 1995. limits the 
total overall outstanding debt to 10% of the total assessed valuation of the City At this time, the 
City has allocated approximately $.I24981 of the total tax rate. 

Assessed value based on 2005 tax roll .................................................................... 

................. Maximum amount of bonded indebtedness based on such assessed value (10%) 

Amount of debt applicable to said maximum debt limit: 

Total General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligations ... $155,940,000 

(Percentage of G. 0. and C. 0. debt to assessed value) 2.09% 

Less: Debt Service Fund Balance as of September 30, 2006 ............. $6,508,489 

................................................................................... Total Amount of debt applicable to debt limit 

.......... The Debt Margin between current indebtedness and maximum allowable indebtedness 



MTIOOFNETGENEMLBONDEDDEBTTOASSESSEDVALUE 
AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA 

I TABLE 11 I 

8 DEBT SERVICE ASSESSEDVALUE 

2006 224,695 $ 7,449,143,814 $ 158,972,282 $ 6,508.489 $ 152,463,793 2.0467% 678.54 

[EET 

(1) Includes General Obligation and Certificates of Obligation Bonds. 

pizimq 
City of Laredo, Texas 

(A) Information was obtained from Lareda Development Foundation 



RAL 
BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES (11 1 . . 
LAST TEN FISCAL PERIODS I 

PERIODS 

1997 

1998 

1999 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 - 

&FISCAL 
CHARGES 

7.781.508 

8,242,034 

9,439.370 

8,095,218 

9,277,581 

10,027,116 

9,857,015 

9,412,153 

9,138,859 

8,663,891 

rq 
SERVICE 

16,921,508 

16,672,034 

17,384.371 

16,820,218 

18,637,581 

20,727,116 

22.1 12,015 

22,912,153 

23,533,859 

24.348.891 

CITY O m ,  TEXAS I - 

(1) Total general expenditures consist of the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund 
Capital Projects Funds and Expendable Trusts. 

SERVICE TO GENERAL 
EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES 

CiV of Laredo. Texas 



~KLAITINZ D ~ U T  
SEPTEMBER 30.2006 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS 

Direct: 
City of Laredo 

) 

Overlapping: 
Webb County 

OUTSTANDING (A) 

Laredo lndepender 31 Di! 

United Independent School District 325,299,583 

Laredo Community College 137,045,591 

Total Overlapping 806,392,990 

Total $962,332,990 

% APPLICABLE APPLICABLE 

(A) Finance Departments of respective entities 
(B) Webb County Appraisal District 



SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE 
BRIDGE, WATER. SEWER SYSTEM AND SPORTS VENUE 
LAST TEN FISCAL PERIODS 

I CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS1 

r-XEm-4 

Brldge 20,619.189 12,984,252 7,634,937 1,010,000 956.780 1,966,780 38e 

Water 11,927,523 6,768,364 5,159,159 312.680 625,140 937.820 5.50 

Sewer 9,890,576 5,008,293 4,882,283 470.000 539,290 1,009.290 4.84 

Total 1997 42.437.288 24,760,909 17,676,379 1,792,680 2,121,210 3,913.890 4.52 

FISCAL 
PERIODS I INTEREST 1 I TOTAL I 

Bridge 22.569.846 15.056.724 7,513,122 1,055,000 896.180 1,951.180 3.85 

Water 13,985,646 7,946,922 6,038.724 500.000 559.952 1,059.952 5.70 

Sewer 12,048,460 5.241.404 8,807,056 500.000 426,041 926,041 7.35 

Total '1998 48,603,952 28,245,050 20,358,902 2.055.000 1,882,473 3.937.1 73 5.17 

- 
REVENUE 

BOND 
COVERAGE 

(3) 

Bridge 28,671,610 17,385,806 11,285,804 2,675,000 2,449.904 5,124.904 2.20 

Water 13,738,018 7,856,511 5,881.507 535.000 526,696 1,061,696 5.54 

Sewer 11,996,306 5,522,559 8,473,747 560,000 394,735 954,735 6.78 

Total '1999 54,405.934 30,764.876 23,641,058 3,770.000 3,371,335 7,141,335 3.31 

Bridge 32,789,832 19,533,598 13,256,234 3,030,000 2.774.346 5,804,346 2.28 

Water 16,360,173 9,413,042 6,947,131 605,000 494,210 1.099.210 6.32 

Sewer 13,498,896 6,049,102 7,449,594 835,000 362,084 997,064 7.47 

Total 2000 62,648.701 34,995,742 27,852,959 4.270.000 3,630,640 7,900,640 3.50 

Bridge 31,705,719 21,186,065 10,519,654 3,350.000 2,510,790 5,880,790 1.79 

Water 17,102.442 10,074,813 7,027,629 690,000 456,915 1,146,915 6.13 

Sewer 13,499,699 8,609,398 6,890301 680,000 326.839 1,006,839 6.84 

ports Venue 2,387,246 288,005 2,119,241 683,088 883,088 3.10 

Total 2001 64,695,106 38,138.281 26,556,825 4,720,000 3,977,832 8,697,832 3.05 

Brldge 34,408,912 24,093.889 10,315.023 12,105,000 3,697,409 15,802.409 0.65 

Water 16,773,484 9,383,511 7.409.973 705,000 416,018 1,121,018 6.61 

Sewer 13,158,360 6.389.656 6,768,704 4,905,000 295.135 5,200.135 1.30 

porn Venue 4,524.646 80,244 4,444,402 2,049,266 2,049,266 2.17 

Total 2002 68,865,402 39,927,300 28.938.102 17,715,000 6,457,828 24,772,828 1.20 



.. 
SCHE-DULE OF REVENUE sbljd COVERAGE 
BRIDGE. WATER. SEWER SYSTEM AND SPORTS VENUE 
LAST TEN FISCAL PERIODS 

L CITY OF LAREOO.  TEXAS^ 

(Continued) 

Bridge 34,836,756 24.944.447 9,892309 1,408,433 31,865 1,440,298 6.87 

Water 15,427,890 9,122,153 6,305,537 725,000 408,121 1,133,121 5.56 

Sewer 12,969,437 7,399.556 5,569,861 870,000 216,629 1,086,629 5.13 

Sports Venue 4,737.203 46.281 4,890,922 430.000 2,039,591 2,469,591 1.90 

Total 2003 87,971,066 41.512.437 26,458,849 3,433,433 2,696,206 6,129,639 4.32 

1 PRINCIPAL 1 I INTEREST 1 I TOTAL I 

- -  -- 

Bridge 35,574,012 25,785,422 9,788,590 4,320,000 4,058,000 6,376,000 

Water 15,902.648 9,801,112 8,101,538 6,545,000 427,693 7,072,893 

Sewer 13,298,851 6,648,103 6,648,748 885.000 252,888 1,137,868 

Sporla Venue 5,188,849 88,888 5,119,980 525,000 2,018.104 2,543.104 

Total 2004 89,952,360 42,303,526 27,858,834 12,375,000 6,756,865 19,131,885 1 45 

-EiGiF 
BOND 

COVERAGE 

(3) 

Brldge 39,231,949 28,552,848 12,679,103 39,002,257 4.351.239 43353.496 0.29 

Water 18,736,504 10,991,334 7.745.170 943,000 467.131 1.410.131 5.49 

Sewer 14,409,247 6,811,361 7,597.886 727.000 355,530 1,082,530 7.02 

Sports Venue 6,169,250 39.752 6,129,498 625.000 1,922,269 2.547269 2.41 

Total 2005 78,548,950 44395.293 34,151,657 41,297.257 7,096,169 48,393,428 0.71 

Bridge 42,757,184 30,396,800 12,360,364 3,866,378 4,482,527 8,348,905 1.48 

Water 25,205,737 14.010.809 11,194,928 1.263.000 704,275 1,967,275 5.69 

Sewer 15.601.163 8,488,409 7,114,754 839,000 458,565 1,297.565 5.48 

Sporla Venue 6,814,948 173.785 8,441,163 930,000 1,818,838 2,748,838 2.34 

Total 2006 90,179.012 53,067,803 37,111,209 6,898,378 7,464,205 14362,583 2.58 

(1) Includes Operating Revenue and Interest Earnings. 
(2) Includes Operating Expenses other than Interest Expense. Depreciation. Amortization, and other non-operating expenses. 
(3) Revenue Band Coveage is equal to Net Revenue Available for Debt Service divided by total DeM Service Requirements. 

pimE- 
Cily of Laredo, Texas 



DEMOGRAPHICS STATISTICS 

CENSUS CENSUS CENSUS 

WHITE 
BLACK 
OTHER 

HISPANIC PERCENTAGE 93.03% 93.86% 94.10% 

TOTAL HOUSEHOLDS 
HOUSEHOLD POPULATION 
AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD SIZE 

MEDIAN AGE TOTAL POPULATION 
MEDIAN AGE ADULT POPULATION 

MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME 
AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD INCOME 
MEDIAN FAMILY INCOME 
AGGREGATE HOUSEHOLD INCOME 

Laredo Chamber of Commerce 

$29.108 
NIA 

30,449 
NIA 

(Continued) 



DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

I UNEMPLOYMENT I 
6,114 

6.199 

5,034 

4.303 

4,551 

5,028 

4,998 

4,655 

4,103 

3.938 

I TABLE 15) 

(Continued) 

I EMPLOYMENT I 
58,838 

61.528 

61,905 

65,292 

66,957 

70.61 1 

71,987 

77.184 

77,618 

82.509 

Texas Labor Market Information 

Numbers as of September 30 for each year 



TABLE 151 

G R O W T H  I N D I C A T O R S  ( I )  A I IELEPHONE(3) I 

2006 70,083 31,733 57,489 54,568 

INOTES:I 
(1) Amount represents number of active customer accounts. 

(2) Represents total revenue collected. 

(3) Legislation prohibits disclosure of telephone accounts information. 

(Continued) 

(4) Electric increase was estimated by 4.00% for 2001 - 2004 

p H E q  

Finance Department of respective entities 
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SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

City Of Laredo. Texas 

I Table171 

I TAXPAYER I 
CO~OCO Phlllipb Company 

Lewis Petroleum Properties Ins. 

EOG RB80UrCe6 IncIMin Acctr 

Rosena RBSOUTCOS 

HOU610n Exploration Company 

Chevron USA, Inc. 

AEP Texas Central Company 

Laredo Temp Hospital Co LP 

Killam Oil Company Lld. 

Bwni Mineral Trust 112 

TOTAL 

SEPTEMBER 30.1997 

I TAXPAYER I 
Central Power 8 Light Company 

Southwestern Bell 

Lone Star Mall Assoc. 

H E  Bun Gl~cery Co. 

Klllam Ind. Dev. Partnership Ltd. 

Laredo National Bank 

United Stater Cold Storage 

lnlernational Bank01 Commerce 

Soulhwestern Motor Trampon Inc. 

HarecoNlmosa 

Total 

BUSINESS 

Petroleum 

Petroleum 

Petmleum 

Petroleum 

Petroleum 

Petroleum 

Eleclricity 

Medical 

Petroleum 

Petroleum 

BUSINESS 

Utility 

Telephone Co. 

Mall 

Grocer 

Development 

Banking 

Cold Storage 

Banking 

Freighl 

Development 

Numbers show total comparison lor principal taxpayers as 012008 and 10 yrs ago 

SOURCE: I 

VALUATION 

REAL h PERSONAL 

PROPERN 

VALUATION 

REAL & PERSONAL 

PROPERN 

558,191,590 

29.950.430 

27.045.930 

25,718,986 

22,425,200 

21,824,840 

20,469,272 

17,613,557 

15.M9.371 

15,360,350 

$254.049.526 

OF TOTAL 

ASSESSED 

VALUATION 

13.19% 

2.62% 

2.55% 

1.77% 

1.66% 

1.47% 

1.46% 

1.34% 

1.14% 

110% 

28.29% 

OF TOTAL 

ASSESSED 

VALUATION 

1.53% 

0.79% 

0.71% 

0.6846 

0.59% 

0.57% 

0.54% 

0.46% 

0.41% 

0.40% 

6.67% 

WebbCounty Appraisal Dlstricl 

227 



PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

EMPLOYER 

United lndependent School District 

Laredo lndependent School District 

City of Laredo 

McDonald's 

Webb County 

Laredo Medical Center 

The Laredo National Bank 

HEB Grocery Store 

Texas A & M International University 

Wal-Mart (2 locations) 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
SEPTEMBER 30,1997 C 
Laredo Independent School District 3,645 

United Independent School District 2,845 

Texas Gas Corp. 2,400 

City of Laredo 1,800 

Laredo Medical Center 1.762 

H.E.B. Grocery Store 1,500 

Webb County 1,050 

McDonald's 700 

Laredo National Bank 537 

Laredo Community College 465 

Principal Employers numbers as of September 2006 and 10 years ago. 

Laredo Development Foundation 
Data compiled as of February 2006 

 CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS[ 

I TABLE 181 

OF TOTAL CITY 

6.28% 

5.14% 

2.88% 

1.84% 

1.80% 

1.72% 

1.64% 

1.60% 

1.25% 

1.18% 



t I CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS I 

- 1 
Laredo Medical Center 

Texas AAM International University 

Laredo Municipal Housing Corp 

Webb County Jail 

C.P.L. Power Plant 

City of Laredo 

Regent Care Center of Laredo 

Broad Acres Apt. 

Towne North Mobil Homes 

Border Lease Sewice. Inc 

SERVICE I 
Hospital 

Education 

Housing 

County Jail 

Utility 

Cily 

Nursing Home 

Housing 

Housing 

Oil Field 

PRINCIPAL WATER CONSUMERS 
SEPTEMBER 30,1997 h 

Mercy Regional Medical Center Hospital 

Laredo Housing AuthariwColonia Guadalupe Housing 

Veterans Field Recreation 

Laredo Housing Authority-5800 Springfield Housing 

Webb County Jail County 

Cigarroa High School School 

Retama Manor Nursing School 

Laredo Housing Authority-Richter Courts Housing 

Landa Property Management Housing 

Holiday Inn-Laredo Hotel 

(1) Total consumption by gallon. 

Numbers show total comparison for principal water consumers as of fiscal year 2006 and 10 years ago. 

City of Laredo, Texas 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 

I General 

Form of Government: 

Terms of Office: 

Date of First Charter Adoption: 

Date of Original Public Sale 
Of Town Lots: 

Second Charter: 

Home Rule Amendment to Charter: 

Amendments to Charter: 

NJmber of C ry Employees 
as of Septemoer 30, 2006. 

TABLE 201 

City Manager 8 City Council 

Mayor-4 Year Term (2 Terms Maximum) 
City Council-4 Year Staggered Terms (2 Terms Maximum) 
City Manager-Appointed by City Council 

February 23, 1911 

January 29, 1921 

July 8, 1941, January& 1946, October 9, 1951, April 3, 1962, 
November 30, 1965, January 14, 1981, January 16, 1988. November 7, 1995 and 
August 28.2006 

Number of City Departments 
as of September 30. 2006: 26 

Area in Square Miles by ten year periods for the last 50 
years and current periods. 

YEAR 

1971 
1981 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 

LAND AREA INCREASE TOTAL 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 

t Elections 

Number of Registered Voters: 

Number of Votes cast in 

Last Municipal Election: May 06 

% of Registered Voter voting in 

Last Municipal Election: 

TRANSPORTATION 

AIRPORTS 

Number of Airpolts: 

Name of Airport 

Scheduled Airplane Flights 
Per Day Departing: 

Scheduled Airplane Flights 
Per Day Arriving: 

Passengers Enplaning: 

Passengers Deplaned: 

BRIDGES 

Number of Bridges: 

Name of Bridges: 

Number of crossing Pick-ups. 
Motorcycles. Autos 8 2 Axle 

Vehicles: 

Number of crossing Commercial 
Vehicles: 

Number of crossing Passenger 
(includes bicycles): 

Laredo International Airport 
Flights daily tolfrom 
Houston, Dallas, Mexico D. F. 8 Las Vegas 

Monday 9, Tuesday 9, Wednesday 9, Thursday 10; 
Friday 9; Saturday 6; 8 Sunday 8 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS1 

I TABLE 201 
continued 

Monday 9, Tuesday 9, Wednesday 9, Thursday 10: 
Friday 9: Saturday 6; &Sunday 8 

92,783 per year 

93.979 per year 

Gateway to the Americas Bridge 
Juarez - Lincoln International Bridge 
Colombia Solidarity Bridge 
World Trade Bridge 

Total Tolls 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

RAILROADS 

Number of Railroads: 
Names of Railroads: 

HIGHWAYS 

Number of Highways: 

Name of Major Highways 

BUS LINES 

Name of Local Bus line: 

Number of Adult Passengers: 

Number of Elderly 8 Handicapped Paid: 

Number of Elderly & Handicapped Free: 

Number of Students: 

Number of Children Paid: 

Number of Children Free: 

Number of Transfers: 

Number of ID.  cards for elderly 

Number of Medical Cards 

Number of Service Miles: 

Number of Charter Miles: 

Number of Employees: 

Name of Interstate Bus Lines: 

4 
Texas-Mexican Railroad 
Union Pacific Railroad 
American President Lines 
Pacer Stacktrain 

iH 35, US HWY 59, US HWY 81 
US HWY 83, TX HWY 359, Bob Bullock Loop 
IH 35 connects in Mexico with 
National HWY 85. The Pan Am 
hW connects Mex co to 
Central 8 South Amer ca 

Laredo Municipal Transit 
System 

Greyhound Lines 
Autobuses Latinos de Greyhound, 
El Conejo, 
Americanos USA, 
El Expreso Bus Co., 
Autobuses Adame, 
Cougar Buslines, 
Tornado Bus Company, 
Turimex, 
Ybarra Brothers 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS1 

TABLE 201 
continued 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 t 

I FIRE PROTECTION I 
Number of Stations: 

Number of Hydrants: 

Number of Fire Pumpers: 

Number of Aerial Trucks: 

Number of Ambulances: 

Number of Crash Trucks: 

Number of Brush Trucks 

Number of Haz-Mat Trucks: 

Number of Firefighters: 

Number of EMS Paramedics: 

Employees per 1.000 population: 

POLICE PROTECTION 

Number of Stations: 

Number of Neighborhood Policing 
Stations: 

Number of Sworn ORcers: 

Number of Vehicular Patrol Units: 

Employees per 1.000 Population: 

Number of Law Violations: 

Number of Physical Arrests: 

Number of Traffic Violations: 

Number of 91 I Calls: 

Number of Non-911 Calls: 

MEDICAL FACILITIES 

Number of Hospitals: 

Number of Clinics: 

Number of Nursing Homes: 

Reserve: 4 

Reserve: 0 

Reserve: 4 

Reserve: 1 

Reserve: 1 

1 Police Headquarters 

I TABLE 201 
continued 

Number of Ambulance Services: 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

PUBLIC WORKS 

WATERWORKS SYSTEM 

Miles of Water Mains: 

Daily Average Consumption: 

Plant Capacity: 

Storage Capacity: 

Water Rights Owned: 

Source of Water: 

Number of Service Connections: 

SEWER SYSTEM 

Mile of Sanitary Sewer: 

Number of Lifl Stations: 

Daily Average Treatment: 

Maximum Capacity of 
Treatment Plants: 

Number of Disposal Plants: 

Number of Service Connections: 

Number of Garbage Connections: 

Solid Waste Disposal Type: 

STREETS 

Number of Paved Streets: 

Number of Unpaved Streets: 

Miles of Paved Streets: 

Miles of Unpaved Streets: 

629 

34.67 M.G.D. 

72 M.G.D. 

3.5 M.G.D. 

46.265.15 A.C.1 F.T. 

Rio Grande 

61,772 

426 

76 

17 MGD 

21.05 MGD 

5 

58.796 

52,014 

Landfill 

10,200 Blocks 

60 Blocks 

644 Miles 

4 Miles 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS1 

TABLE 201 
continued 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 

I EDUCATIONAL 

p 

Number of Senior High Schools: 

Number Of Magnet Schools: 

Number of Classrooms: 

Number of Administrative Personnel: 

Number of Teachers 

Number of Students: 

Annual Budget: 

Number of Middle Schools: 

Number of Classrooms: 

Number of Administrative Personnel: 

Number of Teachers: 

Number of Students: 

Annual Budget 

Number of Elementary Schools: 

Number of Classrooms: 

Number of Administrative Personnel: 

Number of Teachers: 

Number of Students: 

Annual Budget: 

I CIN OF LAREDO,  TEXAS^ 
I TABLE 201 

continued 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 t 
UNITED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Number of Senior High Schools: 

Number Of Magnet Schools: 

Number of Classrooms: 

Number of Administrative Personnel: 

Number of Teachers: 

Number of Students: 

Annual Budget: 

Number of Middle Schools: 

Number of Classrooms: 

Number of Administrative Personnel: 

Number of Teachers: 

Number of Students: 

Annual Budget: 

Number of Elementary Schools: 

Number of Classrooms: 

Number of Administrative Personnel: 

Number of Teachers: 

Number of Students: 

Annual Budget: 

I TABLE 201 
continued 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 t 

LIBRARIES 

Number of Public Libraries: 

Number of Volumes: 

Circulation transactions: 

Circulation per Capita: 

New Library Cards Issued: 

Library Cards in Force: 

Number of Suscriptions: 

Number of Titles: 

Number of Library Visits: 

Number of Materials Used: 

Library Programs Presented: 

Number Attending Library Programs: 

Bookmobiles: 

Branches and Outlets: 

PRIVATE SCHOOLS 

Number of Parochial Schools: 

Vocational Training Centers: 

COMMUNICATIONS 

Number of Daily Newspapers 

Major Newspaper: 

Number of Radio Stations: 

Number of N Stations: 

Number of Cable Television Companies: 

Number of Satellite Companies: 

TABLE 201 
continued 

2 

Laredo Morning Times 

13 

4 

1 

2 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 C 
TEXAS ABM INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY 

Date Established: 

Programs Offered: 

Population served: 

Region Served: 

Number of ClassroomslLabs: 

Number of Administrators: 

Number of Full-Time Faculty: 

Number of Part-Time Faculty 

Number of Full-Time Students: 

Number of Part-Time Students: 

LAREDO COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Date Founded: 

Programs Offered: 

Number of Classrooms (Inc, labs): 

Total Gross Square Footage: 

Number of Administrative Personnel: 

Number of Full Time Faculty: 

Number of Part Time Faculty: 

Number of Full Time Students: 

Number of Part Time Students: 

Counties Served: 

Total Annual Budget: 

CITY OF LAREDO, TEXAS] 

I TABLE 201 
continued 

Established in 1970 as a division of Texas A & 1, 
and as a separate University in 1977 as a division of the 
University System of South Texas. The University became a member 
of the Texas A&M U. System on September 1,1989. 
Undergraduate & Graduate, and Doctoral degrees are offered by the Colleges of 
Business Administration, Education, 
Arts & Humanities & Science & Tech. 
UndergraduateIGraduate level college students seeking liberal 
arts/educationlpsychology & businesslinternational trade & 
Science & Technology degrees. 

South Texas Region 

l o7  

112 

161 

98 

2,348 

2.032 

2 Years of Pre-Professional Courses in the Fields of 
Art, Business, Computer, Education, Engineering, 
Law, Medical. Nursing, Pre-Professional, Science & 
Vocational leading to an Assoicates of Arts Diploma 
Dentistry 

1,138,903 Sq. Ft. 

Webb, Jim Hogg, Zapata 

$34,240,674 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

I RECREATIONAL 

PARKS 

Number of Acres Maintained: 

Number of Parks: 

Number of Plazas: 

Baseball &Softball Fields: 

Number of Swimming Pools: 

Number of Soccer Fields: 

Number of Tennis Court Facilities: 

Number of Raquetball Facilities: 

Number of Recreational Centers: 

CEMETERY 

City: 
Catholic: 
Private: 

Burials Served: 
Cernetely Lots Sold: 

LODGlNGlMEETlNG FACILITIES 

Number of HotelsIMotels: 

Meeting Facilities: 

340.19 

54 

4 

34 

6 

24 

24 courts in 6 facilities 

2 

7 

42 with 3,759 rooms 

18 

I CITY OF LAREDO,  TEXAS^ 
I TABLE 201 

continued 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 I 

MAJOR ATTRACTIONS 

Number of Rodeo Arenas: 

Number of Museums: 

Number of Golf Courses: 

Number of Tennis Courts: 

Number of Tennis Court Facilities: 

Number of Malls: 

Number of Bowling Alleys: 

Number of Movie Theaters: 

Number of Country Clubs: 

Annual Festivities: 

CIVIC CENTER 

Auditorium: 

Banquet 8 Exibit Hall: 

Meeting Rooms: 

Parking Spaces: 

CHURCHES 

Number of Catholic Churches: 

Number of Synagogues: 

I TABLE 201 
continued 

2 

4 

2 

24 

6 

2 

1 

2, with 22 indoor movie screens 

1 

Menudo Annual Cook-Off in January 
Washington Birthday Celebration in February 
Border Olympics in March 
Life International Fair & Exposition in March 
Expomex of Nuevo ~aredo' in September & Spring 
Diez y sies de Septiembre in September 
~ounder's Day in May 
Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony 
Ms. Texas USA Pageant 
Laredo International Sister Cities Festival 
TAMlU Folkloric Festival & TAMlU Fiesta de Mariachi 
Trail Ride & Memorial Day Pow Wow 
Cola Blanca Big Buck Contest 

1 with 1,979 Seats 

24,470 sq It 
(1,500 seats) 

4 Meeting Rooms 
with capacity of 
70 to 80 Per Room 
or 1 Room of 250 persons. 
(4.140 square footage) 

18, including 7 Missions 

Other Churches: 66 



MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

SPORTS ARENA 

Square Feet: 

Seat Capacity: 

~uxury  Suites: 

Meeting Rooms: 

Food courls: 

Team Stores: 

Parking Spaces 

Major Altraction 

CIM OF LAREDO, TEXAS[ 

TABLE 201 

178.000 

10,000 

14 

6 

2 

1 

2.000 

cFL Hockey Team: The Laredo Bucks 

Finance Department, City of Laredo 
Laredo Chamber of Commerce 
Laredo Community College 
Laredo lndependent School District 
Texas A&M International University 
United lndependent School District 
Laredo Entertainment Center 



INSURANCE IN FORCE FOR THE CITY OF LAREDO 

DESCRIPTION TYPE OF COVERAGE POLICY LIMIT 

BUILDINGS Fire and Extended Coverage ( I )  $247,225,678 

ALL PREMISES General Liability 1,000,000 

VEHICLES Automobile Liability 1,000.000 
Auto Physical Damage PER SCHEDULE, ACTUAL CASH VALUE 

LIABILITY Errors & Ommissions 1,000,000 
Public Employee Dishonesty 1,000,000 

CITY OF LAREDO,  TEXAS^ 

LAREDO WATERWORKS SYSTEM, AND THE LAREDO SEWER SYSTEM 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

PROPERTY Mobile Equipment 
Boiler 8 Machinery 

AIRPORT LIABILITY Comprehensive General Liability, 
Personal Injury Liability Coverage 
Airport Control Tower Operations 

LAW ENFORCEMENT Law Enforcement Liability 

PUBLIC OFFICIALS Personal Injury and errors and ommissions 

WORKER'S COMPENSATION All City employees for all funds- 
Employefs Liability (2) 

AIRPORT - FEDERAL TRADE ZONE Federal Trade Zone Operator's Bond 

INCLUDING THE INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE SYSTEM 

I TABLE 21 1 

11,244,214 
5,000,000 

Primary Policy 20,000,000 
Excess Policy 50,000,000 

PEROCCURANCE 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

STANDARD POLICY1 
STATUTORY LIMITS 

$50,000 

NOTES: 

(1) The property Fire and Extended Coverage Policy includes all Buildings owned by the City of Laredo and the contents 
of particular buildings. It also provides coverage for use occupancy and business interruptions for the four lnternational Bridges 
operated by the City's International Toll Bridge System. 

(2) Includes Volunteers and Elected Officials 

[SOURCE: 

City of Laredo, Texas 



ULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTiON t I CITY OF'LAREDO, TEXAS] 
AST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

TABLE 221 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES AS OF SEPTEMBER 30 

lFUNCTlON 

General Government 

Public Safely 

Police 

Officers 

Civilians 

Fire 

Firefighters and officers 

Civilians 

Other Civilians 

Public Works 

Health and Welfare 

Culture and Recreation 

Air Transportation 

Bridge System 

Solid Waste Management System 

Water System 

Sewer System 

Transit System 

Municipal Housing 

Total 

[SOURCE: 

City of Laredo Budget Department 



OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 

Police 
Physical arrests 
Vehicle inspections 
Bridge operations conducted 
Emergency calls 
Non-emergency calls 
Dispatched calls 
Public awareness/training/education 

Fire 
Fire department responses 
inspections 
Arson cases investigated 
Public education presentations 

Public Works 
Street resurfaced 
Potholes repaired 

Bridge 
Pedestrian crossings 
Gateway passes sold 
Non-commercial vehicle crossings 
Commercial vehicle crossings 
Non-commercial AVI accounts 
Commercial AVI accounts 

Culture and recreation 
Community center admissions 
Community service special events 
After school programs 

Transit System 
Passenger ridership 
Miles driven 

Sanitation 
Household customers 
Refuse collected (tons) 
Recyclables collected (tons) 

Water 
Average daily consumption (millions of gallons) 
Meters read 
Service calls 

Wastewater 
Average daily sewage treatment 

(thousands of gallons) 

City of Laredo. Texas 



CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 
SEPTEMBER 30,2006 t 

Public Safety 
Police: 

Stations 
Patrol Units 

Fire: 
Stations 
EMS Units 
Ladder Trucks 
Pumper Trucks 

Highways and Streets 
Public Works: 

Streets - lane miles 
Traffic: 

Traffic Signals 
Street Lights 
Other Traffic Control Signs 

Bridge System 
International Bridges 

Culture and Recreation 
Parks Acreage 
Parks 
Swimming Pools 
Community Centers 
Convention Centers 

Transit System 
Buses 
Trolleys 

Sanitation 
Collection Trucks - Rear Loaders 
Collection Trucks -Automated 
Collection Trucks - Dump Trucks 
Collection Trucks - Grapplers 

Water 
Water Mains (miles) 
Fire Hydrants 
Maximum Daily Capacity 

(millions of gallons) 

Wastewater 
Sanitaly Sewer (miles) 
Storm Sewer (miles) 
Maximum Daily Treatment Capacity 

(millions of gallons) 

Air Transportation 
Airports 

City of Laredo. Texas 



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE INFORMATION 



The following tables are hereby submitted in order to comply with the requirements of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission Rule 15~2-12 for Continuing Disclosures of Information related to the new bond 
issued during fiscal year 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999.2000,2001.2002.2003.2004,2005, and 2006. The 
tables apply to the following issues: 

International Toll Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 1996 
Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 1996 
General Obligation Bond, Series 1997 
Combination Tax and Waterworks System Revenue Certif~cate of 
Obligation, Series 1997-A 

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 1997-B 
Combination Tax and Airport Revenue Certif~cate of Obligation, Series 1998 
Combination Tax and Sewer Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 1998-A 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation Series, 1998-B 
General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 1998 
Combination Tax and Airport Refunding Cemficate of Obligation, Series 1999 
Combination Tax and Waterworks Revenue System Certif~cate of Obligation, 

Series 1999 
Combination Tax and Parking System Certificate of Obligation, Series 1999 
International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bond, Series 1999 
Combination Tax and Airport Refunding Certificate of Obligation, Series 2000 
Combination Tax and Sewer System Revenue Certificate of Obligation, 
Series 2000 

Combination Tax and Waterworks System Revenue Certitkate of Obligation, 
Series 2000 

Combination Tax and Revenue (CIF-Bridge) Certificate of Obligation, 
Series 2000 

Sports Venue Sales Tax Revenue Bond, Series 2001 
Tax and Revenue Cemficate of Obligation, Series 2002 
Public Property Finance Contractual Obligation, Series 2002 
International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bond, Series 2002 
Sewer System Revenue Bond, Series 2002A 
Sewer System Revenue Bond, Series 2002B 
Waterworks System Revenue Bond, Series 2002 
Sewer System Revenue Bond, Series 2002 
General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2003 
Combination Tax and Sewer System Revenue Certificate of Obligation, 

Series 2003 
Public Property Finance Contractual Obligations, Series 2003 
Combination Tax and Waterworks System Revenue Certif~cate of Obligation, 
Series 2003 

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 2004 
International Toll Bridge System Revenne Bond, Series 2004 
Waterworks & Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 
Waterworks & Sewer System Revenne Bonds, Series 2004 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 
Sports Venue Sales Tax Revenue Improvement and Refunding Bond, 
Series 2005 

International Toll Bridge System Rev. Improvement and Refunding Bond, 
Series 2005 

International Toll Bridge System Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2005 
Watenvorks & Sewer Systems Revenue Bond, Series 2005 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 2005 
General Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2006 
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation, Series 2006 
Waterworks & Sewer Systems Revenue Bond, Series 2006 



GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

TABLE 1 -VALUATION, EXEMPTIONS AND DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

2005 Market Valuation Established by Webb County Appraisal District 
(as of August 2005) 

Less ExemptionslReductions at 100% Market Value: 
Residential Homestead Exemptions 

Disabled Veterans Exemotions 
Agricultural and Open Space Land Use Reductions 

Free port Exemptions 
Property Redevelopment and Tax Abatement 

Pollution Control 
Solar and W~nd Power Exempt~ons 

Histor~cal Exemption 

2005 Taxable Assessed Valuation 
General Obligation Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes (1) 

General Obligation Bonds 
Certificates of Obligation 

Funded Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes 
Less: Self-supporting Debt 

Sewer System General Obligation Debt 
Sewer System Certificates of Obligation 

Waterworks System General Obligation Debt 
Waterworks System Certificates of Obligation 

Bridge System General Obligation Debt 
Bridge System Certificate of Obligation 

Risk Management Certificate of Obligation 
Airport System Certificates of Obligation 

Paving Assessments General Obligations Debt 
Civic Center General Obligation Debt 

Landfill General Obligation Debt 
Landfill Certificates of Obligation 

Mass Transit General Obligation Debt 
Mass Transit Certificates of Obligation 

Capital Improvement Fund Certificates of Obligation 
Enviromental Services Certificates of Obligation 

Parking System General Obligation Debt 
Parking System Certificates of Obligation 

General Purpose Funded Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes 

Interest and Sinking Fund 

Ratio Funded Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation 

Ratio General Purpose Funded Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation 

2006 Estimated Population- 224.695 
Per Capita Taxable Assessed Valuation- $33.152 

Per Capita Funded Debt- $694 
Per Capita General Purposes Funded Debt- $293 

I The above statement of indebtedness does not include the following revenue bonds, as these are payable , , - . . 
sole y from me net revenues of the System as defned n tne Dona ora nance autnorlzlng the bonas 
820 417 000 Walerwor&s Svstem Revenue Bonds $12 303 000 Sewer Svstern Revenue Bonds ana . ~ - ~  ~~~ , .  , 

$66:805.000 International f o l l  Bridge System Revenue Bonbs; $36,205,d00 Sports Venue sale; Tax 
~ e v e n u e  Bonds. 



Real. Residdal. Sirgle Family 3.783,7i3978 
Real, Residertial, Wtifamily P8,492,153 

Real. Vacant LotslTrads 37,462,870 
Real. Paeage (Lard m y )  295,3Y,8aD 

Real, Fan ard bnsh lmpwements 1,172.003 
~ e a l .  Canmetaalnrdustrial 2,170,073.381 

Real, Cil, Gas, ard 0 th  Mnefal Resew 24701,090 
FkaI ard Taqible Pcemd Utilities 148,056.W 

Targible mrd, Canmetdalnrdustrial 910,137,593 
Targible Pwsonal, Otkr 87,561,570 

RM Propity, lnventwy(1) 6,2Fa,910 
s p e d a l l ~ w y  2zmz?2 

Tdal F~paised Value M a e  Exemptions 7.999.687.aO7 
Less: Tdal ExemptiarslRedudions 550.543.393 

Taxable Assessed Wue 7449143.814 

Taxable Pwraised Value f a  Fiscal Year Erded %ember 33, 
2x3 aoor 

SateaY Amolnt 

Real, Residertial. Siqle Family 2,i94,93331 
Real, Residertial, Wtifamily 160,509,170 

Real. Vacant LotslTrads 299,026.670 
Real, Paeage (Lard m y )  Z6133,293 

Real, Farm ard Ranh lmpwements 2076.540 
Real, Canmwaalnrdustrial 1,516,S,3.566 

Real, Cil, CBS, ard Otkr M ~ m l  R e s e w  27,848,440 
Real ard Taqitle Pwsonal, Utilities 13,a66,140 

Targible Personal, Canmetaalnnlusttial 784,570,110 
Taqible Pwsonal, Otkr 94,760,883 

Real Fmmy, lnvertwy(1) 15,5K3120 
spedal I M m y  

Total Pppised Valle M a e  Exemptiom 6,CB5,723,M7 
Less: Tdal EvemplionslRedudions 526.737.803 

Taxable Assessed Value 5ZEF22U 

NOTE: Valuations shown are certified taxable assessed values reported by the Webb County Appraisal District 
to the State Controller of Public Accounts. Certified values are subiect to chanae throuahout the vear as 
contested values are resolved and the Appraisal District updates records. 

" - 

(1) Real inventory properties in the hands of developers or builders; each group of properties in this category is 
appraised on the basis of its value as a whole as a sale to another developer or builder. 



TABLE 3 -VALUATION AND GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT HISTORY 

G.O. Ratio of 
Fiscal Taxable Taxable Tax Debt G.O. Tax Debt 
Year Estimated Assessed Assessed Outstanding to Taxable G.O. Tax 
Ended Population Valuations Valuation at End Assessed Debt 
9-30 - 111 La Per Capita Valuation Per C a ~ i t a  

(1) Source: City of Laredo and Laredo Development Foundation. 
(2) As reported by the Webb County Appraisal District on City's annual State Property Tax Board Reports. 

TABLE 4 -TAX RATE, LEVY AND COLLECTION HISTORY 

Fiscal 
Year Distribution 

Ended Tax General 

- Rate 9-30 - Fund 
Interest and 
Sinkina Fund 

0.212773 
0.203140 
0.1 88070 
0 175962 
0.158603 
0.140480 
0 145776 
0.141113 
0.128323 
0.124981 

% Current 
Collections 

95.03% 
95.58% 
95.67% 
95.65% 
95.05% 
95.92% 
99.97% 
97.42% 
96.49% 
96.84% 

% Total 
Collections 

105.88% 
105.24% 
103.05% 
102.56% 
101.57% 
103.11% 
107.29% 
105.58% 
104.70% 
103.73% 

Tax collections as of September 30, 2006 



TABLES-TENLARGESTTAXPAYERS 

Taxpayer 

Laredo Texas Hospital Co. LP. 
AEP Texas Central Company 

LaredoIMDN Limited Partnership 
Laredo Regional Medical Center, LP. 

International Bank of Commerce 
Southwestern Bell Telephone, LP. 
Killam Ind. Dev. Partnership LTD. 

H E Butt Grocery Company 
Wri Trautman LP. 

BE County Correctional Center 

Type of 
Business 

Medical 
Electricity 

Retail 
Medical 

Bank 
Telephone Co. 

Development 
Grocery Store 
Development 

2005 Assessed 
Valuation Real 

& Personal 
Propertv 

98,858,760 
67,610,790 
48,471.070 
37,750,580 
36,115,990 
29,249,370 
28,873,160 
25,806.620 
24.855.410 . . 

correctional Inst. 21,866.700 

419458450 

Percentage 
of Total 

Assessed 
Valuation 

1.33% 
0.91% 
0.65% 
0.51% 
0.48% 
0.39% 
0.39% 
0.35% 
0.33% 
0.29% 
5.63% 

NOTE: These taxpayers are current on all taxes. 

GENERALOBLIGATION DEBT LIMITATION . T h e  City held a charter election on November 7. 1995. The voters 
approved Proposition 24 (2,093 in favor, 522 against), which stated that the total overall outstanding debt shall be 
limited to 10% of the total assessed value. 

Expenditures of the various taxing entities within the territory of the City are paid out of ad valorem taxes levied by 
such entities on properties within the City. Such entities are independent of the City and may incur borrowings to 
finance their expenditures. This statement of direct and estimated overlapping ad valorem tax bonds ("Tax Debt") 
was developed from information contained in "Texas Municipal Reports" published by the Municipal Advisory Council 
of Texas. Except for the amounts relating to the City, the City has not independently verified the accuracy or 
com~leteness of such information. and no person should rely upon such information as beina accurate or complete. 
~urthermore, certain of the entities may hive issued additional debt since the date hereof, and such entities may 
have Droarams reauirina the issuance of substantial amounts of additional debt, the amount ofwhich cannot be 
deterkined. The fbllowlng table reflects the estimated share of overlapping  ax Debt of the City. 

City's 
2005 Overlapping 

Taxable 2005 Total Estimated Funded Debt 
Assessed Tax Funded % As of 

Taxinu Jurisdiction y&&g! Rate Debt A~~licable QLMLLQB 

City of Laredo 7,449,143,814 0.637000 155,940,000 100.00% 155,940,000 
Laredo Independent School District 7,808,367,416 1.5541 10 268,601,919 100.00% 268,601,919 
Laredo Community College District 7,575,045,189 0.233710 137,045,591 100.00% 137.045.591 
United Independent School District 6,308,530,900 1.606870 325,299,563 72.38% 235,455,091 

Webb County 9,659,698,576 0.437920 75,445,697 72.70% 54348.413 

Total Direct and Overlapping G.O. Tax Debt 

Ratio of Direct and Overlapping G. 0. Tax Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation 2.60% 

Per Capita Overlapping G. 0. Tax Debt 3,791 32 

Source: Finance Departments of respective entities. 



TABLE 7 -INTEREST AND SINKING FUND BUDGET PROJECTION 

Estimated Debt Service Requirements, Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-2007 ......... ...... ... ............ .... $ 24,529,879 

Interest and Sinking Fund, 9-30-200 

Estimated lnves 31,324,574 

TABLE 8A - GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE 

Fiscal Less: Self 
Year Total 2006 Fund Supporting % of 

Ended Outstanding GO Refunding Debt GO Debt General Purpose Debt 
09-30 GO Debt Issue Requirements Service Requirements Funded Debt Retired 

2007 7,187.106 4,198,869 11,385.975 6,228,244 5,157,731 12.53% 
2008 7,470,105 3,563,799 11,033,904 6.1 98,556 4,835.348 
2009 7,160,191 3,473,800 10,633,991 6,165,802 4,468,189 
201 0 7,170,000 3,142.500 10,312,500 6,191,217 4,121,283 
201 1 8,096.125 2,533,874 10,629,999 6,443,646 4,186.353 55.32% 
2012 8,401,063 2,209,000 10,610,063 6,407,871 4,202,192 
201 3 8,855,463 1,368,376 10.223.839 6,673,058 3,550,781 
2014 8,860,311 8,860,311 5,292.244 3,568,067 
2015 4,751,086 4,751,086 2,274,840 2,476,246 
201 6 4,570,700 4,570,700 2,304,741 2,265,959 94.34% 
201 7 4,638.200 4,638,200 2,308,847 2,329.359 
2018 1,457,450 1,457,450 1,457,450 
201 9 1,460,200 1,460,200 1,460,200 
2020 1,149,700 1 , I  49,700 1,149,700 
2021 771,450 771,450 771,450 - 100.00% 

Total 81,999,150 20,490,218 102,489,368 61,327,860 41,161,508 



Public Prop. Less: Self 
Finance Supporting General 

Outstanding Contractual Fund CO Debt Purpose 
Fiscal Year Certificates of Oblig, Series Debt Selvice Funded % of Debt 

9-30 Obligation Debt 2006 Requirements Requirements Debt Retired 

2007 
2008 
2009 
201 0 
201 1 
201 2 
201 3 
201 4 
201 5 
201 6 
201 7 
201 8 
201 9 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

Total 



Computation of Self-supporting Debt-Airport 
Net Airport Revenue from Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-06 (1,773,184) 

Less: Airport Revenue Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 

Balance Available for Other Purposes (1,773,184) 
Airport General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 732,611 

Balance (2,505,795) 

Percentage of Airport General Obligation Bonds Self-supporting 65% 

Computation of Self-supporting Debt-Sewer System 
Net Revenue from Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-06 2,873,055 

Less: Sewer System Revenue Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 1,567,371 

Balance Available for Other Purposes 1,305,684 
Sewer System General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 2,947,089 

Balance (1,641,405) 

Percentage of Sewer System General Obligation Bonds Self-supporting 100% 

Computation of Self-supporting Debt-Waterworks System 
Net Revenues from Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-06 4,608,524 

Less: Waterworks Revenue Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 2,587,413 

Balance Available for Other Purposes 2,021 ,I 11 
Waterworks System General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 3,658,953 

Balance Available for Other Purposes (1,637,842) 

Percentage of Waterworks System General Obligation Bonds Self-supporting 100% 

Computation of Self-supporting Debt-Paving Assessments 
Net Revenue from Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-06 574,196 

Less: Paving Assessment Revenue Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 

Balance Available for Other Purposes 574,196 
Paving Assessments General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 10,620 

Balance 563,576 

Percentage of Paving Assessment General Obligation Bonds Self-supporting 100% 



Computation of Self-supporting Debt-Hotel Occupancy Tax 
Net Revenues from Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-06 2,636,092 

Less: Hotel Revenue Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 

Balance Available for Other Purposes 2,636,092 
Hotel General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 123,795 

Balance 2,512,297 

Percentage of Hotel General Obligation Bonds Self-supporting 100% 

Computation of Self-supporting Debt-Mass Transit 
Net Revenue from Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-06 (80,416) 

Less: Mass Transit Revenue Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 

Balance Available for Other Purposes (80,416) 
Mass Transit General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 890.675 

Balance (971,091) 

Percentage of Mass Transit General Obligation Bonds Self -supporting 100% 

Computation of Self-supporting Debt-Solid Waste Fund (Landfill Fund) 
Net Revenue from Fiscal Year Ended 9-30-06 2,416,350 

Less: Solid Waste Revenue Bond Requirements. 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 

Balance Available for Other Purposes 2,416,350 
Solid Waste General Obligation Bond Requirements, 2007 Fiscal Year Ended 2,069,202 

Balance 347,148 

Percentage of Solid Waste General Obligation Bonds Self-supporting 100% 



Fiscal Year Ended Se~tember 30 Lease Payments 

2007 984,936 
2008 795,468 
2009 510,528 
2010 400,000 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 2,690,932 

Pension Obligation 

The City provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through the Texas Municipal Retirement System 
(TMRS), a statewide administered pension plan. The City makes annual contributions to the plan equal to the 
amounts accrued for pension expense. 



FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Franchises 
Licenses 8 Permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for Services 
Fine and Special Assessment 
Interest and Other 
Other 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 

Total Revenues 111,700,075 101,246,321 92,934,508 85,028,753 78,186.101 

Expenditures: 
General Government 16,245,198 11,532,732 14,654,701 11,602,491 10,661,703 
Public Safety 69,093,638 64,300,403 60,906,326 56,025,310 50,088,426 
Public Works 6,098,378 5,695,047 5,268,489 3,608,986 4,125,575 
Health and Welfare 438,132 527,562 721,376 961,834 948,141 
Culture and Recreation 10,025,521 9,466,373 8,443,408 8,361,917 7,311,822 
Capital Outlay - - 741,194 
Miscellaneous 3,616,361 11,914,519 3,405,561 2,977,874 

Total Expenditures 101,900,867 95,138,498 101,908,819 83,966,099 76,854,735 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 9,799,208 6,109,823 (8,974.311) 1,062,654 1,331,366 

Transfers In 490,317 2,663,967 937,661 8,273,349 4,152,822 
BondICapital Lease Proceeds - 12,115,000 
Transfers Out ( I  1,145) (4,779,376) (3,777,269) (1 1,098,086) (8,355,016) 
Sale of Assets 52.450 

Total Transfers Inl(0ut) (5,568,378) (2.1 15,409) 9,281,392 (2,824,737) (4,202,194) 

Net Increase (Decrease) 4,230,830 3,994,414 307,081 (1,762,083) (2,870,628) 
Prior Period Adjustment 2,536,853 
Beginning Fund Balance 14,321,521 10,327,107 10,020,026 11,782,109 14,652,937 

Ending Fund Balance 21,069,204 14,321,521 10,020,026 11,782,109 



The City has adopted the Municipal Sales and Use Tax Act, VATCS, Tax Code Chapter 321, which grants the City 
the power to impose and levy a 1% Local Sales Tax within the City proceeds of which are credited to the General 
Fund and are not pledged to the payment ofthe Certificates. Collections and enforcement are effected through the 
offices of the Comptroller of Public Accounts, State of Texas, who remits the proceeds of the tax, afier deduction of a 
2% service fee, to the City monthly. 

% of Ad Equivalent of 
Fiscal Year Valorem Tax Ad Valorem Per Capita 
Ended 9-30 Total Collected 12) & Tax Rate ill 

(1) Based on estimated population for all years. 
(2) The City has also collected a 114 of 1% Local Sales and UseTax since September, 1991 for funding of its 

Mass Transit System and a 114 of 1% since January 2001 forthe Sports & Community Venue Project. The 
total collected column includes only amount collected for the City and Sports & Community Venue. 

The sales tax breakdown for the City is as follows: 

Webb County 0.50% 
Mass Transit Sales & Use Tax 0.25% 
Sports Venue Tax 0.25% 
City Sales & Use Tax 1.00% 
State Sales & Use Tax 6.25% 

Total 

As of September 30, 2006, all of the City's investments were guaranteed obligations of the US Government or its 
agencies and government investment pool. The City's investment portfolio had a weighted average maturity of 125 
days to the call date and a weighted average maturity of 365 days to its final maturity. The market value of the 
investment portfolio was approximately 99.84% of its face value. The City's funds are invested as follows: 

Investment Pools $ 129,752,313 
Agency Securities 82.284.211 

Total 



LAREDO ENTERTAINMENT CENTER 

The City of Laredo, Texas issued the Sports Venue Sales Tax Revenue Improvement and Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2005, to acquire and construct additional parking facilities for the Laredo Entertainment 
Center, to achieve a debt service savings by partially refunding outstanding Sports Venue Tax Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2001, used to construct a sports venue project for a multipurpose entertainment arena and 
related infrastructure, and to pay for the issuance costs of the Bonds. The principal and interest due on 
the Sports Venue Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 and 2005, are to be paid on the scheduled interest 
payment dates from funds deposited with an escrow agent until discharged. 

The bonds constitute special and limited obligations of the City and are payable solely from, and secured 
solely by a first lien on and pledge of the Sales Tax Revenues, as approved by the citizens on a special 
election on August 12. 2000. The Sales Tax Revenues consist of the gross receipts from a % of 1% 
sales and use tax collected within the boundaries of the City. The bonds were issued pursuant to the 
provisions of (i) Chapter 334 of the Texas Local Government code, as amended (the "Act"), and (ii) an 
authorizing ordinance (the "Ordinance") adopted by the City Council of the City on May 23, 2001. 

The bonds are payable solely from, and secured solely by, a first lien on and pledge of the Sales Tax 
Revenues as provided in the Ordinance and not from any other revenues, properties or income of the 
City. Neither the State of Texas nor any political corporation, subdivision, or agency of the State other 
than the City will be obligated to pay the bonds or the interest thereon, and neither the faith and credit 
nor the taxing power of the State or any political corporation, subdivision, or agency thereof is pledged to 
the payment of principal of or interest on the bonds. 

The construction of Laredo Entertainment Center was completed by September 2002. This enormous 
entertainment center will introduce inexpensive, family-oriented entertainment services, such as 
concerts, rodeos, circuses, civic events, sporting events, and more. Its major attraction will be the 
Laredo Bucks hockey team, who will participate in the Central Hockey League. 

The Arena itself will count with a diverse mixture of world-class entertainment, a 10.000 seating capacity, 
over 2,000 parking spaces, and a team store. The 178,000 square foot, $36.5 million facility opened in 
October 2002. In the first year, the Laredo Entertainment Center hosted more than 100 events, among 
them concert performances by Shakira and Carlos Santana. 

Afler the construction of the Arena was completed, approximately 170 new full-time jobs were created for 
the operation of the facility. Furthermore, contracts were awarded to local businesses whose products 
are required for the Laredo Entertainment Center's daily operations. This will bring many new businesses 
to the City of Laredo, which will provide more job opportunities and city growth. 



Fiscal Year Adual 1 % Sales & 
Ending 9/30 Use Tax Recipts 

1996 $ 10,423,709 
1997 11.665.798 
1998 12,863,423 
1999 13,665,870 
2000 15,230,665 
2001 16,512,506 
2002 17.158.252 
2003 18,037,788 
2004 19,288,849 
2005 21,075,124 
2005 23,862,993 

114 of 1% Sales 
Tax Receipts 

2,605,927 
* 2,916,450 

3,215,855 
* 3,416,468 

3,807,666 
4,128,128 
4,289,561 
4,509,447 
4,822,212 
5,268.781 
5.965.748 

Maximum 
Annual Debt Estimated 

Service Coverage 

3,121,125 0.83 
3,121,125 0.93 
3.121.125 1.03 
3,121,125 1.09 
3,121,125 1.22 
3,121,125 1.32 
3,121,125 1.37 
3,121,125 1.44 
3,121,125 1.55 
3,121,125 1.69 
3,121,125 1.91 

(*) These amounts were generated by multiplying, for each Fiscal Year, the amount of actual 1.0% sales 
and use tax receipts for such Fiscal Year by .25. These figures therein are provided for illustrative 
purposed only. The %% of 1% Sales Tax securing the Bonds has only been collected since January 1. 
2001. Therefore, the amounts do not represent actual collections of the Sales Tax securing the Bonds, 
but simply provide an estimated of the amounts of Sales Tax Revenues that might have been collected 
had the %of 1% Sales Tax been in effect since Fiscal Year 1996. 

Average Annual Principal and lnterest Requirements, 2007-2024 
Fiscal Year 2006 Sales Tax Revenues 
Coverage of Average Requirements by Fiscal Year 2006 

Maximum Principal and lnterest Requirements 2024 
Fiscal Year 2006 Sales Tax Revenues 
Coverage of Maximum Requirements by Fiscal 2006 



2005 Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Issue Total % of 
Fiscal Year Debt Outstanding Debt Service 
Ended 9-30 Requirement Princi~al interest - Total - Debt Retired 



LAREDO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

The City of Laredo International Airport consists of approximately 1,892 acres of which 900 acres are 
dedicated to aviation for passenger and air cargo terminals, runways, taxiways and aprons, and 982 acres 
are dedicated for industrial, commercial, retail, institutional, and recreational. 

The Airport is currently being sewed by the following scheduled airlines: American Eagle to DallaslFort 
Worth, ExpressJet dlbla Continental Express to Houston Bush lntercontinental and Allegiant Air to Las 
Vegas, Nevada. On average, the airlines have nine daily scheduled flights. A top priority for the Airport is 
the re-instatement of direct air service to Mexico City and Guadalajara, Mexico. Furthermore, our 
passenger terminal also houses a full service restaurant, gift shoplduty free concession, ATM, five car 
rental companies, and U.S. Customs and Border Protection Services, formerly known as U.S. Custom 
Services. 

In the area of commercial passenger activity, it is anticipated that during 2007, boardings will be increased 
by approximately ten (10) percent compared to 2006. Fueling the increase is Allegiant Air's low fare direct 
service to Las Vegas, Nevada, which was initiated during June 2006. For 2007, Allegiant Air is 
considering adding frequency of service to Las Vegas as well as adding direct summer time service to 
Orlando, Florida. Allegiant Air operates the 150-passenger MD-80 mainline jet aircraft. Also, starting 
March 2007, besides the initiation of operating regional jets, Chattagua Airlines will replace ExpressJet 
passenger service to Houston George Bush lntercontinental Airport under contract with Continental 
Airlines. Moreover, regaining air service to Mexico City and to Guadalajara is a top priority for the City of 
Laredo. 

The airport passenger terminal is master planned to expand from the original three gates with four 
passenger-boarding bridges to twenty gates by the year 2025. The passenger capacity for the terminal is 
600 passengers per hour and the Federal Inspection Station has capacity for 300 passengers per hour. 

Twenty (20) air cargo companies are currently serving the Airport along with several unscheduled cargo 
carriers. During 2006, new direct 8-727 air cargo service was added to Ypsilanti, Michigan primarily to 
service the auto industry in the Detroit area and the northern Mexico maquiladora operations. Major air 
cargo operators at the Laredo International Airport include: Federal Express, UPS Supply Chain 
Solutions, Air Transport Inc., Airborne Express I DHL, Kalllita Charters, USA Jet, AmeriJet, USAITSM, 
Cherry Air, AmeriStar, IFL Group, Air Cargo Carriers, Inc., and Contract Air. 

Federal Aviation Administration's review and approval of Laredo's Airport Noise Compatibility Update 
Study recommendations is expected during MaylJune 2007. Upon approval, a significant number of 
residents will become eligible to participate in the City's voluntary noise abatement program. This 
program consists of the following options: 

Offer to acquire the fee simple interest, or 
Offer to soundproof, if feasible, the residential structure in exchange for an avigation easement, or 
Offer to acquire the avigation easement. 

The estimated cost of the airport noise abatement program for the next eight to ten years is $56.0 million 
of which the Federal Aviation Administration, under the current program, would fund 95% of the program 
cost. 

The following three major airport infrastructure projects, with an approximate cost of $7.6 million, are 
under construction and scheduled for completion during 2007: 

Rehabilitation of General Aviation Apron Phase 2 
Construction of the North East Cargo Apron Phase 2 . Construction of three (3) concrete cargo pads 

The airport is currently in search of plan designs and specifications on two other projects: The 
rehabilitation of the Runway 14132 and the rehabilitation of the General Aviation Apron Phase 3. The 
estimated cost of these two projects ranges between $7 and $9 million, of which the Federal Aviation 
Administration may contribute up to 95.0 percent of the cost during the latter part of 2007. 



The City has contracted for an Environmental Assessment Study and for a BenefitlCost Analysis 
regarding the proposed extension of Runway 17L. It is possible that the actual construction to extend the 
runway, its parallel taxiway, and the addition of an Instrument Landing System could commence as early 
as 2008. 

During the past thirteen (13) years, the City and the Federal Aviation Administration have invested over 
$110 million in Laredo International Airport infrastructure and noise abatement program. This trend will 
continue in 2007. 

The airport leases facilities and land to aviation service providers, retailers, medical institutions, and public 
entities. 

The goal of City Council to develop a Regional Medical Center on airport non-aeronautical use land is 
being realized. The University of Texas Health Science Center (UTHSC) inaugurated the first building of 
its medical research and education campus in Laredo in 2002, and the second building is set to be 
completed in 2007. UTHSC is located adjacent to Mercy Regional Medical Center. During 2006, Laredo 
Specialty Hospital and Gateway Health Clinic completed the construction of their facilities and are 
currently offering medical services to the public. 

City Council has approved the public sale of three tracts of airport non-aeronautical use land, which are 
ao~raised in excess of $25.0 million in total. The public sale, once consummated, will significantly 
ehkance the airport's financial abilities. 

Calendar 
Year 

1997 

Enplaned 
Passengers 

70,445 

Deplaned 
Passengers 

67,149 

Gross Landed 
Weight (Ibs.) 

392,601,348 

(1) Because of the terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, the airport experienced an 8.0 percent decline 
in passenger activity for CY 2001. As a result of a weak national economy during all of CY 2001, air 
cargo declined by approximately 46 percent. 

(2) Based on Calendar Year Figures. 



TABLE 1- SUMMARY OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 
Revenues: 
FAA $ 391,695 $ 349,076 $ 287,124 $ 287,124 $ 279.240 
State Operating Grants 102.045 98.363 94,710 135,344 80,354 
Rents 3,844,104 3,525.829 3,489,304 3,777,292 3,291,239 
Interest Earnings 47,672 87,095 34,837 759 
Proceeds from Asset Disposition 329,689 3,898,840 3,400.077 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Administration 2,389.787 2,686.745 3,655,870 1,888,911 2,662,541 
Building Maintenance 369,809 427,045 370.364 373.133 382,214 
Ground Maintenance 436,526 498,610 418,625 390.865 364.801 
Control Tower 491,684 461,614 392,096 358,495 336,383 
Airport Police 766.494 584,732 586,887 494,967 66,608 
Foreign Trade Zone 14,552 14,558 13,769 13.362 11,661 
Total Expenditures 4,488,854 4,673,304 5.437.61 1 3,519,733 3,824,408 

Net Operating Revenues 99,404 41,922 2,619,085 4,565,037 66,069 

Other Sources (Uses): 

Debt Service (645,942) (786,131) (790,914) (785.744) (793,684) 
Capital Outlay (1,672,588) (1 15,980) (17,331) 
Communication System Fund (81,411) 
General Fund 25,000 25,000 25.000 
Noise Abatement (315,790) 
New A rpon Terminal 316.373 (1,500 000) (51 1,669) 663,130 

Total Other Sources (Jses) (2.283 568) (2,402.1 11)  (1.593.593) (760.744) (122.885) 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over Expenditures (2,184,164) (2,360,189) 1,025,492 3,804,293 (56,816) 

Beginning Fund Balance 2,131,789 4,491.978 3,466,486 (337,807) (280,991) 
Prior Period Adjustment 64,669 
Ending Fund Balance $ 12,294 $ 2,131,789 $ 4.491.978 $ 3,466,486 $ (337.807) 



TABLE 2- DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENT 

Fiscal 

Year 99 Airport Refunding Issue Total % of 

Ended Debt Outstanding Principal 
9-30 Requirement Principal Interest Total Debt Retired 

Total $ 3,055,455 1,295,000 236,578 1,531,578 4,587,033 

TABLE 3- COVERAGE 

Average Annual Principal and Interest Requirements, 2007-2018 $ 382,253 

Coverage of Average Requirements by 9-30-06 Net Income 1.09 

Maximum Annual Principal and lnterest Requirements, 
after FYE 2007 through 2018 $ 734,444 

Coverage of Maximum Requirements by 9-30-06 Net Income 0.57 



LAREDO BRIDGE SYSTEM 

The system presently consists of the Gateway to the Americas Bridge (Bridge No. I ) ,  
the JuarezILincoln International Bridge (Bridge No. 2), the Columbia Solidarity Bridge 
(Bridge No. 3), and the World Trade Bridge (Bridge No. 4). Bridge No. 1 was built in 
1956 and was enlarged to a 40-foot width. it has four vehicular traffic lanes with 8-foot 
pedestrian walks on each side and aluminum outside railings. Bridge No. 2 was built in 
1976. Total width of Bridge No. 2 is 98.4 feet and accommodates up to eight vehicular 
traffic lanes with a sidewalk and includes protective barriers and high curbs to separate 
the sidewalk from the roadway. Bridge No. 3 was built in 1991. This bridge structure is 
a simple plan structure consisting of six 12' wide vehicular lanes. Bridge No. 4 was 
built in 2000 and has eight vehicle lanes. 

The system presently has 23 toll lanes, all of which are equipped with an automated toll 
collection system which counts truck axles and charges accordingly. The toll collection 
process was recently restructured and upgraded to include a weight-in-motion system 
for truck toll collections for the Laredo Bridge System. The bridge system is employs a 
staff of 212 employees, approximately 79 of which are directly involved in toll collection 
operations. Another 133 employees are involved in various aspects of administration, 
including maintenance, engineering, accounting, customer service, traffic control, and 
general administration. 

LAREDO BRIDGE SYSTEM 
CURRENT AND HISTORICAL INFORMATION 

TABLE 1 - ANALYSIS OF SYSTEM TRAFFIC 

NON- 
CALENDAR COMMERCIAL COMMERCIAL TOTAL 

YEAR VEHICLES VEHICLES VEHICLES PEDESTRIANS 



New Rate Schedule (Southbound only) Effective 
October 14. 2005 
Pedestrians 
Children under 6 years of age 
Bicycle and Rider 
All non-commercial vehicles not utilizing the 
Automated Vehicle Identification System (AVI) or 
Colombia Solidariy Bridge (per axle) 
Emergency vehicles, fire engines, ambulances, 
police cars, etc., answering or returning from an 
emergency call 
All non-commercial vehicles utilizing the AVI or 
Colombia Solidarity Bridge (per axle) 
Commercial Vehicles 
Swipe Card Administrative Fee (per card) 

Old Rate Schedule (Southbound only) Effective 
February 5. 2005: 
Pedestrians, Bicycle including Rider 
Non-commercial vehicles (per axle) 
Commercial vehicles (per axle) 
Swipe Card Administrative Fee (per card) 

Old Rate Schedule (Southbound only) Effective 
December 1. 2002: 
Pedestrians 
Motorcycle or Scooter, including Driver 
Auto 
Auto and Pickup Truck with Cargo 
Pickup or Two-Axle Campers 
Pickup Truck with Trailer 
Bicycle, including Rider 
Motor Bus, Local, empty or with normal occupancy 
Pickup Truck or Auto with freight 
Two-Axle Truck with freight 
Commercial Rate (per axle) 

$0.50 
Free 
$0.50 
$1.50 

Free 



TABLE 3 - HISTORICAL REVENUES OF THE SYSTEM 

MONTH 

OCT 
NOV 
DEC 
JAN 
FEB 
MAR 
APR 
MAY 
JUN 
JUL 
AUG 
SEP 

TOTAL 

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 
2006 2005 2004 

FISCAL YEAR 
2003 

FISCAL YEAR 
2002 



TABLE 4 - DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SYSTEM 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
9-30 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
201 3 
2014 
2015 
2016 
201 7 
201 8 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

TOTAL 

Series 
1996 

Bonds Bond SIB Loan 
Principal interest 

% of 
Total 

Total Debt 
Outstanding Service 

Debt Retired 



REVENUES 
Toll Receipts 
Rental of Facilities 
Miscellaneous 
Total 

EXPENSES 
Personnel Services 
Materials and Supplies 
Contractual Services (1) 
Other 
Total 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 
Interest Earnings-Restricted 
lnterest Earnings-Unrestricted 
Unrealized Gainl(Loss) 
on Investments 

Net Revenues Available for 
for Debt Service 

Debt Service 
Surplus Revenues 

(1) Contractual Services consist of administrative overhead and monthly payments made to the City for 
services provided to the System from surplus revenues of the System. 



TABLE 6 -COVERAGE AND FUND BALANCES 

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE-FIRST LlEN REVENUE BONDS 
Average Annual Principal and lnterest Requirements on System 
Revenue Bonds, 2007 through 2027 $ 
Coverage of Average Requirements by 9-30-06 Net lncome 

Maximum Annual Principal and lnterest Requirements, 
after FYE 2007 through 2027 $ 

Coverage of Maximum Requirements by 9-30-06 Net lncome 

Reserve Fund 
Contingency Fund 

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE-FIRST LlEN REVENUE BONDS 
AND SIB LOAN 

Average Annual Principal and lnterest Requirements on First Lien 
Revenue Bonds plus SIB Loan, 2007 through 2027 

Coverage of Average Requirements by 9-30-06 Net lncome 
Maximum Annual Principal and lnterest Requirements, 

after FYE 2007 through 2027 
Coverage of Maximum Requirements by 9-30-06 Net lncome 

Fiscal 

Year 

2001 

2002 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

Operating 
and Direct 
Non- 

operating Operating 

Revenues Expenses (1) 

Net 

Revenue 

Available 

For Debt 

24,793,625 

25,996,674 

26,l 11,062 

26,368,023 

29,213,619 

31,910,495 

Total 

Debt 

Service 

Reauirements 

5,804,972 
5.50 

7,593,274 
4.20 

5,804,972 
500,000 

6,949,802 
4.59 

9,346,898 
3.41 

Coveraae 

4 

4 

4 

4 

6 

4 

(1) Operating expenses do not include depreciation expense and non-operating expenses, 



THE UTILITY SYSTEM 

WATER SUPPLY 

The City of Laredo uses surface water from the Rio Grande as its source of raw water. 
Water is diverted directly from the river to the immediately adjacent water treatment 
plant facilities by two separate river intakes, two separate river pump structures and 
related multiple pump units. The City of Laredo's water allotment is approximately 
47,878.59 acre-feet of water rights. 

The first "modern" design rapid sand filter plant for the City of Laredo was constructed in 
the years 1928-1929. The original plant was constructed on a land elevation of 400 feet 
and has been periodically shut down due to high levels of flood waters from the river. 
Due to this flooding experience, it was decided by the Waterworks Board to purchase 
sufficient land immediately East of the original plant site to construct a new plant. The 
acquired land has an elevation of 420 feet, which is above any historically recorded 
flood level of the Rio Grande at this location. This second plant has a capacity of one 
million gallons per day. 

The combined pumpage capacity of the City's Upper and Lower Treatment Plants is 72 
million gallons per day. The average daily demand during 2006 was approximately 
34.67 million gallons per day and peak demand for 2006 was 55.034 million gallons per 
day. Connections to the water system as of September 30, 2006 were 61,772. 

The City of Laredo owns and operates five wastewater treatment plants, which have a 
combined total design capacity of 21.051 million gallons per day ("MGD"). The Sewer 
System includes approximately 426 miles of sewer lines and 76 lift stations. The 
average daily treatment is 17 MGD with 58,796 connections as of September 30,2006. 



TABLE 1 -WATER STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION 

At the present time the system incorporates the following treated water storage facilities: 

Location 
"Old" Water Treatment Plant 
"New" Water Treatment Plant 
Hendricks Avenue and Main Street 
Lyon Street and Meadow Avenue 
Texas Street and Milmo 
Mines Road 
Airbase Storage 
Del Mar Plant 
Station H 
East Corridor 
Larga Vista 
Unitec Highway 35 North 
South Laredo 
North Laredo 
Northwest Laredo 
MHOC 
Laredo-Columbia 
Sierra Vista 
Union Pacific 
Pinto Valle 
San lsidro 
Millennium 
Hwy 359 
Las Blancas 
Santa Isabel 
TAMlU Tank 

Total Treated Water Storage 

No. 
Tanks 

2 
2 
1 

I (elevated) 
I (elevated) 
I (elevated) 

1 
1 
1 
2 

I (elevated) 
I (elevated) 
I (elevated) 

2 
1 
1 
1 
2 
1 
1 
1 

I (elevated) 
1 
1 

- 

No. 
Clear Wells Storaae Capacity 

1 1,000,000 gallons 
1 2,500,000 gallons 

2,000,000 gallons 
11,000,000 gallons 
1,000,000 gallons 

500,000 gallons 
500,000 gallons 
250,000 gallons 
170,000 gallons 
250,000 gallons 
33,000 gallons 

170,000 gallons 
1,000,000 gallons 
1,000,000 gallons 
1,000,000 gallons 

10,000,000 gallons 
200,000 gallons 

5,000,000 gallons 
88,000 gallons 

200,000 gallons 
280,000 gallons 
280,000 gallons 
200,000 gallons 
500,000 gallons 
212,000 gallons 

2,000,000 gallons 
41 ,333,000a l lons  

In conjunction with the existing storage, automatic booster or pumping stations serve 
the system. These stations are located at the tanks listed above. Two pumping 
stations are served by two clear wells. Currently, the system consists of approximately 
629 miles of transmission and distribution lines. 

In 1957, the City of Laredo entered into an agreement with Webb County to use Lake 
Casa Blanca Reservoir as off-channel storage for emergency use. This reservoir has a 
storage capacity of 6,800 million gallons of water. This agreement is still in effect. 



Historical water usage for the City is as follows: 
Average Day 

Fiscal Pumpage Peak Day 
Year (000 Pumpage 

Ended Gallons) [000 Gallons) 
9/30 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
Average 
Sewage 

Total 
Pumpage 

[000 Gallons) 

Total 
Daily 
Flow - 

4,947 
4,971 
5,313 
5,628 
5,663 
5,634 
6,120 
6,211 
6,123 
6,130 



User - 

Laredo Medical Center 
Texas A&M International University 
Laredo Municipal Housing Corp. 
Webb County Jail 
C.P.L. Power Plant 
City of Laredo 
Regent Care Center of Laredo 
Broad Acres Apartments 
Towne North Mobile Homes 
Border Lease Service. Inc. 

(1) Total gallons consumed 

(1) Source: City of Laredo, Texas, 

2006 
WaterISewer 
Consumption 

1 l7,5lO,lOO 
83,202,700 
27,213,900 



Water Rates 
(Effective April 24, 2006) 

Inside City Limits 
Residential: 
Monthly minimum, including use of 2,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 2,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 2,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 6,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
10,000 gallons per month 
Per 1.000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 

$7.50 

$1.10 

$1.17 

$1.23 
- . . 

20,000 per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
30,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
40,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons per month in excess of 50,000 gallons per month 

$1.30 

$1.37 

$1.44 
$2.88 

Multi-Family and Commercial: 
Monthly minimum, including use of 2,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 2,000 gallons) per month in excess of 

$21.25 
- . . 

2,000 per month $1.17 
. . . 

4,000 gall& per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 30,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 10,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 110,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
40,000 gallons per month 
Per 1.000 gallons (for the next 150,000 gallons) per month in excess 

Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 6,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
$1.19 

$1.39 

$1.59 
- . . 

of 150,000~~allons'~er month 

Outside City Limits: 
The rates for water outside the City limits shall be two times those 
established for commercial rates. 

$1.79 

of 300,000~~allons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 400,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 600,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons per month in excess of 1,000,000 gallons per month 

Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 300,000 gallons) per month in excess 
$2.19 

$2.72 
$2.78 



Old Rates 
(Effective October 1, 2000) 

Inside City Limits 
Residential: 
Monthly minimum, including use of 4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 6,000 gallons) per month in excess of 

$7.50 
- . . 

4,000 gallons per month $.9326 

10,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
20,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
30,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 

Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of I 
$.9874 

$1.0423 

$1.0971 
~ ~ 

40,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 50,000 gallons per month 
Commercial: 
Monthly minimum, including use of 4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 6,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
10,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
20,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
30,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
40,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 

$1.1520 

$1.2069 

$17.00 

$.9548 

$1.0078 

$1.0609 

$1.1139 

$1.1669 
- . . 

50,000 per'month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
100,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
150,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
200,000 gallons per month 
Per 1.000 nallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 

$1.2200 

$1.2730 

$1.3261 

$1.3791 
- . . 

250,600 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
300,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 

$1.4322 

$1.4852 

350,000 gallons per month $1.5383 



TABLE 5 - MONTHLY WATER RATES-OLD RATES (CONTINUED) 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
400,000 gallons per month 
Per 1.000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) Der month in excess of 

I 

Outside City Limits 
The rates for water outside the City limits shall be two times those 

$1.591 3 
- , . 

450,000 gallons per month 

established for commercial rates. 

$1.6440 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 1 



Sewer Rates 
(Effective April 1, 1997) 

Inside City Limits 
-~ ~~ ~~ 

~esidential: 
Monthly minimum, including the use of 4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 6,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 

$8.50 

$1.03 
- . . 

10,000 per month $1.08 

20,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of I 

$1.14 

Commercial: 
Monthly minimum, including use of 4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 6,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
10,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 20,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
30,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 40,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 50,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 100,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 150,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 200,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 250,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 300,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 350,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 400,000 gallons per month 

The maximum charge will be up to 30,000 gallons and the equivalent of I 

$13.00 

$1.25 

$1.31 

$1.37 

$1.43 

$1.48 

$1.54 

$1.60 

$1.65 

$1 .71 

$1.77 

$1.82 

$1.88 

$1.94 



(CONTINUED) 
Per 1.000 aallons (for the next 50.000 gallons) per month in excess - . . 
of 450,00O-~allons'~er month $2.00 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 500,000 gallons per month $2.05 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 550,000~gallons per month $2.1 1 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 600,000 gallons per month $2.16 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 650,000~gallons'per month 

. 

$2.22 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 700,000 gallons per month $2.28 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 750,000 gallons per month $2.34 
Per 1.000 aallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess - . . 
of 800,000-~allons'~er month $2.39 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 850,000 gallons per month $2.45 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess 
of 900,000~gallons per month $2.51 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
950,000 gallons per month $2.57 
Per 1,000 gallons per month in excess of 1,000,000 gallons per month $2.62 
There shall be no maximum monthly charges for commercial users. 

Outside City Limits 
The rates for sewer outside the City limits shall be two times those 
established for commercial rates. 

Old Rates 
(Effective January 1, 1996) 

1 Inside City Limits 
Residential: 
Monthly minimum, including use of 4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 6,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
10,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 10,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
20,000 gallons per month 
The maximum charge will be up to 30,000 gallons and the equivalent of 

$5.50 

$0.90 

$0.95 



(CONTINUED) 

Commercial: 
Monthly minimum, including use of 4,000 gallons per month 
Per 1.000 aallons (for the next 6.000 gallons) per month in excess of 

$1 0.00 



Outside City Limits 
The rates for water outside the City limits shall be two times those 
established for commercial rates 

TABLE 6 - MONTHLY SEWER RATES (BASED ON WATER CONSUMPTION) 
(CONTINUED) 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
850,000 gallons per month 
Per I ,00 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
900,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons (for the next 50,000 gallons) per month in excess of 
950,000 gallons per month 
Per 1,000 gallons per month in excess of 1,000,000 gallons per month 
There shall be no maximum monthly charges for commercial users. 

$2.15 

$2.20 

$2.25 
$2.30 
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TABLE 11 : COVERAGE AND FUND BALANCES 

Average Annual Principal and lnterest Requirements 

Coverage of Average Requirements by 2006 Net lncome 

Maximum Principal and lnterest Revenue Bond 
Requirements 
Afler Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2006 

Coverage of Maximum Requirements by 2006 Net lncome 

Outstanding New Series Water Revenue Bonds 
Outstanding Refunding Water Revenue Bonds 
lnterest and Sinking Fund as of September 30, 2006 
Reserve Fund as of September 30,2006 
Contingency Fund as of September 30,2006 

Sewer: 

Average Annual Principal and lnterest Requirements 

Coverage of Average Requirements by 2006Net Income 

Maximum Principal and lnterest Revenue Bond 
Requirements 
Afler Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006 

Coverage of Maximum Requirements by 2006 Net lncome 

Outstanding New Series Sewer Revenue Bonds 
Outstanding Refunding Sewer Revenue Bonds 
lnterest and Sinking Fund as of September 30, 2006 
Reserve Fund as of September 30.2006 
Contingency Fund as of September 30,2006 



TABLE 12: COVERAGE AND FUND BALANCES - UTILITY SYSTEM 

Utility System 

Net Funds Available for Debt Service 

Average Annual Principal and lnterest 
Requirements 

Coverage of Average Annual 
Requirements by Funds Available 
for Debt Service 

Maximum Principal and lnterest 
Revenue Bond Requirements 

Coverage of Maximum Requirement 
by Funds Available for Debt Service 

Outstanding Bonds as of 09/30/2006 

Interest & Sinking Fund as of 09/30/2006 

Reserve Funds as of 09/30/2006 

Waterworks Sewer Total 

$ 11,195,044 7,114,755 18,309,799 

Contingency Fund as of 09/30/2006 $ 1,325,105 747,813 2,072,918 
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SINGLE AUDIT 



G A R Z A ,  M A R T I N E Z  & C O . ,  L . L . P .  
C E R T I F I E D  P U B L I C  A C C O U N T A N T S  

1 0 7  C A L L E  D E L  N O R T E ,  S U I T E  1 5 A  

P O .  B O X  2 6 6 4  

L A R E D O .  T E X A S  7 8 0 4 4 - 2 6 6 4  

RAULGARZA. C P A .  M P A .  C G F M .  D A B F A  
JORGE R. MARTINEZ. C P A  
ANGELICA P CANTU: CPA s me CPR. Never Uodeiestmate The Vaue. E Mail: cpafirm @gmc-cpacom 
OMAR SAI C F ~ O  - . . . . . . -. . -. - - . 
MARISA G. GONZALEZ. M P A  
RAMIRO R. MORENO. JR.  
SANTIAGO JASSO JR. 
JUAN B. RUEDA. MPA 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WlTH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 

ACCORDANCE WlTH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Laredo, Texas 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the City of Laredo, Texas, with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the State of Texas 
Uniform Grant and Contract Management Standards (UGCMS) that are 
applicable to each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended 
September 30, 2006. The City of Laredo, Texas', major federal and state 
programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its 
major federal and state programs is the responsibility of the City of Laredo, 
Texas', management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of 
Laredo, Texas', compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, 
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the UGCMS. Those 
standards, OMB Circular A-133 and UGCMS, require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Laredo, Texas', 
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compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination on the City of Laredo, Texas', compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City of Laredo, Texas, complied, in all material respects, with 
the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal 
and state programs for the year ended September 30, 2006. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City of Laredo, Texas, is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Laredo, Texas', 
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal or state program in order to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB 
Circular A-1 33 and UGCMS. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily 
disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A 
material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of 
one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively 
low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material 
in relation to a major federal or state program being audited may occur and not 
be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal 
control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of City of Laredo, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2006, and have issued our report thereon dated January 19, 2007. Our audit 
was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the City of Laredo, Texas', basic financial statements. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-1 33 
and UGCMS, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
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information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, 
management, City Council, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass- 
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public 
record and its distribution is not limited. 

January 19,2007 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Laredo, Texas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of City of Laredo, Texas, as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City of Laredo, Texas' basic 
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated January 19, 2007. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States and the provisions of the State of Texas 
Uniform Grant and Contract Management Standards (UGCMS). 

Internal Control Over Financial Reportinq 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Laredo, Texas', 
internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would 
not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material 
weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design 
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce 
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in 
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amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being 
audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in 
the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters 
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving 
the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to the 
management of the City of Laredo, Texas, in a separate letter dated January 19, 
2007. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Laredo, 
Texas', financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing 
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit 
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
re~orted under Government Auditina Standards and UGCMS. However. we 
ndted certain matters that we reporikd to management of the City of ~a iedo,  
Texas, in a separate letter dated January 19, 2007. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, 
management, City Council, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass- 
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public 
record and its distribution is not limited. 

January 19,2007 

303 
MEMBER: AMERICAN INSTrWTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND TEXAS SOCIEW OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



City of Laredo, Texas 
Federal Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Reportable condition(s) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal A wards 

Internal Control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 

Reportable condition@) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
Section .5lO(a) of Circular A-1 33? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) 

Unqualified 

yes X no 

yes X none reported 

yes X no 

yes X no 

yes X none reported 

Unqualified 

yes X no 

Name of Federal Proqram or Cluster 

U.S. Department of Justice - South Texas 
Interoperability Project 
US. Department of Transportation - Airport lmprovement 
Program 
U.S. Department of Transportation - Capital 
lmprovement Program 



City of Laredo, Texas 
Federal Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results (Continued) 

Federal Awards (Continued) 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

$1,121,577 

X yes no 

Section I1 - Financial Statement Findings 

No matters were reported 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

No matters were reported 



City of Laredo, Texas 
State Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Reportable condition(s) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

State A wards 

Internal Control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 

Reportable condition(s) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance 
for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with the State of 
Texas Single Audit Circular Section .51 O(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

Name of State Proaram or Cluster 

Unqualified 

yes X no 

yes X none reported 

yes X no 

yes X no 

yes X none reported 

Unqualified 

yes X no 

West Laredo CPL Road Phase II 



City of Laredo, Texas 
State Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results (Continued) 

State Awards (Continued) 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

No matters were reported 

$300,000 

X yes no 

Section 111 - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

No matters were reported 



City of Laredo, Texas 
Federal Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no audit findings reported in the prior audit's schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 



City of Laredo, Texas 
State Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended September 30,2006 

State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no audit findings reported in the prior audit's schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 
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